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A I R O L A M  I S  A  L E A D I N G ,  FA S T- G R OW I N G  C O M PA N Y,

W H I C H  H A S  M A D E  A N  I R R E P L A C E A B L E  P L A C E  I N  T H E

L A M I N AT E  &  PA N E L  I N D U S T R Y   A R O U N D  T H E  G L O B E  I T ' S

S U C C E S S  A N D  P R OW E S S  I N  T H E  F I E L D  I S  W E L L

E XH I B I T E D  B Y  I T S  G L O B A L  R E A C H ,  VA S T  P R O D U C T

P O R T F O L I O  A N D  M U LT I - C R O R E  T U R N OV E R .

A I R O L A M  S T I L L  C O N T I N U E S  T O  P U S H  T H E  M A N T L E  O F

E XC E L L E N C E  I N  P R O D U C T  Q U A L I T Y  A N D  T E C H N O L O G Y.

A I R O L A M  I S  A  YO U N G  A N D  G R OW I N G  C O M PA N Y  W I T H

C O M M E N D A B L E  1 4 +  Y E A R S  O F   E XP E R I E N C E  I N  T H E

L A M I N AT E S  I N D U S T R Y.  E S TA B L I S H E D  I N  2 0 0 8 ,  T O D AY

A I R O L A M  A N D  I T S  P R O D U C T S  R E A C H  OV E R  1 8

C O U N T R I E S  A L L  A R O U N D  T H E  WO R L D.  O N  T H E

D O M E S T I C  F R O N T  I T  H A S  1 0 +  C O M PA N Y  D E P O T S ,  1 0 0 +

A U T H O R I Z E D  D I S T R I B U T O R S  A N D  5 0 0 0 +  D E A L E R S

About Company
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Mission

To explore new avenues around the globe and create

a strong dealership network and to incorporate the

latest techniques and designs as per the changing

trends of the indigenous, overseas and international

market. Looking ahead to achieve a sustained

development promoting an eco-friendly environment.

To manufacture best quality laminates at reasonably fair price using
best raw materials.

To continuously develop, technologically.

To develop innovative products.

We are raising industry's standards of quality & design on day to day
basis.

With utmost integrity, we ensure customers satisfaction & we
strictly believe that together we can

Vision

Vision and Mission

3



LAMINATE

PLYWOOD

PANEL

The Airolam
 One Stop Solution
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HIGH PRESSURE
LAMINATE

ANTI-FINGERPRINT
LAMINATE

AIRO DOOR

The Airolam
 One Stop Solution
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Our Principles

Quality Assurance:
Ensure all products meet the highest quality standards.
Implement rigorous testing and quality control measures at every production stage.

Sustainability:
Source raw materials from sustainable and certified sources.
Minimize waste and promote recycling within the production process.
Invest in eco-friendly technologies and processes.

Customer Satisfaction:
Focus on understanding and meeting customer needs.
Provide excellent customer service and support.
Offer a wide range of products to cater to diverse requirements.

Integrity and Transparency:
Maintain honesty and transparency in all business dealings.
Uphold ethical practices and comply with all legal regulations.
Build and maintain trust with customers, partners, and employees.

Economic Responsibility:
Ensure profitable growth while balancing economic, social, and environmental responsibilities.
Make strategic investments that align with long-term goals.
Maintain financial discipline and transparency.

Employee Welfare:

Foster a safe, healthy, and inclusive work environment.
Invest in employee development through training and education.
Encourage a culture of teamwork, respect, and mutual support.
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Values that drive Airolam…

Social Responsibility:
Engage in activities that benefit society and contribute to community development.
Support initiatives that promote education, health, and environmental conservation.

Collaboration:
Encourage teamwork and open communication.
Value diverse perspectives and work together to achieve common goals.

Innovation:
Embrace creativity and new ideas.
Foster a culture of innovation to stay ahead in the industry.

Integrity:
Uphold honesty, transparency, and ethical practices in all dealings.
Build trust through consistent and reliable actions.

Customer Focus:
Place customers at the center of everything we do.
Understand and anticipate customer needs to deliver exceptional value.
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Message from the Managing Director

Dear Shareholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to welcome you all to
the Annual General Meeting of Airo Lam Limited. This
gathering is not just a statutory milestone, but also a
moment of reflection on our journey, achievements,
and aspirations for the future.

The year gone by has been both challenging and
rewarding. Despite global economic uncertainties,
rising input costs, and supply chain disruptions, your
Company has demonstrated resilience and
adaptability. Our consistent focus on quality,
innovation, and customer-centricity has enabled us to
strengthen our presence in domestic as well as
international markets.

We have continued to expand our footprint globally,
enhance our product portfolio, and adopt sustainable
practices that align with our vision of responsible
growth. I am proud to share that our efforts towards
technology-driven processes, operational efficiency,
and green initiatives have started yielding tangible
results.

Looking ahead, Airo Lam is committed to driving
innovation in design and laminates, deepening our
customer relationships, and seizing opportunities in
both Indian and overseas markets. Our strategy
remains clear — to create long-term value for all
stakeholders while contributing positively to the
environment and society.
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I take this opportunity to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our shareholders, board members,
employees, customers, suppliers, bankers, and
regulators who have been pillars of support in this
journey. Your trust and encouragement inspire us to
move forward with greater determination.

Together, let us continue to build Airo Lam into a
stronger, more innovative, and globally respected
brand

With Best Wishes,
Mr. Pravin Patel
Managing Director
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      Key financial highlights 

    F.Y 2024-2025

(Amount in Lakhs)

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25

9314.70 11188.08 10638.53
13327.75

16889.69
19946.03 20518.57 21438.68

Revenue

Series1

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25

325.17
422.81 477.77 545.52

679.50 739.54
828.74

353.70

PAT
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Series1

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25

2.51 2.82 3.18
3.64

4.48
4.93

5.52

2.36

EPS

3519.18
3945.20

4422.97
4968.49

5642.52

6425.11

7233.01
7599.20

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25

Net Worth
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924.03
1010.69 969.56

1240.55

1548.66
1728.64

2111.49

507.98

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25

EBITDA
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Global  Footprints… 

The true stature of a brand is reflected in its presence across the globe. At Airolam, 

we continue to strengthen our position not only in India but also in international 

markets, consistently expanding our global reach. 

During FY 2024–25, Airolam has further consolidated its overseas presence through 

a robust and growing dealer network. This network ensures seamless and timely 

delivery of our premium products to diverse markets worldwide, while maintaining 

the highest standards of safety, integrity, and elegance. 

Today, Airolam’s footprint extends to 16+ countries, including Singapore, Malaysia, 

U.S.A., U.K., Kuwait, Bangladesh, Saudi Arabia, Sri Lanka, Thailand, Qatar, U.A.E., 

Syria, Iran, Egypt, Nepal, and Vietnam — with ongoing efforts to explore and 

penetrate new geographies. 
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NOTICE 

18th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Notice is hereby given that the Eighteenth Annual General Meeting of the 

Members of Airo Lam Limited will be held at registered office of the Company at 

Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, N.H. No. 8, Village- Dalpur, Ta. Prantij, Gujarat-

383120, India, on Thursday, 25th day of September, 2025 at 03:00 p.m. to transact 

the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. Adoption of Accounts:

To Consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial 

Statements of the company for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025 and 

the Reports of Board of Directors and the Auditors’ thereon and in this regard to 

pass with or without modification the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of 

the company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 and the reports of the 

board of directors and auditors’ thereon laid before this meeting, be and are 

hereby considered and adopted.” 

2. Appointment of Mr. Hardikkumar Prafulbhai Patel (DIN: 08282838) who is liable to

retires by rotation:

To take note of Director retire by rotation, and in this regard to pass with or without 

modification the following resolution as Ordinary Resolution: 

16
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Hardikkumar Prafulbhai Patel 

(DIN: 08282838), who is liable to retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible 

for re-appointment has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby 

re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 

3. Appointment of Secretarial Auditor of the Company:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 

the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), other applicable 

laws/statutory provisions, if any, as amended from time to time, M/s Pitroda Nayan 

& Co. (Proprietorship Firm of Mr. Nayan P. Pitroda) (C.P. No.: 23912) be and are 

hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for term of five 

consecutive years commencing from financial year 2025-26 till financial year 2029-

30, at such fees, plus applicable taxes and other out-of-pocket expenses as may 

be mutually agreed upon between the Board of Directors of the Company and the 

Secretarial Auditors.” 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, 

deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient 

to give effect to this resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental 

thereto. 

Place: Prantij By Order of Board of Directors 
Date: 29.05.2025  For, Airo Lam Limited 

CIN: L20211GJ2007PLC052019 

Sd/-     Sd/- 
Registered office:    Pravinbhai N. Patel      Sureshbhai H. Patel 
Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, Chairman & MD   Whole-Time Director 
N.H. No. 8, Dalpur, Prantij - 383120, DIN: 01840244    DIN: 02223842 
Gujarat, India. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
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NOTES:  

 

1. The Register of members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will 

remain closed from Friday, 19th September, 2025 to Thursday, 25th September, 

2025 (both days inclusive) for annual closing.  

 

2. IN TERMS OF SECTION 105 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 A MEMBER ENTITLED 

TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE 

PROXIES TO ATTEND AND, ON A POLL, VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF, SUCH PROXY 

NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A person can act as proxy on 

behalf of members not exceeding 50 [fifty] and holding in aggregate not 

more than ten (10) per cent of the total share capital of the Company. In 

case proxies proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more than ten 

(10) percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, 

then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any such other person or 

shareholder. 

 
3. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to 

attend the meeting are requested to send a certified copy of the board 

resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf 

at the meeting. 

 
4. The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company, duly completed, and signed and 

stamped, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 

A Proxy Form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, 

societies etc. must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as 

applicable. 

 
5. Members / proxies / authorized representatives should bring the duly filled 

Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to attend the meeting. 

 
6. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their 

shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, will 

be available for inspection by the members at the AGM. 
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7. The Company is concerned about the environment and utilizes natural 

resources in a sustainable way. We request you to update your email address 

with your Depository Participant to enable us to send you the financials and 

other communications electronically. 

 
8. In compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as substituted by 

the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment, Rules 2015, 

and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has provided a facility to the 

members to exercise their votes electronically through the electronic voting 

service facility arranged by “MUFG Intime India Private Limited.” The facility 

for voting through ballot paper will also be made available at the AGM and 

members attending the AGM, who have not already cast their votes by 

remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the AGM through 

ballot paper. Members who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to 

the AGM may attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes 

again. The instructions for e-voting are annexed to the Notice. 

 
9. Members’ voting rights shall be in proportion to his/her share of paid up 

equity share capital of the Company. 

 
10. In case of joint holders attending the meeting together, only whose name 

appearing first will be entitled to vote. 

 
11. This notice is being sent to all the members at their registered e-mail IDs, 

whose names appear in the Register of Members / list of Beneficial Owners as 

received from National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) / Central 

Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) on 29th August, 2025. The Notice is 

also posted on the website of the Company i.e. www.airolam.com. 

 

12. Members desirous of asking any questions at the Annual General Meeting 

are requested to send in their questions so as to reach the Company 

registered office at least 5 days before the Annual General Meeting so that 

the same can be suitably replied to. 
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13. Members who have registered their e-mail id for the receipt of documents in 

electronic mode are being sent AGM Notice by e-mail. Members who have 

received AGM Notice by e-mail and wish to vote physically can do the same 

by remaining present in the meeting. 

 

14. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the 

submission of the Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in 

the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, 

therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participant(s). 

Members holding shares in physical form are required to submit their PAN 

details to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, MUFG Intime India Private 

Limited. C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083. 

 
15. In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Hardikkumar 

Prafulbhai Patel (DIN: 08282838), Director of the Company, liable to retire by 

rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers 

himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors of the Company 

recommends his re-appointment. 

 
16. The members who did not exercise their vote by E-Voting shall have an 

option to cast their vote on poll that will be conducted at the AGM Venue. 

Further there shall not be any voting through Show of Hands. 

 
17. The Company has appointed M/s. Ashish Sheth & Associates, Chartered 

Accountants (FRN: 146184W) to act as the Scrutinizer for conducting the 

electronic voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

 
18. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of the e-voting period, 

unblock the votes in the presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the 

employment of the Company and make, not later than three (3) days of 

conclusion of the meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the votes 

cast in favour or against, if any, forthwith to the Chairman of the Company, 

who shall counter-sign the same. 
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19. The results shall be declared at or after the Annual General Meeting of the 

Company. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be 

placed on the Company’s website www.airolam.com and on the website of 

Link In-Time India Private Limited immediately after the result is declared by 

the Chairman and communicated to National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited. 

 
20. Electronic copy of the Notice of the 18th Annual General Meeting of the 

Company, inter alia, indicating the process of e-voting along as stated 

herein with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all the Members 

whose email IDs are registered with the Company/DP(s) for communication 

purposes unless any member has requested for a physical copy of the same.  

 
21. Members may also note that the Notice of the 18th Annual General Meeting 

and the Annual Report for F.Y. 2024-2025 will also be available on the 

Company’s website www.airolam.com. The physical copies of the aforesaid 

documents will also be available at the Company’s Registered Office in 

Prantij, Sabarkantha, for inspection during normal business hours on working 

days. For any communication related to this AGM or otherwise, the Members 

may also send requests to the Company’s investor email: 

investor@airolam.com. 

 
22. SEBI has mandated the submission of Permanent Account number (PAN) by 

every participant in the securities market. Members are therefore requested 

to submit their PAN details to their Depository Participants. 

 

Place: Prantij      By Order of Board of Directors 
Date: 29.05.2025      For, Airo Lam Limited 
        CIN: L20211GJ2007PLC052019 
 
 
                                                                     Sd/-                               Sd/- 
Registered office:    Pravinbhai N. Patel        Sureshbhai H. Patel 
Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, Chairman & MD         Whole-Time Director 
N.H. No. 8, Dalpur, Prantij - 383120, DIN: 01840244          DIN: 02223842 
Gujarat, India. 
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

 
  Item no 2: Details of Directors Seeking Re-Appointment At the Forthcoming Annual 

General Meeting: Appointment of Mr. Hardikkumar Prafulbhai Patel (DIN: 08282838) 
who is liable to retires by rotation. 

(Pursuant To Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015) 

Name of the Director Mr. Hardikbhai Prafulbhai Patel 

Director Identification Number 08282838 

Date of Birth 21st December, 1994 

Date of Joining the Board 22nd November, 2018 

Qualification Master of Business Administration 

Nature of expertise in specific functional 

areas 

Having an experience in Marketing field 

Terms & Conditions of Appointment Appointed as Non-Executive Director of the 

Company liable to retire by rotation. 

Remuneration Paid He has been paid remuneration of Rs. 8,40,000/-. 

Designation Director 

No. of Shares held in the Company as on 

31st March, 2025 

7564 

Name of listed entities in which the 

person also holds the directorship 

NIL 

Chairman/Member of the Committees of 

other listed entities as on 31st March, 2025 

NIL 

Disclosure of relationship between 

Director inter-se and with Manager, 

Promoter and KMP of the Company 

Not Applicable 

Chairman/ Director of other Company as 

on               31st March, 2025 

NIL 

No. of Board Meetings attended during 

the year 

08 
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Item no 3. Appointment of Secretarial Auditor of the Company 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company, based on the recommendation of the 

Audit Committee and after evaluating various parameters including industry 

experience, competence of the audit team, efficiency in conduct of audit, 

and independence, has, at its meeting held on 29th May, 2025, proposed the 

appointment of Mr. Nayan P. Pitroda, Practicing Company Secretaries, as the 

Secretarial Auditor of the Company. 

 

The proposed appointment is for a term of five consecutive financial years, 

commencing from 1st April, 2025 to 31st March, 2030, on such remuneration as 

may be mutually agreed upon by the Board of Directors of the Company and 

the Secretarial Auditor. Mr. Nayan P. Pitroda has consented to the proposed 

appointment and confirmed that the appointment, if made, would be in 

compliance with the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

read with the applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 

 

Accordingly, the approval of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary 

Resolution, as set out at Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice. 

 

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their 

relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in 

the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice. 
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INSTRUCTION / PROCEDURE FOR THE E-VOTING: 

 
I. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 and 110 of the Act and Rules 20 and 

22 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (“Rules”), 

Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 the Company is pleased to provide e-voting facility to all its 

members to enable them to cast their vote electronically. 

 

II. The e-voting period commences on Monday, 22nd September, 2025 [9.00 a.m. 

onwards] and ends on Wednesday, 24th September, 2025 [Till 5.00 p.m.]. 

During this period Members’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical 

form or in dematerialized form, as on Thursday, 18th September, 2025, may cast 

their vote by e-voting. The e-voting module shall be disabled by LIIPL for voting 

thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member 

shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. 

 

Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders: 
 

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.  
 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their 
demat accounts to access e-Voting facility.  
 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given 
below:  
 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL 
 

METHOD 1 - Individual Shareholders registered with NSDL IDeAS facility  
 

Shareholders who have registered for NSDL IDeAS facility:  
 

a) Visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com and click on “Beneficial Owner” icon under 
“Login”.  

b) Enter User ID and Password. Click on “Login” 
c) After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under 

Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services.  
d) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” 

and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the 
remote e-voting period.  
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OR  

 
Shareholders who have not registered for NSDL IDeAS facility:  

 
a) To register, visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com and select  “Register Online for 

IDeAS Portal” or click on 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

b) Proceed with updating the required fields.  
c) Post successful registration, user will be provided with Login ID and password.  
d) After successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value 

added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services.  
e) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” 

and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the 
remote e-voting period.  

   
METHOD 2 - Individual Shareholders directly visiting the e-voting website of NSDL 
   

a) Visit URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com   
b) Click on the “Login” tab available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.  
c) Enter User ID (i.e., your sixteen-digit demat account number held with NSDL), 

Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.  
d) Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository 

website wherein you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added 
services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services.  

e) Click on “MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company’s Name” 
and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the 
remote e-voting period.  

  
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL 

 
METHOD 1 – Individual Shareholders registered with CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility 

 
Shareholders who have registered/ opted for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility: 

 
a) Visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login or 

www.cdslindia.com.  
b) Click on New System Myeasi Tab 
c) Login with existing my easi username and password  
d) After successful login, user will be able to see e-voting option. The evoting 

option will have links of e-voting service providers i.e., MUFG InTime, for voting 
during the remote e-voting period.  

e) Click on “Link InTime/ MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside 
Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting 
the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

 
OR 
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Shareholders who have not registered for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility: 

 
a) To register, visit URL: 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiRegistration / 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiestRegistration 

b) Proceed with updating the required fields.  
c) Post registration, user will be provided username and password.  
d) After successful login, user able to see e-voting menu.  
e) Click on “Link InTime / MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside 

Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting 
the vote during the remote e-voting period.  

   

METHOD 2 - Individual Shareholders directly visiting the e-voting website of CDSL 
 

a) Visit URL: https://www.cdslindia.com 
b) Go to e-voting tab.  
c) Enter Demat Account Number (BO ID) and PAN No. and click on “Submit”. 
d) System will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile and 

Email as recorded in Demat Account  
e) After successful authentication, click on “Link InTime / MUFG InTime” or “evoting 

link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to 
InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.  

 
 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with Depository Participant 

 
Individual shareholders can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your depository participant registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-
voting facility.  
 
a) Login to DP website 
b) After Successful login, user shall navigate through “e-voting” option.   
c) Click on e-voting option, user will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository 

website after successful authentication, wherein user can see e-voting feature. 
d) After successful authentication, click on “Link InTime / MUFG InTime” or “evoting 

link displayed alongside Company’s Name” and you will be redirected to 
InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.  

 
    Login method for shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual 

Shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
 
Shareholders holding shares in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode as on the cut-off date for e-voting may register for 
InstaVote as under: 
 
a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in  
 
Shareholders who have not registered for INSTAVOTE facility: 

26



 
 

1 8  
 

 
b) Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and register with your following 

details:  
 
A. User ID:  

NSDL demat account – User ID is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 
ID.  
CDSL demat account – User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 
Shareholders holding shares in physical form – User ID is Event No + Folio 
Number registered with the Company.  

B. PAN:  
Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN)  
(Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Depository 
Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, 
if applicable.  

  
C. DOB/DOI:  

Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with 
your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format)  

  
D. Bank Account Number:  

Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your 
DP/Company. 
 
*Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above 
**Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ 
and ‘D’, shall provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above 

  
 Set the password of your choice  

(The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special 
Character (!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least 
one capital letter).  

 Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code 
 Click “Submit” (You have now registered on InstaVote).  

 
Shareholders who have registered for INSTAVOTE facility: 

 
c) Click on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab.  
 

A. User ID: Enter your User ID 
B. Password: Enter your Password 
C. Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code 
D. Click “Submit” 

 
d) Cast your vote electronically: 

 
A. After successful login, you will be able to see the “Notification for e-voting”.  
B. Select ‘View’ icon.  
C. E-voting page will appear.  
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D. Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired 
option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, 
click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link).  

E. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’.  
A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click 
on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify 
your vote.  

 
Guidelines for Institutional shareholders (“Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund”) 
 

STEP 1 – Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund Registration 
 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in   
b) Click on “Sign Up” under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund”  
c) Fill up your entity details and submit the form.  
d) A declaration form and organization ID is generated and sent to the Primary 

contact person email ID (which is filled at the time of sign up). The said form is to 
be signed by the Authorised Signatory, Director, Company Secretary of the 
entity & stamped and sent to insta.vote@linkintime.co.in.   

e) Thereafter, Login credentials (User ID; Organisation ID; Password) is sent to 
Primary contact person’s email ID. (You have now registered on InstaVote) 

 
STEP 2 – Investor Mapping  

 
a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login 

credentials.  
b) Click on “Investor Mapping” tab under the Menu Section  
c) Map the Investor with the following details:  

 
A. ‘Investor ID’ –  

i. NSDL demat account – User ID is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 
Digit Client ID i.e., IN00000012345678 

ii. CDSL demat account – User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 
B. ‘Investor’s Name - Enter Investor’s Name as updated with DP.  
C. ‘Investor PAN’ - Enter your 10-digit PAN.  
D. ‘Power of Attorney’ - Attach Board resolution or Power of Attorney.  
 
*File Name for the Board resolution/ Power of Attorney shall be – DP ID and 
Client ID or 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. Further, Custodians and Mutual Funds shall 
also upload specimen signatures.  
 
E. Click on Submit button. (The investor is now mapped with the Custodian / 

Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund Entity). The same can be viewed under the 
“Report Section”.   

   

STEP 3 – Voting through remote e-voting 
 

The corporate shareholder can vote by two methods, during the remote e-voting 
period.  
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METHOD 1 - VOTES ENTRY  
 

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login 
credentials.  

b) Click on “Votes Entry” tab under the Menu section.  
c) Enter the “Event No.” for which you want to cast vote.  

Event No. can be viewed on the home page of InstaVote under “On-going 
Events”.   

d) Enter “16-digit Demat Account No.” for which you want to cast vote.  
e) Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your 

desired option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution 
details, click on the ‘View Resolution’ file link).  

f) After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’.  
A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click 
on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify 
your vote.  
 
OR  
 

METHOD 2 - VOTES UPLOAD 
 
a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and login with InstaVote Login 

credentials. 
b) After successful login, you will be able to see the “Notification for e-voting”.    
c) Select “View” icon for “Company’s Name / Event number”.  
d) E-voting page will appear.  
e) Download sample vote file from “Download Sample Vote File” tab.  
f) Cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour / Against' in the sample 

vote file and upload the same under “Upload Vote File” option.  
g) Click on ‘Submit’. ‘Data uploaded successfully’ message will be displayed.  

(Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or 
change it subsequently). 

 

Helpdesk: 
 
Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode: 

 
Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode facing any technical issue in login may contact 
INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request at enotices@in.mpms.mufg.com or 
contact on: - Tel: 022 – 4918 6000. 

  

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode: 
 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the 
respective helpdesk for any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e., 
NSDL and CDSL. 
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 Login type   Helpdesk details  
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at : 022 - 
4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL  

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33  

 

 Forgot Password: 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode: 

  
Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode have forgotten the USER ID [Login ID] or Password 
or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option available on: 
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 
 Click on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 
 Click “forgot password?”  
 Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA).  
 Click on “SUBMIT”. 
 
In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail 
address. Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing information about the 
particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four 
digits) etc. The password should contain a minimum of 8 characters, at least one special character 
(!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter.  
 
User ID:  
NSDL demat account – User ID is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID.  
CDSL demat account – User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. 
Shareholders holding shares in physical form – User ID is Event No + Folio Number registered with the 
Company.  

 
In case Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund has forgotten the USER ID [Login 
ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option 
available on: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in 
 Click on ‘Login’ under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund” tab  
 Click “forgot password?”  
 Enter User ID, Organization ID and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA).  
 Click on “SUBMIT”. 
  
In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail 
address. Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing information about the 
particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI etc. The password should contain a 
minimum of 8 characters, at least one special character (!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one 
alphabet and at least one capital letter. 
 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has 
forgotten the password:  
 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode have forgotten the USER ID 
[Login ID] or Password or both, then the Shareholders are advised to use Forget User ID 
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and Forget Password option available at above mentioned depository/ depository 
participants website. 
 
 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 

take utmost care to keep your password confidential.  
 For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used 

only for voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 
 During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till 

they have voted on the resolution(s) for a particular “Event”. 
 

 

Place: Prantij      By Order of Board of Directors 
Date: 29.05.2025      For, Airo Lam Limited 
        CIN: L20211GJ2007PLC052019 
 
 
                                                                     Sd/-                               Sd/- 
Registered office:    Pravinbhai N. Patel        Sureshbhai H. Patel 
Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, Chairman & MD         Whole-Time Director 
N.H. No. 8, Dalpur, Prantij - 383120, DIN: 01840244          DIN: 02223842 
Gujarat, India. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

 
To, 

The Members, 

Airo Lam Limited, 

 

The Board of directors of your Company is pleased in presenting the Eighteenth 

(18th) Annual Report of your Company together with the Audited Financial 

Statements for the period ended 31st March, 2025. 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS:- 

             (Amount in Lakhs) 

Particulars 

Standalone  

 

Consolidated 

FY  

2024-25 

FY  

2023-24 

FY  

2024-25 

FY  

2023-24 

Income from 

operations 

21,438.68 20,518.57 21,422.71 20,637.42 

Other Income 249.30 145.10 253.40 145.25 

Total 21,687.97 20,663.67 21,676.11 20,782.67 

Profit before 

depreciation, 

taxation & 

Extraordinary Items 

            966.97 1544.67            887.19 1502.69 

Less: Depreciation & 

amortization 

458.56 385.75 462.16 388.24 

Less: Provision for Tax 102.14 278.42 102.14 278.42 

Less: Deferred Tax 52.57 51.76 52.57 51.76 

Less: Prior period Tax 

adjustment 

- - - - 
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Profit/(Loss) After Tax 353.70 828.74 270.32 784.27 

Add: Balance 

brought forward from 

previous year 

4,440.00 3,611.26 4,253.86 3,587.47 

Surplus available for 

appropriation 

4,829.93 4,463.74 4,525.50 4,253.86 

Appropriations:     

General Reserves Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Less: Proposed 

Dividend 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Less: Tax on Dividend Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Accelerated 

depreciation on fixed 

asset 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Securities Premium 1,269.07 1,269.07 1,269.07 1,269.07 

Balance Carried to 

Balance Sheet 

6,099.00 5,732.81 5,830.80 5,546.67 

 

RESULT OF OPERATIONS AND THE STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

 

Your Company took several initiatives during the last financial year that helped in 

achieving and consolidating growth in production and sales volumes. Your 

company tried to increase the sales in the product being manufactured and 

marketed in-house. 

 

During the year under review, your Company posted a stable performance with 

revenue of Rs.  21,438.68 Lakhs as against Rs. 20,518.57 Lakhs in the previous year. 

Profit for the year 2024-25 was Rs. 353.70 Lakhs as against Rs. 828.74 Lakhs in the 

previous year. 

 

As per the consolidated financial statements, the revenue and profit for the year 

2024-25 were Rs. 21,422.71 Lakhs and Rs. 20,637.42 Lakhs respectively as against 

Rs. 270.32 Lakhs and Rs. 784.27 Lakhs in the previous year. 
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RESERVES and SURPLUS 

 

The Company has incurred profit of Rs. 353.70 Lakhs for the current financial year 

and the same is proposed to be transferred to Reserve and Surplus. 

 

DIVIDEND:- 

 

Your Directors do not recommend any dividends so as to conserve the resources 

of the company for future needs, for the year 2024-25. 

 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS:- 

 

No change in the nature of Business of the Company during the period under 

review. 

 

DEPOSITS:- 

 

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted/ renewed 

deposit from public/ shareholders as per the applicable provisions of the new 

Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

There is no overdue deposit as on 31st March, 2025. 

 

SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE (JV) AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:- 

 

The Company has following Associate Company: 

 

Sr. No Name of the 

Subsidiary/JV/Associate 

Nature Business 

1 Airolam Asia Pacific Co. 

Ltd 

Associate Trading of plywood and 

veneer sheets 

 

Further, a statement containing salient features of the financial statements of our 

associate company in the prescribed format AOC-1 is appended as “Annexure-
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A” to the Board’s Report. The statement also provides the details of 

performances, financial position of our associate concern.  

 

The Company does not have any Joint Venture & Subsidiary Companies. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:- 

 

A separate report on Corporate Governance Compliance as stipulated in 

Regulation 34 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) forms part of the Director’s Report. 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE:- 

 

The Company has in place an Audit Committee in terms of requirements of the 

Act read with rules framed thereunder and Listing Regulations. The details 

relating to the Audit Committee are given in the Corporate Governance Report 

forming part of this report. The recommendations of Audit Committee were duly 

accepted by the Board of Directors. 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:- 

 

As per Listing Regulations, the Management Discussion and Analysis, is 

appended to this report. 

 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PEROSNNEL:- 

 

During the year under review, there are no change in the Directors or KMPs.  

 

1. Retirement by Rotation 

 

At the ensuing Annual General Meeting Mr. Hardikbhai Prafulbhai Patel who 

retires by rotation and being eligible offers themselves for re-appointment.  

 

There being no other changes in Directorship or KMPs of the Company during 

the year under review. 
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The details of Directors seeking appointment, re-appointment at the ensuing 

Annual General Meeting has been provided in the Notice of the Annual General 

Meeting, forming part of the Annual Report. 

 

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:- 

 

Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“Act”), and based on the representations received from the operating 

management, the Directors hereby confirm: 

 that in the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting 

Standards had been followed and that no material departures have been 

made from the same. 

 that they had selected such Accounting Policies and applied them 

consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

Company at the end of the Financial Year and of the profit or loss of the 

Company for that period. 

 that they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

 that they had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis. 

 that the Company had adequate internal systems and controls in place to 

ensure compliance of laws applicable to the Company. 

 that the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and 

operating effectively. 

 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:- 

 

All the Independent Directors have given declaration to the Company stating 

their independence pursuant to Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as 

independent director during the year.  
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BOARD MEETINGS:- 

 

During the year, Seven Board Meetings, as follows were convened and held with 

requisite quorum. The details of the Board Meetings and the attendance of the 

Directors are provided in the Corporate Governance Report attached hereto 

which forms part of this Report. 

1. 27.05.2024     5. 29.08.2024 

2. 19.06.2024   6. 29.10.2024 

3. 03.08.2024   7. 12.02.2025 

4. 05.08.2024   8. 31.03.2025 

 

BOARD EVALUATION:- 

 

The Companies Act, 2013 states that a formal annual evaluation needs to be 

made by the Board that of its committees and individual Directors. Schedule IV 

to the Companies Act, 2013 states that the performance evaluation of 

Independent Directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, excluding 

the Director being evaluated. The Board works with the Nomination & 

Remuneration Committee to lay down the evaluation criteria for the 

performance of Executive/ Non- Executive/ Independent Directors.  

 

The evaluation of all the Directors, Committees and the Board as a whole was 

conducted based on the criteria and framework adopted by the Board and 

results of the evaluation is satisfactory and adequate and meets the 

requirements. The Board approved the evaluation results as collated by the 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee. 

 

DETAILS OF COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS:- 

 

Composition of Audit Committee of Directors, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee of Directors, Stake Holders Relationship/ Grievances Committee of 

Directors and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, number of meetings 

held of each Committee during the Financial year 2024-25 and meetings 

attended by each member of the Committee as required under the Companies 
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Act, 2013 are provided in Corporate Governance Report and forming part of the 

report. 

 

REMUNERATION POLICY:- 

 

A Nomination and Remuneration Policy has been formulated pursuant to the 

provisions of Section 178 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Rules thereto stating therein the Company’s policy on appointment 

and remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel which was 

approved and adopted by the Board of Directors.  

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABRORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:- 

 

The particulars regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption and 

Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo pursuant to 134(3)(m) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is 

annexed herewith as “Annexure B”. 

 

ANNUAL RETURN:- 

 

The Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2025 is available on the 

Company’s website and can be accessed at https://airolam.com/investor-

relation/.  

 

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:- 

 

In order to ensure that the activities of the Company and its employees are 

conducted in a fair and transparent manner by adoption of highest standards of 

professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behaviour, the Company has 

adopted a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy. This policy is explained in 

corporate governance report and also posted on the website of company i.e. 

https://airolam.com/investor-relation/.  
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:- 

 

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee) has formulated 

and recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR 

Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, which has 

been approved by the Board. The CSR Policy may be accessed on the 

Company’s website at the link https://airolam.com/investor-relation/. 

 

The Average Net Profits of the Company for the last three financial years is Rs. 

10,40,29,883.62/- and accordingly the prescribed CSR expenditure during the 

financial year 2024-25 was Rs. 20,80,597.67/- (i.e. 2% of the Average Net Profits of 

the Company for the last three financial years). The Company had undertaken 

to spend an amount of Rs. 20,86,000/- during the financial year 2024-25 against 

the mandatory requirement of Rs. 20,80,597.67/-.  

 

The Annual Report on CSR activities is annexed as “Annexure-C” to this Report. 

 

STATUTORY AUDITORS: - 

 

The shareholders of the Company at the 14th Annual General Meeting (AGM) 

held on September 29, 2021, approved the appointment of M/s Piyush J. Shah & 

Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 121172W) as the 

Statutory Auditors of the Company pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies 

Act, 2013 for a term of 5 years from the conclusion of 14th AGM till the conclusion 

of 19th AGM to be held in financial year 2026-27.  

 

The Statutory Auditors’ Report on the Standalone and Consolidated Financial 

Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 forms 

part of this Annual report. 

 

COMMENTS ON AUDITORS’ REPORT:- 

 

There is no adverse comment in the Auditors’ Report which requires any further 

explanation. 
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SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:- 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014, the Company has appointed Pitroda Nayan & Co., Practising Company 

Secretary, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for FY 2024-25. The 

Secretarial Audit Report is appended to this report as “Annexure D”. 

 

COMMENTS ON SECRETARIAL AUDITORS’ REPORT:- 

 

There is no adverse comment in the Secretarial Auditors’ Report which requires 

any further explanation. 

 

COST AUDITORS AND COST RECORD:- 

 

Your Company was not required to appoint cost auditor of the Company for FY 

2024-25.  

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:- 

 

No guarantees were given. Details of Loans, guarantees and investments 

covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form 

part of the notes to the Financial Statements provided in this Annual Report. 

 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (RPT):- 

 

Related party transactions that were entered during the financial year were on 

an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There were no 

materially significant related party transactions with the Company’s Promoters, 

Directors, Management or their relatives, which could have had a potential 

conflict with the interests of the Company. Transactions with related parties 

entered by the Company in the normal course of business are periodically 

placed before the Audit Committee for its omnibus approval and the particulars 
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of contracts entered during the year as per Form AOC-2 is enclosed as 

“Annexure – E”.  

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:- 

 

The Company has adequate system of internal control to safeguard and protect 

from loss, unauthorized use or disposition of its assets. All the transactions are 

properly authorised, recorded and reported to the Management. The Company 

is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the 

books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The internal management 

of the company checks and verifies the internal control and monitors them in 

accordance with policy adopted by the company. The Company continues to 

ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures commensurate with its 

size and nature of its business. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT:- 

 

The Company has framed a sound Risk Management Policy to identify and 

evaluate business risks and opportunities and the same has become integral part 

of Company’s day to day operations. The key business risks identified by the 

Company are as follows viz. Industry Risk, Management and Operations Risk, 

Market Risk, Government Policy risk, Liquidity risk, and Systems risk. The Company 

has in place adequate mitigation plans for the aforesaid risks. 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF 

THE COMPANY:- 

 

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the 

financial position of the Company which have occurred between the ends of 

the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and 

the date of the report. 
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SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS:- 

 

There are no material orders passed by Regulators, Courts or Tribunals impacting 

the going concern status and company’s operations in future. 

 

REPORTING OF FRAUD:- 

 

There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the 

Statutory Auditors to report to the Audit Committee and/or Board under section 

143(12) of Act and Rules framed thereunder. 

 

DISCLOSURE ABOUT RECEIPT OF ANY COMMISSION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR:- 

 

No Commission was drawn by the Managing Director during the financial year. 

 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:- 

 

The relationship with the workmen and staff remained co-ordial and harmonious 

during the year and management received full co-operation from employees. 

 

DISCLOSER UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

 

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the 

requirement of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees are covered under this 

policy. The Company has also complied with the provisions related to 

constitution of Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) under the said Act to 

redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. The Company 

received no complaints pertaining to sexual harassment during F.Y 2024-25.   
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:- 

 

Statements in the Boards’ Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis 

describing the Company’s objectives, explanations and predictions, may be 

forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. 

Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement. 

Important factors that could influence the company’s operations include: global 

and domestic demand and supply conditions affecting selling prices, new 

capacity additions, availability of critical materials and their cost, changes in 

government policies and tax laws, economic development of the country, and 

other factors which are material to the business operations of the Company. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:- 

 

Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation for the continuous 

support and cooperation received from the Business Associates including 

vendors, customers and Banks. Your Directors greatly appreciates overwhelming 

cooperation, dedication, commitment and contribution made by employees at 

all levels and look forward for their continued support in future as well. Your 

Directors would also wish to place on record their gratitude to the shareholders 

for having faith on the management of the Company. 

 

Place: Prantij      By Order of Board of Directors 
Date: 29.05.2025      For, Airo Lam Limited 
        CIN: L20211GJ2007PLC052019 
 
 
                                                                      Sd/-                               Sd/- 
Registered office:    Pravinbhai N. Patel        Sureshbhai H. Patel 
Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, Chairman & MD         Whole-Time Director 
N.H. No. 8, Dalpur, Prantij - 383120, DIN: 01840244          DIN: 02223842 
Gujarat, India. 
 

 

 

 

 

43



 
 

3 5  
 

 

 

ANNEXURE “A” TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
FORM AOC 1 

 
Pursuant to the first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of 

the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of 

subsidiaries/associate companies /joint ventures 

 

Part “A”: Subsidiary Companies: The Company does not have any Subsidiary 

Companies. 

 

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related 

to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures 

Name of associates/Joint Ventures  Airolam Asia Pacific Co. Ltd 

1 Date of Latest audited Balance Sheet  31.03.2025 

2 Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures 

held by the company on the year 

end 

 

No. 9600  

Amount of Investment in 

Associates/Joint Venture 

Rs. 23,78,325 

Extent of Holding% 48.00% 

3 Description of how there is significant 

influence 

Holding more than 20% of total 

share capital 

4 Reason why the associate/joint 

venture is not consolidated 

Not Applicable 

5 Net worth attributable to 

shareholding as per latest audited 

Balance Sheet 

Rs. 20,00,000/- 
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6 Profit/Loss for the year NIL 

i. Considered in Consolidation NIL 

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation Not Applicable 

 

1. Names of subsidiary, associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence 

operations: NIL 

2. Names of subsidiary, associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated 

or sold during the year: NIL 

 
Place: Prantij      By Order of Board of Directors 
Date: 29.05.2025      For, Airo Lam Limited 
        CIN: L20211GJ2007PLC052019 
 
 
                                                                     Sd/-                               Sd/- 
Registered office:    Pravinbhai N. Patel       Sureshbhai H. Patel 
Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, Chairman & MD        Whole-Time Director  
N.H. No. 8, Dalpur, Prantij - 383120, DIN: 01840244         DIN: 02223842 
Gujarat, India. 
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ANNEXURE “B” TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABRORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNING AND OUTGO 

 

 

The information pertaining to conservation of energy, technology absorption, 

Foreign exchange Earnings and outgo as required under Section 134(3) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014 is furnished as below: 

 

(A) Conservation of energy: 

 

Steps taken / impact on conservation of energy, with special reference to the 

following: 

(i) Steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy including 

waste generated: NIL 

 

(B) Technology absorption: 

 

(i) Company's products are grown by using in-house know how and no outside 

technology is being used for operational activities. Therefore no technology 

absorption is required.  

 

(ii) The Company has not incurred any expenditure on research and 

Development.  

 

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and outgo: 

 

Particulars Amount (In Rs.) 

Foreign Exchange earned in 
terms of actual inflows during 
the year  
 

Rs. 43,92,77,602/- 
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Foreign Exchange outgo 
during the year in terms of 
actual outflows  

Rs. 20,06,18,345/- 

 
 
Place: Prantij      By Order of Board of Directors 
Date: 29.05.2025      For, Airo Lam Limited 
        CIN: L20211GJ2007PLC052019 
 
                                                                     Sd/-                               Sd/- 
Registered office:    Pravinbhai N. Patel      Sureshbhai H. Patel 
Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, Chairman & MD       Whole-Time Director  
N.H. No. 8, Dalpur, Prantij - 383120, DIN: 01840244       DIN: 02223842 
Gujarat, India. 
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ANNEXURE “C” TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 
9 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014] 

 
 

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or 

programmes proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to 

the CSR policy and projects or programs. 

 

The Company’s CSR Policy is to serve the cause for creating a healthy and 

enlightened life for the needy while fulfilling the responsibility of conservation 

of scarce natural resources. As a concerned corporate citizen, it is felt as a 

duty to give back some support to the weaker sections of society through 

sustained projects. The focus was on programmes to promote Education, 

Healthcare & Medical initiatives, Animal Welfare and Promoting Art. 

 

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee: 

Name Designation Category 

Mr. Pravin Nathabhai 

Patel 

Chairman Promoter - Executive 

Mr. Suresh Hansrajbhai 

Patel 

Member Promoter - Executive 

Mrs. Mamta 

Premanshubhai Patel 

Member Independent - Non 

Executive 

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 

 

3. Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5): Rs. 10,40,29,884/- 

 

4. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5): 

Rs. 20,80,598/- 

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the   

previous financial years: Nil 

        (c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 
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        (d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): *Rs. 20,80,598/- 

 

*The Company had undertaken to spend an amount of Rs. 20,80,598/- in addition to 

the CSR obligation as provided under Sr. No. 4(d) above. Accordingly, the total CSR 

obligation undertaken by the Company to be spent during the financial year 2024-25 

was Rs. 20,86,000/-. 

 

5. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

 

Total 

Amount 

Spent for 

the 

Financial 

Year (in 

Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

 

Total Amount transferred 

to 

Unspent CSR Account as 

per 

Section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any 

fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per second 

proviso to Section 135(5) 

Amount Date of 

Transfer 

Name of 

the 

Fund 

Amount Date of 

transfer 

Rs. 

20,86,000/- 

- - - - - 

 

b) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed 

below: 

 

Sr. 

N

o. 

CSR project 

or activity 

identified/ 

beneficiary 

Sector in 

which 

the project 

is 

covered 

Location of 

the 

Projects 

/ programs 

Amount 

outlay 

(budget) 

Amount 

spent on 

the 

projects or 

programs 

Subheads: 

Cumulati

ve 

expendit

ure up to 

the 

reporting 

period. 

Amount 

spent: 

Direct/ 

Implementi

ng 

Agency 

1 Support for 

Eradicating 

Promoting 

socially & 

Himatnagar

, Gujarat 

Rs. 

20,00,000/

Rs. 

19,40,000/

Rs.  

19,40,000/- 

Through 

Aditya 
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hunger economical

ly 

backward 

groups 

- - Foundation  

2 Supporting 

the growth 

of the 

Society 

Promoting 

the growth 

of the 

Society 

Ahmedab

ad, 

Gujarat 

Rs. 5,000/- Rs. 5,000/- Rs. 5,000/- Through 

Mother 

Krishna 

Charitable 

Trust 

3 Support for 

Eradicating 

hunger  

 

Rural 

developme

nt projects 

Himatnagar

, Gujarat 

Rs. 

10,000/- 

Rs.  

5,000/- 

Rs.  

5,000/- 

Through 

Armed 

Forces Flag 

Day 

Donation 

4 Supporting 

the growth 

of the 

Society 

Promoting 

the growth 

of the 

Society 

Himatnag

ar, Gujarat 

Rs. 

1,00,000/- 

Rs. 

51,000/- 

Rs. 

51,000/- 

Through 

Sadvichar 

Parivar  

5 Supporting 

the Animal 

Welfare 

Animal 

Welfare 

Himatnag

ar, Gujarat 

Rs. 

1,00,000/- 

Rs. 

85,000/- 

Rs. 

85,000/- 

Through 

Narayan 

Gau Seva 

Sanstha 

Total Expense Total Expense Rs. 

22,15,000

/- 

Rs. 

20,86,000

/- 

Rs. 

20,86,000

/- 

 

 

c) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 

d) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: N.A. 

e) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 20,86,000/- 

f) Excess amount for set off, if any, 

 

Sr. 

No. 

Particular Amount      

 (in Rs.) 

1 Two percent of average net profit of the company Rs. 20,80,598/- 
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as per Section 135(5) 

2 Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs.  20,86,000/- 

3 Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] NIL 

4 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 

programmes or activities of the previous financial 

years, if any 

NIL 

5 Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 

[(iii)-(iv)] 

NIL 

 

      

6.     a)   Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: -

NIL 

  b)  Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the 

preceding financial year(s): NIL 

 

7. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the 

asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (Please 

provide below details if any) (asset-wise details):  

 

The Company has not created or acquired any capital assets through CSR spent 

in the Financial Year 2024-25. 

 

8. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the 

average net profit as    per Section 135(5):  NA 

 
Place: Prantij      By Order of Board of Directors 
Date: 29.05.2025      For, Airo Lam Limited 
        CIN: L20211GJ2007PLC052019 
 
 
                                                                     Sd/-                               Sd/- 
Registered office:    Pravinbhai N. Patel        Sureshbhai H. Patel 
Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, Chairman & MD         Whole-Time Director 
N.H. No. 8, Dalpur, Prantij - 383120, DIN: 01840244         DIN: 02223842 
Gujarat, India. 
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ANNEXURE “D” TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
        

Form No. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March, 2025 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 

The Members, 

AIRO LAM LIMITED  

[CIN L20211GJ2007PLC052019] 

 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by AIRO LAM LIMITED [CIN 
L20211GJ2007PLC052019] (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted 
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.  
 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering 
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter:  
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to 
the provisions of:  
 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under. 
 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 
thereunder;  

 
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;  

 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made 
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowing.  

 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - 
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(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015. 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (not applicable to the company during the 
audit period); 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and 
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (not applicable to the company during the audit 
period); 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 
Securities) Regulations, 2021 (not applicable to the company during the audit 
period); 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
with client; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2021 (not applicable to the company during the audit period); 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
2018 (not applicable to the company during the audit period); 

 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 

i. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
ii. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except  

 As per Regulation 23(9) of SEBI (LODR), 2015 The Company didn’t upload the Disclosure 
Regarding the Related Party for September, 2024 Half Year on the date on which the Financial 
Results were approved; 

 As per Regulation 74(5) of the SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018: The 
Company did not upload the disclosure within 15 days of receipt of the certificate of security 
from the participant for the quarter ending on March 2024 and September 2024; 

 As per Clause 4 of Schedule B  read  with Regulation  9  of  SEBI  (Prohibition  of  Insider  Trading)  
Regulations,  2015 The Company has delayed in the intimation to the stock exchange regarding 
the closure of the trading window for the quarter ending on June, 2024, pursuant to the 
provisions of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 

 As per Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 Delay by 
Company in entering UPSI Sharing Entries in software (Structured Digital Database) as the 
software was corrupted. 

 As per Clause 4 of Schedule B read with Regulation  9  of  SEBI  (Prohibition  of  Insider  Trading)  
Regulations,  2015 read with SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/ISD/ISD-SEC-4/P/CIR/2022/107 dated 05th 
August, 2022 and SEBI/HO/ISD/ISD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/124 dated 19th July, 2023, The listed entity 
has not complied with the provisions for accessing the platform designated by the Designated 
Depository and freezing the PAN of the Designated Persons during Trading Window closure 
period. 

 

I further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
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obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 

Board take decision by majority of directors while the dissenting directors’ views are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes. 

I further report that: 

There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations 
and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period, there were no event/action having a major bearing on the 
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc. 

 
For. Pitroda Nayan & Co., 
Company Secretaries 
 
 
Sd/- 
Nayan P. Pitroda 
Proprietor 
Mem.No.: 58473 
C.P.No.: 23912 
UDIN.: A058473G001116992 
P/R No.: 5509/2024 
 
Date.: 30/08/2025 
Place.: Ahmedabad 
  

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure herewith and 
forms and integral part of this report.  
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Annexure to Secretarial Audit Report 

 
To, 

The Members, 

AIRO LAM LIMITED  

[CIN L20211GJ2007PLC052019] 

 
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.  
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

 
2.  I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that 
the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.  

 
3.  I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company.  
 

4.  Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representations about the compliance 
of Laws, Rules and Regulations and happening of events etc.  
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Regulations, 
Standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.  

 

For. Pitroda Nayan & Co., 
Company Secretaries 
 
 
 
Sd/- 
Nayan P. Pitroda 
Proprietor 
Mem.No.: 58473 
C.P.No.: 23912 
UDIN.: A058473G001116992 
P/R No.: 5509/2024 
 
Date.: 30/08/2025 
Place.: Ahmedabad 
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ANNEXURE “E” TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

FORM NO. AOC-2 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) 

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the 

company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso 

thereto. 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: 

 

Airo Lam Limited (the Company) has not entered into any 

contract/arrangement/ transaction with its related parties which is not in 

ordinary course of business or not at arm’s length during F.Y. 2024-25. 

 
2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

 
Place: Prantij      By Order of Board of Directors 
Date: 29.05.2025      For, Airo Lam Limited 
        CIN: L20211GJ2007PLC052019 
 
                                                                     Sd/-                               Sd/- 
Registered office:    Pravinbhai N. Patel      Sureshbhai H. Patel 
Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, Chairman & MD       Whole-Time Director  
N.H. No. 8, Dalpur, Prantij - 383120, DIN: 01840244        DIN: 02223842 
Gujarat, India. 

 
 
 

Name of Related 
Party /Nature of 

Contract 

Nature of 
Relationship 

Salient 

Terms 

Amount 
(Rs.) 

Date of 
Approval 

by the 
Board and 

Audit 
Committee 

Airolam Asia Pacific 
Co., Ltd.  
  

Associate 
Concern 

As per 
contract 

1,93,28,693.29 27/05/2024 

Sales     
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STATEMENT OF PARTICULARS AS PER RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES 

(APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) 

RULES, 2014 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of 
Director/ Key 
Managerial 

Personnel and 
Designation 

Remuneration 
of Director / 

Key 
Managerial 
Personnel 

for the year 
ended 

March 31, 2024 
(Rs. in lakhs) 

% increase in 
the 

remuneration in 
the year ended 
March 31, 2024 

Ratio in the 
remuneration 

of each 
Director to the 

median 
remuneration 

of the 
employees 

Comparison of 
the 

remuneration of 
the Key 

Managerial 
Personnel 
against 

the 
performance of 
the Company 

1 Mr. Pravinbhai 
Nathabhai 
Patel, 
Managing 
Director 

11.40 
 
 
 

- 3.8 Profit 
after tax (PAT) 
for 
the year  
2024-25, 
 decreased by 
57.32% 

2 Mr. 
Sureshbhai 
Hansrajbhai 
Patel - Whole 
Time Director 

13.65 - 4.55 

3 Mr. Hardik P. 
Patel, Director 

8.40 - 2.8 
 

4 Mr. 
Mehulkumar     
J. Patel,
Independent 
Director 

- - - 

5 Mr. Manilal K. 
Patel, 
Independent 
Director 

- - - 

6 Mrs. 
Mamtaben P. 
Patel, 
Independent 
Director 

- - - 

7 Mr. Keyaben 
Patel, CFO 

- - - 

8 Mr. 
Chintankumar 
K Mehuriya, 
Company 
Secretary 

2.16 - 0.72 
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1. The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the year 

ended March 31, 2025 was Rs. 3,00,000/-. 

 

2. During the year ended March 31, 2025, there was no increase in the median 

remuneration of employees. 

 

3. As on March 31, 2025, the Company had 314 permanent employees. 

 

4. Relationship between average increase in the remuneration and performance 

of the Company: 

PAT for the year ended March 31, 2025 decreased by 57.32% and the median 

remuneration by 13.08 %. 

 

5. Comparison of remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the 

performance of the Company: 

While PAT decrease by 57.32% from Rs. 353.70 Lakhs in 2024-25 to Rs. 828.74 

Lakhs in 2023-24, the total remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel is Rs. 35.61 

Lakhs in 2024-25.  

 

6.  During the financial year 2024-25, there was increase in the salary of the 

employees. 

 

7.  During the year ended March 31, 2025, there was Three (03) employee who are 

not a director of the Company and in receipt of remuneration of in excess or 

equivalent of the highest paid director of the Company.  

Place: Prantij      By Order of Board of Directors 
Date: 29.05.2025      For, Airo Lam Limited 
        CIN: L20211GJ2007PLC052019 
 
 
                                                                      Sd/-                               Sd/- 
Registered office:    Pravinbhai N. Patel        Sureshbhai H. Patel 
Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, Chairman & MD         Whole-Time Director 
N.H. No. 8, Dalpur, Prantij - 383120, DIN: 01840244          DIN: 02223842 
Gujarat, India. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
Pursuant to Regulation 34 and Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Management Discussion and 

Analysis Report are as follows: 

 

Indian Economic Overview: 

 

The Indian economy during the fiscal year 2024-2025 witnessed a mix 

of challenges and opportunities, shaped by both domestic and 

global factors. Here is a concise overview of key economic aspects 

during this period: 

 

1. Growth and GDP: Real GDP (constant prices) grew by 

approximately 6.5%, reaching an estimated ₹187.95 lakh crore, 

up from ₹176.51 lakh crore in FY 2023-24—against a growth of 

9.2% the previous year. Nominal GDP (current prices) rose by 

9.9%, hitting about ₹331.03 lakh crore, compared to ₹301.23 

lakh crore in FY 2023-24. The sharp deceleration to 6.5% real 

growth marks the slowest annual growth in four years, despite a 

strong rebound in Q4 where GDP registered 7.4% growth. IMF 

and IBEF also estimate real GDP growth at around 6.4% for FY 

2024-25, attributing resilience to consumption, service sector 

strength, and agriculture. 

 

 

 

 

59



 
 

5 1  
 

 

 

 

2. Inflation: Inflation eased significantly, with retail CPI dropping to 

near–six-year lows around 3.16%, enabling the RBI to prioritize 

growth over price control. In response, the RBI slashed its repo 

rate by 50 basis points to 5.50% and reduced the cash reserve 

ratio by 100 basis points, marking its most aggressive easing in 

five years 

 

3. Fiscal Deficit and Government Measures: While detailed fiscal 

metrics aren't in the latest sources, the government continued 

its emphasis on public investments and structural reforms. 

Strategic actions include a $20 billion domestic-consumption 

boost and GST simplification, aiming to counter external shocks 

like steep U.S. tariffs. Additionally, a parliamentary panel has 

called for raising the investment-to-GDP ratio from 31% to 35%, 

alongside reforms across energy and agriculture sectors to 

reignite growth toward 8% annually. 

 

4. Foreign Direct Investment (FDI): The imposition of 50% U.S. tariffs 

is dampening export competitiveness, potentially shaving off 

around 40 basis points from GDP growth. Nevertheless, S&P 

upgraded India’s sovereign rating to “BBB”, citing strong macro 

fundamentals and fiscal discipline—a move that should bolster 

investor confidence. 

 

5. Agriculture and Rural Economy: While recent data on 

agriculture is sparse, earlier reports highlight its steady 

contribution to domestic demand—fueled by favorable 
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monsoons. IBEF notes private consumption grew 7.3%, and 

GFCF (investments) rose 6.4%, with the agriculture sector 

supporting rural demand. 

 

India’s FY 2024-25 economic performance shows a notable 

slowdown to 6.5% real GDP growth, the lowest in four years, yet 

supported by a resilient Q4 and improved inflation dynamics. 

Monetary easing and fiscal reforms are the main policy levers in play, 

alongside structural push and rating upgrades that could aid investor 

sentiment. Going forward, challenges from global trade tensions 

persist, emphasizing the need for continued reforms, expansion in 

consumption, and investment-led growth. 

 

Performance of major economies: 

 

 United States: 2025 real GDP growth is projected to slow to 

approximately 1.6%, down from 2.8% in 2024, according to the 

OECD 

 China: Forecasts indicate a slowdown from 5.0% real GDP 

growth in 2024 to approximately 4.5% in 2025. 

 United Kingdom: The OECD and IMF forecasts cluster around 

1.1–1.2% GDP growth in 2025. 

 Japan: Real GDP growth for 2025 is projected at around 0.7%, 

per OECD forecasts. 

 Germany: The OECD projects 0.4% real GDP growth in 2025  

(Source: OECD, Trading Economics, IMF data, Investopedia) 
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Indian Market Overview: 

 

Laminates 

 

The India decorative laminates market was valued at approximately USD 1.89 

billion in 2024, with a forecasted CAGR of ~4.8% over 2025–2033. Another 

estimation pegged the CAGR at ~5% during 2025–2030. 

(Source: IMARC Group) 

 

Decorative veneers 

 

The India veneer market stood at USD 1.54 billion in 2024, expected to grow to 

USD 2.03 billion by 2033, at a CAGR of ~3.17%. 

(Source: IMARC Group) 

 

Plywood & Doors 

 

The India plywood market was valued at INR 235.1 billion in FY 2024-25, with 

expectations to grow to INR 387.9 billion by FY 2033-34. Broader combined India 

plywood and laminates market reached USD 6.1 billion in 2024, with projections 

to hit USD 9.13 billion by 2030 (≈ 6.8% CAGR) 

(source: IMARC Group OpenPR) 

 

In conclusion, the future of the laminates, veneers, and doors industries in India 

looks promising, with continued growth expected in the coming years. The 

market is likely to benefit from the ongoing urbanization, rising income levels, and 

increased consumer awareness of quality and design. However, companies will 

need to navigate challenges related to raw material sourcing, environmental 

sustainability, and intense competition. Innovation, branding, and expanding 

distribution networks will be key to maintaining a competitive edge. 
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Demand drivers 

The key drivers of the plywood market are: 

 
 Construction & Real Estate Growth 

Rapid urbanization, housing projects, and government-led infrastructure schemes 
(e.g., Smart Cities Mission, Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana) are fueling plywood demand 
for flooring, wall paneling, roofing, and formwork. 

 Furniture & Interior Décor Industry 

Rising demand for modular furniture, kitchens, and office interiors is a major growth 
driver. 

Increasing preference for customized, lightweight, and durable furniture supports 
plywood consumption. 

 Growing Middle-Class & Lifestyle Changes 

Higher disposable incomes and lifestyle upgrades are pushing consumers towards 
aesthetic, branded, and premium plywood products. 

 Commercial & Institutional Demand 

Expansion in retail, hospitality, healthcare, and education infrastructure is driving 
demand for durable plywood in interiors, partitions, and fixtures. 

 Packaging Industry 

Plywood is widely used in industrial packaging, pallets, and crates due to its strength 
and reusability, especially for heavy machinery and exports. 

 Shift Towards Organized & Branded Segment 

Consumers are moving from unorganized local players to organized brands offering 
certified, eco-friendly, termite-resistant plywood. 

Increasing awareness of quality, fire resistance, and sustainability boosts branded 
plywood demand. 

 Export Potential 
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Rising global demand for Indian plywood and laminates—particularly from the Middle 
East, Africa, and Asia-Pacific—supports long-term growth. 

 Sustainability & Eco-Friendly Demand 

Growing use of eco-friendly adhesives, E0/E1 emission standard products, and FSC-
certified wood due to stricter regulations and consumer awareness. 

 
(Source: Population U, Business Standard, Indian Retailer, Statista, India.com, Business 
Today.in, TechSci Research) 
 
 

Discussion on performance, Financial Year 2024-25 

 
Balance Sheet 
 

 Total assets for FY 2024-25 stood at Rs. 15900.43 Lakhs compared to Rs. 
14420.33 Lakhs in FY 2023-24. 
 

 Net worth stood at Rs. 7599.20 Lakhs as on 31st March, 2025 compared to Rs. 
7233.01 Lakhs as on 31st March, 2024. 

 
Profit and loss statement  
 
•  Revenues from operations increased from Rs. 20518.57 Lakhs in FY 2023-24 to Rs. 

21438.68 Lakhs in FY 2024-25 
 
•  Profit after tax was witnessed at Rs. 353.70 Lakhs in FY 2024-25 as compared to FY 

828.74 Lakhs in FY 2023-24 
 
•  Depreciation and amortisation stood at Rs. 458.56 Lakhs in FY 2024-25 compared 

to 385.75 Lakhs in FY 2023-24. 
 
 
Risks and Concerns 

The Company has framed a sound Risk Management Policy to identify and 

evaluate business risks and opportunities and the same has become integral part 

of Company’s day to day operations. The key business risks identified by the 

Company are as follows viz. Industry Risk, Management and Operations Risk, 

Market Risk, Government Policy risk, Liquidity risk, and Systems risk. The Company 

has in place adequate mitigation plans for the aforesaid risks. 
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Human Resources and Industrial Relations 

The Company has created an enabling working environment where employees 

are selectively recruited, trained and provided with superior career growth. During 

the year under review, the Company organised various training programmes with a 

focus on enhancing functional and behaviourial competencies. The Company 

enjoys a harmonious relationship with factory workers; it comprises a blend of 

millennial and experienced employees.  

 

Internal control systems and their adequacy 

The Company has adequate system of internal control to safeguard and protect 

from loss, unauthorized use or disposition of its assets. All the transactions are 

properly authorised, recorded and reported to the Management. The Company is 

following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the 

books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The internal management of 

the company checks and verifies the internal control and monitors them in 

accordance with policy adopted by the company. The Company continues to 

ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures commensurate with its size 

and nature of its business. 

 

Cautionary Statement 

The statements in the ‘management discussion and analysis’ section describing the 

Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and prediction may be considered 

as forward looking statements. All statements that address expectations or 

projections about the future, including but not limited to statements about the 

Company’s strategy for growth, product development, market positioning, 

expenditures and financial results are based on certain assumptions and 

expectations of future events. The Company cannot guarantee that these 

assumptions and expectations are accurate or will be realised. The Company 

assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise any forward-looking 

statement on the basis of any subsequent developments, information or events. 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

Corporate Governance and practices in accordance with the provisions of 
Regulation 34 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015: 

 
 
A. Company’s philosophy on Code of Governance: 

 
 
Corporate Governance is about commitment to values and about ethical business 

conduct. Corporate Governance primarily involves transparency, complete 

disclosure, independent monitoring of the state of affairs and being fair to all 

stakeholders. 

 

The objective of the Company is not only meet the statutory requirements of the 

code but to go well beyond it by instituting such systems and procedures as are in 

accordance with the latest global trend of making management completely 

transparent and institutionally sound. 

 

The Company has always believed in the concept of good Corporate 

Governance involving transparency, empowerment, accountability and integrity 

with a view to enhance stakeholder value. The company has professionals on its 

Board of Directors who get actively involved in the deliberations of the board as 

well as committees of directors on all important policy matters. 

 

B. Board of Directors: 
 

a) Composition: 
 
The present Board of Directors consists of half of Non-executive / Independent 

directors. As of date, the Board Comprises of 3 (three) whole time / executive 

directors/Managing Director/Director and 3 (Three) non-executive/ Independent 

directors. The Number of independent directors on the Board are 3(Three) and 

others are promoter director. 
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The company has an executive chairman and the number of non-executive 

directors is 50% of the total number of directors. The Company, therefore, meets 

with the requirements relating to the composition of the Board of Directors. 

 

The composition and category of Directors are as follows: 

 
Category Name Of Directors 

Promoter & Executive Director Mr. Pravin N. Patel 

(Chairman & Managing Director) 

Mr. Hardikbhai P. Patel 

(Director) 

Mr. Suresh H. Patel 

(Whole Time Director) 

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Mehulbhai J. Patel 

(Independent Director) 

Mr. Manilal K. Patel 

(Independent Director) 

Mrs. Mamtaben P. Patel 

(Independent Director) 

 
Attendance of each Director at the Board meetings, Last Annual General Meeting 

and Number of Other Directorships and Chairmanships / Memberships of 

Committees of each Director in various companies, during the year 2024-2025: 

 

Name of 

Directors 

Attendance 

Particulars 

No. of Directorships and Committee 

Memberships / Chairmanships 

Board 

Meetings 

Last AGM Other 

Directorship 

Committee 

Membership

Committee 

Chairmansh

ip 

Pravin N. Patel 08 Present None None None 

Hardik P. Patel 08 Present None None None 

Suresh H. Patel 08 Present None None None 

Mamta P. Patel 08 Present None None None 

Manilal K. Patel 08 Present None None None 

67



 
 

5 9  
 

Mehulbhai J. 

Patel 

08 Present None None None 

 

Number of Board Meetings held and dates on which held: 

 

08 (Eight) Board Meetings were held during the year 2024-2025, as against the 

minimum requirement of 4 meetings. The dates on which the meetings were held 

are 27.05.2024, 19.06.2024, 03.08.2024, 05.08.2024, 29.08.2024, 29.10.2024, 12.02.2025 

and 31.03.2025. The Company has held one meeting every quarter and the 

maximum time gap between two meetings was not more than four months.  

 

The Information as required under Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is 

made available to the Board. The agenda and the papers for consideration at the 

Board meeting are circulated to the Directors in advance before the meeting. 

Adequate information is circulated as part of the Board papers and is also made 

available at the Board Meeting to enable the Board to take informed decisions. 

Where it is not practicable to attach supporting / relevant document(s) to the 

Agenda, the same are tabled at the meeting and specific reference to this is 

made in the agenda. 

 

MD Certification:  

 

Mr. Pravinbhai Nathabhai Patel, Managing Director of the Company is giving 

annual certification on financial reporting and internal controls to the Board in 

compliance with Regulation 17[8] of SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements] Regulations, 2015 [Listing Regulations]. 

 

Code of Conduct: 

 

The Company has formulated and implemented a Code of Conduct for all Board 

Members and senior management personnel of the Company in compliance with 

Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
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Audit Committee: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted an Audit Committee on 5th 

April, 2017. Further, the constitution of Audit Committee has been changed on May 

21, 2019. Presently, the Audit Committee comprising of 3 (Three) independent 

Directors namely Mrs. Mamtaben Premanshu Patel, Chairman and Mr. Manilal 

Kanjibhai Patel and Mr. Mehulbhai Jayantilal Patel as members of the committee. 

 

The Constitution, composition and functioning of the Audit Committee also meets 

with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 

18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

 

Terms of Reference: 

 

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include approving and 

implementing the audit procedures, reviewing financial reporting systems, internal 

control systems and control procedures and ensuring compliance with the 

regulatory guidelines and also include those specified under the Regulation 18 of 

SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as well as under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 

2013. 
 
Powers of the Audit Committee: 

 

The Audit Committee has powers that include the following: 

a) To investigate any activity of the Company within its terms of reference 

b) To seek information from any employee 

c) To obtain outside legal and other professional advice 

d) To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers 

necessary. 

 

Names of Members and Chairman of the Audit Committee and the meetings 

attended by them during the Financial Year 2023-24 ending on 31st March, 2024, 

are as under: 
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Name of 
Directors 

Category Status / 
Designation 

No. of 
Meeting 
attended 

Mrs. Mamtaben 
Premanshu 
Patel 

Independent 
Director 

Chairman 4 

Mr. Manilal 
Kanjibhai Patel 

Independent 
Director 

Member 4 

Mr. Mehul 
Jayantibhai 
Patel 

Independent 
Director 

Member 4 

 
The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the year 2024-2025. The dates on which 

the Audit Committee meetings were held are 27.05.2024, 03.08.2024, 23.10.2024, 

12.02.2025. The maximum time gap between any two meetings was not more than 

120 days. 

 

Members of the Audit Committee have requisite accounting, financial and 

management expertise. 

 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

 

The Nomination and remuneration committee is entrusted with the responsibility of 

finalizing the remuneration of Executive / Whole Time Directors. 

 

Presently, Nomination and remuneration committee comprising of 3 (Three) 

independent Non-Executive Directors namely Mrs. Mamtaben Premanshu Patel, 

Chairman and Mr. Manilal Kanjibhai Patel and Mr. Mehulbhai Jayantibhai Patel as 

members of the committee. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the 

Secretary to the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

 

The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the year 2024-2025. The dates on which 

the Committee meetings were held are 27.05.2024, 03.08.2024, 23.10.2024, 

12.02.2025. It has complied with the provisions of Regulation 19 of SEBI (LODR) 

Regulations, 2015. 
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Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted a Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee as per Regulation 20 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.  

 

Presently, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprising of Mrs. Mamtaben 

Premanshu Patel, Chairman of the committee and Mr. Manilal Kanjibhai Patel and 

Mr. Mehulbhai Jayantibhai Patel as members of the committee, inter alia, approve 

issue of duplicate certificates and oversee and reviews all matters connected with 

the securities transfers. The Committee also looks into redressal of shareholders’ 

complaints like transfer of shares, non-receipts of balance sheet, non-receipt of 

declared dividends etc. The Committee overseas the performance of the Registrar 

and Transfer Agents and recommends measures for overall improvement in the 

quality of investor services. As required by the provisions of Regulation 20 of SEBI 

(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company has designated the below cited e-mail ID 

of the Grievance Redressal Division /Compliance Officer Mr. Chintan K Mehuriya 

exclusively for the purpose of registering complaints by investors. E-mail ID – 

cs1@airolam.com 

 

None of the request for transfers, dematerialization and re-materialization was 

pending for approval as on 31st March, 2025. The Committee met 4 (Four) times 

during the year 2024-2025. The dates on which Committee meetings were held are 

27.05.2024, 03.08.2024, 23.10.2024, 12.02.2025. 

 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee: 

 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Company is constituted as 

per Section 135 of the Act, 2013. CSR Committee, inter alia, had formulated and 

recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which 

indicates the activities to be undertaken by the Company as specified in Schedule 

VII to the Act, 2013. The CSR Committee recommends the amount of expenditure 

to be incurred on the CSR activities and monitor the CSR activities undertaken by 

the Company from time to time. 
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Terms of Reference of the CSR Committee are as provided hereunder: 

 

(i) To formulate, monitor and recommend to the Board the CSR Policy including the 

activities to be undertaken by the Company; 

(ii) To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities 

undertaken; 

(iii) To monitor the implementation of the framework of Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy; 

(iv) To evaluate the social impact of the Company’s CSR Activities; 

(v) To review the Company’s disclosure of CSR matters; 

(vi) To submit a report on CSR matters to the Board at such intervals and in such 

format as may be prescribed; 

(vii) To consider other functions, as defined by the Board or as may be stipulated 

under any law, rule or regulation including Corporate Social Responsibility 

Voluntary 

 

Composition of the Committee: 

As on March 31, 2025, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the 

Company comprises of 3 (Three) Directors. 

 

Name Designation Category 

Mr. Pravin Nathabhai Patel Chairman Promoter - Executive 

Mr. Suresh Hansrajbhai Patel Member Promoter - Executive 

Mrs. Mamta Premanshubhai 

Patel 

Member Independent - Non 

Executive 

 

The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the year 2024-2025. The dates on which 

the CSR Committee meetings were held are 27.05.2024, 03.08.2024, 23.10.2024, 

12.02.2025.  
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Quarter-wise Summery of Investors’ Complaints received and resolved to the 

satisfaction of the shareholders during the financial year 2024-2025. 

 
Quarter Period Complaints 

Position at 
the 

beginning of 
the quarter 

Complaint
s 

received 
during the 

quarter 

Complaint
s 

resolved 
during the 

quarter 

Complaints 
pending at 
the end of 
From to the 

quarter 

From To 

01/04/2024 30/06/2024 NIL NIL NIL NIL 

01/07/2024 30/09/2024 NIL NIL NIL NIL 

01/10/2024 31/12/2024 NIL NIL NIL NIL 

01/01/2025 31/03/2025 NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Total NIL NIL NIL NIL 

Complaint pending at beginning of the year = NIL 

Complaint received during the year = NIL 

Complaint resolved during the year = NIL 

Complaint pending at the end of the year = NIL 

 

Annual General Meetings: 

 

Location, Date and Time for last three Annual General Meetings were as follows: 

 
Year Location Date Time 

2018-19 Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, N.H. No. 

8, Village- Dalpur, Ta. Prantij, Gujarat 

383120. 

30.09.2019 03.00 PM 

2019-20 Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, N.H. No. 

8, Village- Dalpur, Ta. Prantij, Gujarat 

383120. 

30.09.2020 01:30 PM 

2020-21 Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, N.H. No. 

8, Village- Dalpur, Ta. Prantij, Gujarat 

383120. 

29.09.2021 01:30 PM 

2021-22 Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, N.H. No. 27.09.2022 01:30 PM 
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8, Village- Dalpur, Ta. Prantij, Gujarat 

383120. 

2022-23 Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, N.H. No. 

8, Village- Dalpur, Ta. Prantij, Gujarat 

383120. 

29.09.2023 03.00 PM 

2023-24 Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, N.H. No. 

8, Village- Dalpur, Ta. Prantij, Gujarat 

383120. 

03.09.2024 03.00 PM 

 
Disclosures: 
 
The company has entered into transaction with related party as mentioned in 

“Annexure-E”. However, they are in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s 

length basis. 

 

Means of Communication: 

 

The Company regularly intimates quarterly un-audited as well as yearly audited 

financial results to the Stock Exchanges, immediately after the same are taken on 

record by the Board. These results are normally published on National Stock 

Exchange of India Limited.  

 

General Shareholder Information: 

 
Eighteenth Annual General Meeting 

Date: 25th September, 2025 

Time: 03.00 P.M. 

Venue: Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, N.H. No. 8, Village- Dalpur, Ta. Prantij, 

Gujarat 383120. 

 

Financial Year / Calendar 

 

The Company follows April to March as its Financial Year.  
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Date of Book Closure 

 

From Friday, 19th September, 2025 to Thursday, 25th September, 2025 (both days 

inclusive). 

 

Listing of Equity Shares on Stock Exchanges at: 

 

National Stock Exchange Limited, Exchange Plaza, Plot no. C/1, G Block, 

Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra(E), Mumbai - 400051, Maharashtra. 

 

Stock Code: 

 

National Stock Exchange Limited: AIROLAM 

Demat ISIN Number in NSDL & CDSL for Equity Shares: INE801L01010 

 

Registrar and Transfer Agents: 

MUFG Intime India Private Limited  

Registered Office: 

C-101, Embassy 247, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400 083, Maharashtra, 

Tel: +91 022 4918 6000 

Website: www.in.mpms.mufg.com 

 

Share Transfer / Demat System: 

 

All the shares related work is being undertaken by our R & T Agent, Link In-time India 

Private Limited Mumbai. To expedite the process of share transfer, transmission, split, 

consolidation, re-materialization and de-materialization etc. of securities of the 

Company, the Board of Directors has delegated the power of approving the same 

to the Company’s R & T Agent under the supervision and control of the 

Compliance Officer Mr. Chintan K. Mehuriya, who is placing a summary statement 

of transfer/transmission etc. of securities of the Company at the meeting of the 

Board. 
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Share lodged for transfer at the R & T Agents address are normally processed and 

approved within 15 days from the date of it’s received, subject to the documents 

been valid and complete in all respect. The investors / shareholders grievances are 

also taken up by our R & T Agent. 

 

The Company has obtained and filed with the Stock Exchange(s), the half yearly 

certificates from a Company Secretary in Practice as required Clause 40(9) & 

40(10) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015. 

 

De- materialization of Shares and Liquidity 

 

The Company’s Shares are in compulsory Demat mode and as on 31st March, 2025 

all the shares i.e. 100% Equity shares of the company are held in dematerialized 

Form. 

 

High/Low of monthly Market Price of the Company’s Equity Shares 

 

The monthly movement of Equity Share prices on NSE during the year is summarized 

below: 

Particulars High (in Rs.) Low (in Rs.) 
April, 2024 188.65 164.20 
May, 2024 161.45 139.20 
June, 2024 143.95 139.37 
July, 2024 129.80 122.20 
August, 2024 133.63 131 
September, 2024 132.89 130 
October, 2024 119 114.06 
November, 2024 127.39 118.81 
December, 2024 131.97 126.60 
January, 2025 128.68 121.81 
February, 2025 106.70 95.76 
March, 2025 95.99 87 
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Shareholding Pattern: 

 

Sr. No. Category As on March 31, 2025 As on March 31, 2024 

Nos. of 
Shares 
Held 

Voting 
Strength 

% 

Nos. of 
Shares 
held 

Voting 
Strength 

% 
1 Promoter& Promoter 

Group 
7971571 53.14 7953599 53.02 

2 Mutual Fund, Trust & 
UTI 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

3 Bank, Financial 
Institutions (FI's), 
Insurance 
Companies 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

4 Foreign Institutional 
Investors (FII's) 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

5 Private Bodies 
Corporate 

256500 1.71 162685 1.08 

6 Indian Public 6692189 44.61 6798582 45.32 
7 Clearing Member 0 0 0 0 
8 Others                            

(Non Resident 
Indians) 

81740 0.54 87134 0.58 

Total 15002000 100.00 15002000 100.00 
 

 

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report: 

 

The Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report of the Company prepared in 

terms of SEBI Circular No. D&CC/FITTC/CIR-16/2002 dated December 31, 2002 

reconciling the total shares held in both the depositories, viz. NSDL and CDSL with 

the total issued / paid-up capital of the Company were placed before the Board 

of Directors every quarter and also submitted to NSE every quarter. 
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Compliance by the Company: 

 

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing 

Agreement with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited, regulations and 

guidelines of SEBI (LODR), Regulation 2015.  

 
Place: Prantij      By Order of Board of Directors 
Date: 29.05.2025      For, Airo Lam Limited 
        CIN: L20211GJ2007PLC052019 
 
 
                                                                      Sd/-                               Sd/- 
Registered office:    Pravinbhai N. Patel     Sureshbhai H. Patel 
Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, Chairman & MD      Whole-Time Director  
N.H. No. 8, Dalpur, Prantij - 383120, DIN: 01840244      DIN: 02223842 
Gujarat, India. 
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AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
 
We have examined compliance by Airo Lam Limited (the Company) with the 

requirements under Clause 52 of the Listing Agreement and Regulation 15(2) of 

the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as 

applicable from time to time, entered into by the Company with the National 

Stock Exchange for the year ended on March 31, 2025. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us and the representation by the Directors and the 

management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of 

Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 52 of the Listing Agreement and 

Regulation 15(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 as applicable from time to time. 

 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. Our examination was limited to procedures and 

implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance 

of the conditions of Corporate Governance. The examination is neither an audit 

nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company or the 

corporate governance report of the Company. 

 

We state that no investor’s grievance is pending unresolved by the Company for 

a period exceeding one month against the Company as per the records 

maintained by the stakeholder relationship committee. 

 
We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance to the future 

viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 

management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
Place: Ahmedabad       For, Piyush J. Shah & Co. 
Date:  29.05.2025      Chartered Accountants 
                                                                                                  FRN: 121172W 
 
                                                           Sd/- 

Nitin Agarwal 
Partner 
M. No. 143915 
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CERTIFICATE PURSUANT TO REGULATION 17(8) OF THE SEBI (LISTING 
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2018 
 
We, Mr. Pravinkumar Nathalal Patel, Managing Director (CEO) and Ms. Keya 

Patel, CFO do hereby certify to the Board that: 

 

a) We have reviewed the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Profit and 

Loss Accountant and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that 

date and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 

i.  The said statements do not contain any false, misleading or materially 

untrue statements or figures or omit any material fact, which may make 

the statements or figures contained therein misleading; 

 

ii. The said statements together present a true and fair view of the 

Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting 

standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 

b)  There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered 

into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative 

of the Company's code of conduct. 

 

c)  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for 

financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the 

internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and 

have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the 

design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware 

and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 

d)    We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

 

i.     Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the 

year, if any; 
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ii. Significant changes in accounting policies during the year if any and

that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial

statements; and

iii. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the

involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having

a significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial

reporting.

Place: Prantij  By Order of Board of Directors 
Date: 29.05.2025  For, Airo Lam Limited 

CIN: L20211GJ2007PLC052019 

Sd/-    Sd/- 
Registered office:   Pravinbhai N. Patel   Keya Patel 
Survey No. 355,  Chairman    CFO 
Nananpur Road,   DIN: 01840244 
N.H. No. 8, Dalpur, 
Prantij - 383120, 
Gujarat, India. 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
To, 
The Members of Airo Lam Limited 
Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Airo Lam 
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, 
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 
on that date and notes to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a 
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein 
after referred to as “the Standalone Financial Statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information 
required by the Companies Act 2013 (herein after referred to as “the Act”) in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (herein after 
referred as “the IND AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025 and its profit, 
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date. 

Basis of Our Opinion 

We conducted our audit of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with 
the Standard on Auditing (herein after referred to as “SAs”) specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 
the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (herein after 
referred as “ICAI”) together with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules made 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
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evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current year. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide separate opinion on these matters. 

We have not determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters 
to be communicated in our report. 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and 
Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report, Business Responsibility and 
Sustainability Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but 
does not include the Standalone Financial Statements, Consolidated Financial 
Statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) specified 
under the Section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
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accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone 
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone 
Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls 
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system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements 
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of 
a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may be 
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial 
Statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept 
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Standalone balance sheet, the Standalone Statement of profit and loss 
including Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with 
the IND AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 
31stMarch, 2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on 31stMarch, 2025, from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal financial control over with reference to the Standalone 
Financial Statements of the Company. 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended: 

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the 
information given to us, the remuneration paid by the company to its 
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of 
the Act read with Schedule V of the Act. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 

i. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its Standalone 
Financial Statement. Refer Note 38 to the Standalone Financial Statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
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contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 
iii. During the year, there were no amounts which are required to be transferred, 

to the Investor’s Education and Protection Fund by the company. 
iv. i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 

belief, no funds (Which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in 
any other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall: 

 directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of 
the Holding Company or its subsidiary companies incorporated in India 
or 

 provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries 

ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 
have been received by the Company to or any other person or entity, 
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall: 

 directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of 
the Funding Parties or 

 provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries 

iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has 
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of 
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement. 
 

v. The company or its holding company has not declared and paid any 
dividend during the year. 

vi. Based on our examination, which includes test checks, the company has 
used accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature of recording an 
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year 
for all the relevant transactions recorded in the software.  
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance 
of the audit trail feature being tampered with. The audit trail has been 
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record 
retention. 

 
2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), 
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issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 
section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure B” a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable. 

 
For Piyush J. Shah & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 121172W   
 
 
 
Sd/- 
CA Nitin A. Agarwal 
Partner 
M. No: 143915 
UDIN: 25143915BMIAIS3108 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 29th May, 2025 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report on the Standalone Financial 
Statements of Airo Lam Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements’ section of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Act. 

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone 
Financial Statements of Airo Lam Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2025 in 
conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company 
for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to 
Standalone Financial Statements criteria established by the company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 
2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”). 

Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial 
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the 
ICAI and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and whether such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls system with reference to the Standalone 
Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 
controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone 
Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing 
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and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of the internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedure selected depends on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls 
system with reference to the Standalone Financial Statements.  

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Standalone Financial 
Statements 

A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial 
Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial 
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors 
of the company; and               (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to 
Standalone Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls were operating 
effectively as at 31st March 2025, based on the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. 

 

For Piyush J. Shah & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 121172W   
 
 
Sd/- 
CA Nitin A. Agarwal 
Partner 
M. No: 143915 
UDIN: 25143915BMIAIS3108 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 29th May, 2025 
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the Standalone Financial 
Statements of        Airo Lam Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of Airo Lam Limited of even 
date) 

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by 
the Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal 
course of audit, we state that: 

i. In respect of The Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and 
Intangible assets: 

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full 
particulars, including quantitative details and situation of Property, 
Plant and Equipment. 
(B)The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars 
of intangible assets. 

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant 
and Equipment so to cover all the assets once every three years which, 
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company 
and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, 
Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year and 
were physically verified by Management during the year. According to 
the information and Explanations given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based 
on our examination of records, we report that, the title deeds of all 
immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the 
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the 
lessee), disclosed in the financial statements included under Property, 
Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the 
balance sheet date. 

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, the Company has not revalued any of 
its Property, Plant and Equipment, including intangible assets during the 
year. 

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, No proceedings have been initiated 
during the year or are pending against the company as at March 31, 
2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988(as amended in 2016) and rules made 
thereunder. 
 

ii.  
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(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, the physical verification of inventory 
has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management and 
in our opinion the coverage and procedure of such verification by the 
management is appropriate. There is no discrepancies of 10% or more 
in the aggregate for each class of inventory was noticed. 

(b) The company has sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5.00 
crores, in aggregate, during the year, from banks financial institutions 
on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns and 
statement filed by the company with such banks or financial institutions 
are in agreement with the books of accounts of the company. 

Sr. No. Quarter Ended Particulars Amount 
(As per 

Financial 
Statement) 

Amount 
(As per 

Statement 
filled with 
the Bank) 

Difference 

1 30th June 2024 Value of 
Stock 

7157.65 6953.21 204.44 

2 30th September, 
2024 

Value of 
Stock 

7129.52 7172.20 (42.68) 

3 31st December, 
2024 

Value of 
Stock 

7503.21 7529.29 (23.08) 

4 31st March, 2025 Value of 
Stock 

8272.70 8033.00 239.70 

 
 

iii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, during the year, the company has made investments in 
companies, firms, LLPS and granted unsecured loans to other parties, 
during the year, in respect of which: 

(a) The company has provided loans or advances in the nature of loans 
to other entity during the year. 
A. Aggregate amount of loan given and guarantee provided to 
subsidiaries is Rs. Nil and balances of loan given of Rs. 236.65/- Lakhs 
are outstanding as on March 31, 2025. 
B. During the year, aggregate amount of loan provided to other 
parties is Rs. Nil and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date is 
Rs. 1.2/- Lakhs. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, the investment made and the terms 
and conditions of the grant of loans, during the year are, prima facie, 
not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. 

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records In respect of the loans granted by the 
company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of 
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interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts 
and receipts of interest are generally been regular as per situation. 

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, there is no overdue amount remaining 
outstanding as at the balance sheet date. 

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, in respect of loans granted by the 
company which has fallen due during the year, neither any amount 
has been renewed or extended nor fresh loans granted to settle the 
overdue of existing loans given to the same parties. Accordingly, the 
clauses 3 (iii)(e) of the order is not applicable to the company. 

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, the company has not granted any 
loans and advances in the nature of loans either repayable on 
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment 
during the year. Accordingly, the clauses 3 (iii)(f) of the order is not 
applicable to the company. 

 
iv. According to the information and explanation given to us and based 

on our examination of records, the company has complied with the 
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and 
securities provided, as applicable. 
 

v. According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, the company has not accepted any 
deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Accordingly, 
the clauses 3(v) of the order is not applicable to the company. 
 

vi. According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, the maintenance of cost records has 
not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) 
of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities 
carried out by the company. Accordingly, the clauses 3 (vi) of the 
order is not applicable to the company. 
 

vii. According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, in our opinion: 

(a) the company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues, including GST, Provident fund, Income Tax, Sales Tax, 
duty of custom, VAT. Cess and other material statutory dues 
applicable to it with appropriate authorities. 
Further, there were no undisputed amounts outstanding at the year-
end for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable. 
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(b) According to the information provided there are statutory dues which 

have not been deposited as on March 31, 2025 on account of disputes 
except for the following: 

 
Demand under 

the Act 
Pending At Assessment 

Year 
Amount 

Disputed 
Income Tax 
Demand under 
the Gujarat 
Value Added 
Tax Act 

Commissioner 
of VAT  

2014-15 159.69/- 

 

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income 
that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in 
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961(43 of 1961). 
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (viii) of the order is not applicable to 
the company. 
 

ix.  
(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 

on our examination of records, the Company has not defaulted in 
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest 
thereon to any lender. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(ix)(a) of the 
order is not applicable to the company. 

(b) Based on the information and explanations obtained by us, the 
company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or 
financial institutions or any other lender. 

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, on an overall examination of the 
financial statements of the company, the term loans were applied for 
the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, on an overall examination of the 
financial statements of the company, the funds raised on short term 
basis have, prima facie, not been used for long term purposes by the 
company. 

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, on an overall examination of the 
financial statements of the company, the Company has not taken any 
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligations of its subsidiaries or associate companies. Accordingly, 
provisions of clause 3 (ix)(e) of the order is not applicable to the 
company. 
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(f) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, the company has not raised any loans 
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or 
associate companies. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (ix)(f) of order 
is not applicable to the company. 
 

x.  
(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 

on our examination of records, the company has not raised the money 
by the Way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instrument) during the year. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (x)(a) of 
order is not applicable to the company. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, during the year the company has not 
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
convertible debenture (fully or partly or optionally). Accordingly, 
provisions of clause 3 (x)(b) of the order is not applicable to the 
company. 
 

xi.  
(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 

on our examination of records, no fraud by the Company and on the 
Company has been noticed or reported during the year covered by 
our audit. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xi)(a) is not applicable to 
the company. 

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, no report under sub-section (12) of 
section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of 
this report. 

(c) We have been informed that there is no whistle-blower complaints 
received by the company during the year (and upto the date of this 
report). Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xi)(c) or the order is not 
applicable to the company. 
 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of 
clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 
 

xiii. In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 
of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions 
with the related parties and the details of related party transactions 
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 
applicable IND AS. 
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xiv.  
(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based 

on our examination of records, in our opinion the Company has an 
adequate internal audit system commensurate the size and the nature 
of its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under 
audit, issued to the company during the year and till date in 
determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedure. 
 

xv. According to the information and explanation given to us and based 
on our examination of records, in our opinion during the year the 
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with its Directors 
or persons connected with its directors. Accordingly, the provisions of 
the clause 3 (xv) of the order is not applicable to the company. 
 

xvi.  
(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of 

the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, the 
provisions of the clause 3 (xvi)(a) of the order is not applicable to the 
company. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based 
on our examination of the records, the Company has not conducted 
any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly, 
clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the company. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based 
on our examination of the records, the Company is not a Core 
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the 
Reserve Bank of India, accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the order is not 
applicable to the company. 

(d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group 
(as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) 
Directions 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3 (xvi)(d) of 
the order is not applicable to the company. 

 
xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year 

covered by our audit and the immediately preceding financial year. 
 

xviii. There has been no resignation of statutory auditors of the company 
during the year.  

 
xix. On the basis of financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of 

realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 
information accompanying the financial statements and our 
knowledge of the board of directors and management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
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assumptions, nothing has come to come our attention, which causes 
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of 
audit report indicating that company is not capable of meeting its 
liability existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however 
state that this is not an assurance as to future viability of the company. 
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date 
of audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities failing due within a period of one year from the 
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when 
they fall due. 
 

xx.  
(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility 

(CSR) on ongoing or other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to 
a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance 
with second proviso to subsection (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. 
Accordingly, provisions of clause 3 (xx)(a) and 3 (xx)(b) of the order are 
not applicable to the company. 
 

 
For Piyush J. Shah & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 121172W   
 
 
 
CA Nitin A. Agarwal 
Partner 
M. No: 143915 
UDIN: 25143915BMIAIS3108 
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 29th May, 2025 
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 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

31‐Mar‐25 31‐Mar‐24

I. ASSETS
1 Non‐current assets
(a)  Property, plant & Equipment 02 5,762.92                        4,453.99                             

(b)  Capital work in progress ‐                                  ‐                                      

(c) Investment properties ‐                                  ‐                                      

(d) Goodwill ‐                                  ‐                                      

(e) Other intangible assets 03 0.40                                0.45                                    

(f) Intangible assets under development ‐                                  ‐                                      

(g) Biological assets other than bearer plants ‐                                  ‐                                      

(h) Financial assets

(i) Investments 04 73.02                              58.98                                  

(ii) Trade receivables ‐                                  ‐                                      

(iii) Loans ‐                                  ‐                                      

(iv) Others 154.64                            99.72                                  

(i)  Deferred tax assets (net) ‐                                  ‐                                      

(j) Other Non‐current assets ‐                                  ‐                                      

5,990.98                        4,613.14                             

2 Current assets
(a)  Inventories 06 8,272.70                        7,446.16                             

(b)  Financial assets

(i) Investments ‐                                  ‐                                      

(ii) Trade receivables 07 6,077.61                        5,493.94                             

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 08 26.44                             32.24                                 

(iv) Bank balance other than (iii) above 09 186.45                           145.12                               

(v) Loans 10 265.12                            140.74                                

(vi) Others 11 33.09                              71.37                                  

(c)  Other current assets 12 988.15                            1,090.78                             

(d) Current Tax Assets (net) 13 50.87                              ‐                                      

15,900.43                      14,420.33                          

21,891.40                      19,033.47                          

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity

(a)  Equity share capital 14 1,500.20                        1,500.20                             

(b)  Other equity 15 6,099.00                        5,732.81                             

7,599.20                        7,233.01                             

2 Liabilities

Non‐current liabilities

(a)  Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 16 1,870.25                        1,395.93                             

(ii) Trade payables ‐                                  ‐                                      

(iii) Lease Liability 17 35.23                              34.07                                  

(iv) Other financial liabilities 18 171.85                            115.55                                

(b) Provisions 19 146.59                            94.28                                  

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 20 409.29                            354.70                                

(d) Other Non‐Current Liabilities ‐                                  ‐                                      

2,633.21                        1,994.54                             

Particulars

Airo Lam Limited

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2025

Note 

Total Assets

CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019
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 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

31‐Mar‐25 31‐Mar‐24

Particulars

Airo Lam Limited

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2025

Note 

CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

3 Current liabilities

(a)  Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 21 6,946.37                        6,442.95                             

(ii) Trade payables 22

1,878.76                        740.13                                

1,623.68                        1,734.27                             

(iii) Lease Liability 23 43.40                              38.56                                  

(iv) Other financial liabilities 24 673.28                            548.69                                

(b) Other current liabilities 25 269.68                            170.47                                

(c) Provisions 26 223.82                            109.28                                

(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 27 ‐                                  21.58                                  

11,659.00                      9,805.93                             

21,891.40                      19,033.47                          

Summary of material accounting policies 01 to 61

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached

For Piyush J Shah & Co.

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. : 0121172W

     Sd/‐ Sd/‐ Sd/‐

CA Nitin A. Agarwal Pravin N. Patel Suresh H. Patel

Partner Chairman Whole Time Director

M. No.: 143915 DIN ‐ 01840244 DIN ‐ 02223842

UDIN: 25143915BMIAIS3108

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 29.05.2025 Sd/‐ Sd/‐

Keya Patel Chintan K. Mehuriya

CFO Company Secretary

Total Laibilities

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ii. total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

and small enterprises

i. total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
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Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

2024‐25 2023‐24

I. Revenue from operations 28 21,438.68                     20,518.57                    

II. Other Income 29 249.30                           145.10                          

III. Total Revenue (I + II) 21,687.97                     20,663.67                    

IV. Expenses:

Cost of raw material consumed 30 14,662.22                    13,974.28                   

Changes in Inventories of finished goods & Raw Material 31 (786.37)                         (1,006.24)                     

Employee benefits expenses 32 1,370.69                       1,272.79                      

Finance costs 33 722.88                           522.26                          

Depreciation and amortization expense 34 458.56                           385.75                          

Other expenses 35 4,752.02                       4,311.35                      

Total expenses (IV) 21,179.99                     19,460.18                    

V. Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (III‐IV) 507.98                           1,203.48                      

VI. Exceptional items  ‐                                 ‐                                

VII. Profit/(Loss) before tax (V ‐ VI) 507.98                           1,203.48                      

VIII. Tax expenses

(1) Current tax 102.14                           278.42                          

(2) Deferred tax 52.57                             51.76                            

(3) Short / (Excess) Provision (0.44)                              44.57                            

(4) MAT Credit utilized/(Receivable) ‐                                 ‐                                

IX. Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII‐ VIII) 353.70                           828.74                          

X. Profit/(Loss) for the period from discontinued operations

XI. Tax expenses of discontinued operations

XII. Profit/(Loss) after tax for the period from discontinued operations (X‐XI) ‐                                 ‐                                

XIII. 353.70                           828.74                          

XIV. Other comprehensive income

A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 14.50                             (28.87)                           

    (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (2.01)                              8.03                              

B) (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

    (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

XV. 366.19                           807.90                          

XII Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations): 36

(1) Basic 2.36                               5.52                              

(2) Diluted 2.36                               5.52                              

XII Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operations):

(1) Basic ‐                                 ‐                                

(2) Diluted ‐                                 ‐                                

XII Earnings per equity share (for discontinued & continuing operations):

(1) Basic 2.36                               5.52                              

(2) Diluted 2.36                               5.52                              

Summary of material accounting policies 01 to 61

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached

For Piyush J Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. : 0121172W

Sd/‐ Sd/‐ Sd/‐

CA Nitin A. Agarwal Pravin N. Patel Suresh H. Patel

Partner Chairman Whole Time Director

M. No.: 143915 DIN ‐ 01840244 DIN ‐ 02223842

UDIN: 25143915BMIAIS3108

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 29.05.2025 Sd/‐ Sd/‐

Keya Patel Chintan K. Mehuriya

CFO Company Secretary

Airo Lam Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March,2025

Note 

Total Comprehensive income for the period (XIII+XIV) (Comprising Profit/ (Loss) and Other 

comprehensive income for the period)

CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

Particulars

Profit/(Loss) for the period 
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Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

2024‐25 2023‐24

Cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit before tax as per statement of profit and loss                            507.98                           1,203.48 

Adjusted for:

Depreciation & amortization                            458.56                              385.75 

Interest & finance costs                            722.88                              522.26 

Operating cash flow before working capital changes                          1,689.42                           2,111.49 

Adjusted for:

(Increase)/ decrease in Inventory                           (826.54)                        (1,158.59)

(Increase)/ decrease in Trade Receivables                           (583.67)                            (563.57)

(Increase)/ decrease in Other Current Financial Assets                               38.28                               (60.64)

Increase/ (decrease) in Other Current Assets                            102.63                             (394.86)

Increase/ (decrease) in Other Non‐Current Financial Liability                               56.30                                 21.17 

Increase/ (decrease) in long term provisions                               52.31                                 23.06 

Increase/ (decrease) in Trade Payables                         1,028.05                              187.54 

Increase/ (decrease) in Other Current Financial Liability                            124.59                              140.81 

Increase/ (decrease) in Other Current Liability                               99.21                                 (3.30)

Increase/ (decrease) in Short term provisions                            114.54                                 18.11 

Increase/ (decrease) in Current Tax Assets(Net)                             (50.87)                                      ‐ 

Increase/ (decrease) in Current Tax Liabilities(Net)                               26.28                               (57.54)

Cash generated from / (used in) operations                         1,870.52                              263.68 

Income taxes paid                            (149.56)                            (299.57)

Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities         [A]                          1,720.96                               (35.89)

Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchase of fixed assets                       (1,767.44)                        (1,257.87)

Sale of fixed assets                                     ‐                                     3.79 

Increase/ decrease in short term loans and advances                           (124.38)                              (13.91)

Increase/ decrease in long term loans and advances                                     ‐                                         ‐   

Increase/ decrease in other Bank balance                             (41.34)                            (145.12)

Purchase/Sale of investments                                  0.46                                 (1.07)

Increase/decrease in other security deposits                              (54.92)                             157.57 

Net cash flow from/(used) in investing activities                     [B]                        (1,987.62)                        (1,256.61)

Cash flow from financing activities:

Proceeds from long term borrowing (net)                            474.32                                 10.83 

Proceeds from short term borrowing (net)                            503.42                           1,507.68 

Interest & finance costs                           (722.88)                            (522.26)

Lease Liabilities                                  6.00                                 72.63 

Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities                     [C]                             260.86                           1,068.88 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents  [A+B+C]                               (5.80)                            (223.61)

Cash & cash equivalents as at beginning of the year                                32.24                              255.85 

Cash & cash equivalents as at end of the year [Refer Note‐8]                                26.44                                 32.24 

Airo Lam Limited

Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended 31st March,2025
CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

Particulars
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Airo Lam Limited

Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended 31st March,2025
CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

2024‐25 2023‐24

Cash and Cash equivalent comprises of:

Cash on hand 8.20                                6.87                               

Bank Balances:

In current account 18.24                               25.37                              

Cash & cash equivalents as at end of the year 26.44                               32.24                              

Summary of material accounting policies 01 to 61

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached

Notes:

2. Figures in bracket indicates cash outflow.

3. Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged whereever necessary.

For Piyush J Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. : 0121172W

Sd/‐ Sd/‐ Sd/‐

CA Nitin A. Agarwal Pravin N. Patel Suresh H. Patel

Partner Chairman Whole Time Director

M. No.: 143915 DIN ‐ 01840244 DIN ‐ 02223842

UDIN: 25143915BMIAIS3108

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 29.05.2025 Sd/‐ Sd/‐

Keya Patel Chintan K. Mehuriya

CFO Company Secretary

1. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS‐7)

Statement of Cashflows.

Particulars
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Airo Lam Limited
CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

Accounting Policies

Note: 1

Note: A Corporate Information:

Airo Lam Limited (CIN L20211GJ2007PLC052019) is incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 with its registered office at

Survey No: 355, Nananpur Road, N.H. No: 8, Village‐Dalpur, Ta‐Prantij, Gujarat‐383120.

The Company is engaged in the business of production, processing and marketing of decorative laminate and plywood. The

manufacturing plant is situated at Himmatnagar, Gujarat. The company has very wide network for sales through an extensive

network of 14 branches and numerous distributorsships & dealers. It has one overseas subsidiary and one associate company

i.e. Airolam Asia Pacific Co. Limited and Airolam Holdings Co. Limited.

The standalone financial statements for the period ended on 31st March, 2025 are approved by the Board of Directors and

authorised for issue on 29th May, 2025.

Note: B Material Accounting Policies:

1.      Basis of Preparation and Presentation:

i) The financial statements are prepared on historical cost basis in accordance with applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind

AS) and on accounting principles of going concern except investments which are measured at fair values. These financial

statements have been prepared to comply with all material aspects with the Indian accounting standards notified under

section 133 of the Act, (the "Act") read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and the other relevant provisions

of the Act.

ii) Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued IND AS is initially adopted or a revision to an

existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policies hitherto in use.

iii) As the quarter and year figures are taken from the source and rounded to the nearest digits, the figures already reported for

all the quarters during the year might not always add up to the year figures reported in this statement.

iv) All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non‐current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and

other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of

assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12

months for the purpose of current classification of assets and liabilities.

2.      Accounting estimates and Assumptions:

i) The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgments

and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Management believes that estimates used in the preparation

of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate

changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates.

Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their

effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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3.      Property, Plant and Equipment

i) Freehold Land is carried at cost and all other Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at cost less accumulated

depreciation. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Property, plant and equipment acquired after the transition date are stated at cost net of tax/duty credit availed, less

accumulated depreciation, if any. Cost includes purchase price, including import duties and non‐refundable taxes, after

deducting trade discounts, rebates, borrowing costs any other expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the

location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and costs of

dismantling removing the item and restoring the site on which it was located under an obligation.

Assets which are not ready for their intended use on reporting date are carried as Capital work‐in‐progress at cost , comprising

direct cost and related incidental expenses. Capital work‐in‐progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under

installation / under development as at the balance sheet date attributable to bringing the item to working conditions for its

intended use and estimated costs of dismantling the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Advances paid towards

the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under

other non‐current assets.

ii) Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future

economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the costs to the item can be measured reliably. Repairs

and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related

accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement/disposal of the asset and the

resultant gain or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

iii) Depreciation commences when assets are available for there intended use. Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated

and/or amortised on the basis of their useful lives as notified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in case of assets

costing less than Rs. 5000/‐ which are depreciated over their useful life as assessed by the management. Assets are depreciated

on Straight Line basis over there useful Life from the date they are available for use, except for few assets, which are

depreciated on Written Down Value Method. The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Depreciation in respect of additions to assets has been charged on pro rata basis with reference to the period when the assets

are ready for use. The provision for depreciation for multiple shifts has been made in respect of eligible assets on the basis of

operation of respective units. Where the historical cost of a depreciable asset undergoes a change due to increase or decrease

in long term liability on account of exchange fluctuations, if any, the depreciation on the revised unamortised depreciable

amount is provided prospectively over the residual useful life of the asset.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately on discontinuation to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing

proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in Profit/Loss on Sale and Discard of Property, Plant & Equipment.

Useful lives of the Property, Plant and Equipment as notified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 are as follows :

Buildings ‐ 3 to 60 years

Plant and Equipment ‐ 15 to 25 years

Furniture and Fixtures ‐ 10 years

Vehicles ‐ 8 to 10 years

Office Equipment ‐ 5 to 10 years

Right‐of‐use assets are depreciated on a straight‐line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of

the underlying assets. Buildings constructed on Right‐of‐use assets are depreciated based on the useful life prescribed in the

Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted as appropriate.

4.      Intangible Assets
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i) Intangible assets acquired by payment e.g. Computer Software is disclosed at cost less amortisation on a straight‐line basis

over its estimated useful life.
ii) Intangible assets are carried at cost, net of accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any.

iii) Intangible assets are amortised on straight‐line method, if any.

iv) At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of intangible assets to determine whether there is

any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to

determine the extent of impairment loss. The recoverable amount is higher of the net selling price and the value in use,

determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows expected from the continuing use of the asset to their present

value.

5.      Revenue Recognition

i) Revenue comprises of all economic benefits that arise in the ordinary course of activities of the Company which result in

increase in Equity, other than increases relating to contributions from equity participants. Revenue is recognized to the extent

that it is reliable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is

measured at the transaction price of the consideration received or receivable.

Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers" provides a control‐based revenue recognition model and provides a five

step application approach to be followed for revenue recognition.

• Identify the contract(s) with a customer;

• Identify the performance obligations;

• Determine the transaction price;

• Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;

• Recognise revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligation.

ii) Sale of Goods: Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of control of products to the customers. Revenue does

not include GST, inter‐transfers, returns, trade discounts, cash discounts, other benefits passed to customers in kind.

The timing of transfers of controls varies depending on the individual terms of sale. Arrangements with customers for selling of

goods are all fixed price contracts.

iii) Services: Revenue from Services are recognised as and when the services are rendered.

iv) Export incentives under various schemes are accounted in the year of export, if any.

v) Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the interest rate

applicable.

6.      Other Income

Interest: Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the amortised cost and at the effective interest rate

applicable.
Dividends: Dividend from investment is recognized when the Company in which they are held declares the dividend and when

the right to receive the same is established.
Insurance Claims: Insurance Claims are accounted for on acceptance and when there is a reasonable certainty of receiving the

same, on grounds of prudence.
Export Incentives: Benefit on account of entitlement to import goods free of duty under the Advance Authorisation Scheme,

Duty Free Import Authorisation (DFIA), are accounted for on accrual basis at estimated realisable value, as and when exports

are made i.e., in the year of export. Profit or loss arising on utilisation of the same and/or sale thereof are accounted for in the

year in which either the imports are made against the said Advance License, DFIA and/or the same are sold. Incentives on

exports are recognised in books after due consideration of certainty of utilization/receipt of such incentives.
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7.      Employee Benefits

i) Short‐term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss

of the year in which the related service is rendered.

ii) Post Employment and Retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity are considered as defined benefit obligations and is

provided for on the basis of third party actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the date of the Balance 

Sheet. Every Employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled to Gratuity on terms not less favourable

than the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

iii) The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by

reference to market yields at the end of reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of

the related obligation.

iv) Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund is considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions to

Employees’ Provident Fund Organization established under The Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act

1952 is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. The

Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company

has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

8.      Valuation of Inventories

i) The cost of inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion and other related costs

incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The costs of Raw Materials, Stores and spare parts

etc., consumed consist of purchase price including duties and taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the

enterprise from the taxing authorities), freight inwards and other expenditure directly attributable to the procurement.

ii) Stock of Raw Materials are valued at cost and of those in transit and at port related to these items are valued at cost to date.

Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet. Material and supplies held for

use in the production of inventories are not written down if the finished products in which they will be used are expected to be

sold at or above cost.

iii) Stock of Stores and spare parts, and Power & Fuels are valued at cost; and of those in transit and at port related to these

items are valued at cost.

iv) Goods‐in‐process is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

v) Stock‐in‐trade is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

vi) Stock of Finished goods is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

9.      Cash Flow Statement

i) Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non‐

cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flow from regular revenue

generating, financing and investing activities of the Company is segregated.

ii) Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank, cash/cheques in hand and short term investments

with an original maturity of three months or less.

108



10.     Financial Assets

i) The Company classifies its financial assets as those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other

comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and those to be measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate

method.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its

business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

(a) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; 

and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company measures all equity instruments in subsidiaries at cost initially and also on subsequent recognition.

ii) Trade receivables represent receivables for goods sold by the Company upto the end of the financial year. The amounts are

generally unsecured and are usually received as per the terms of payment agreed with the customers. The amounts are

presented as current assets where receivable is due within 12 months from the reporting date.

iii) Trade receivables are impaired using the lifetime expected credit loss model under simplified approach. The Company uses a

matrix to determine the impairment loss allowance based on its historically observed default rates over expected life of trade

receivables and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the impairment loss allowance, if any, is

determined and updated and the same is deducted from Trade Receivables with corresponding charge/credit to the

standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv) A financial asset is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial

asset, or when it has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or when it has transferred the control of

the asset.

11.     Financial Liabilities

i) Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

ii) Borrowings are initially recognised and subsequently measured at amortised cost, net of transaction costs incurred. The

transaction costs is amortised over the period of borrowings using the effective interest method in Capital Work in Progress up

to the commencement of related Plant, Property and Equipment and subsequently under finance costs in the standalone

Statement of profit and loss.

iii) Borrowings are removed from balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or

expired.

iv) Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the

liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

v) Trade Payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company up to the end of the financial year. The

amounts are unsecured and are usually paid as per the terms of payment agreed with the vendors. The amounts are presented

as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.

v) Financial assets and Financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently

enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets

and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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vi) Derivative financial instruments are in the nature of Forward contracts. Forward contracts are executed to hedge the

foreign exchange rate with respect to liabilities for goods and services in foreign currencies. Interest rate swaps are executed to

hedge the interest rate with respect to borrowings in foreign currencies.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially and subsequently at fair value through mark to market valuation

obtained from banking partners. Gain or loss arising from the changes in fair value of derivatives are debited to the foreign

exchange fluctuations in the statement of profit and loss.

12.     Borrowing Costs

i) Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the

extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Ancillary

costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings are amortised over the period of borrowings.

ii) General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are

capitalised as part of the cost of such assets during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its

intended use. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.

iii) All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

13.     Foreign Currency Transactions

i) The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘`’), which is also the Company's functional currency.

ii) Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange rate at the

date of the transaction. At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing exchange

rate. Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet date of the

Company's monetary items at the closing rate are recognised as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

iii) Non‐monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange

rate at the date of the transaction.

14.      Accounting for Taxes on Income

i) Tax expenses comprise of current tax and deferred tax including applicable surcharge and cess.

ii) Current Income tax is computed using the tax effect accounting method, where taxes are accrued in the same period in

which the related revenue and expenses arise. A provision is made for income tax annually, based on the tax liability

computed, after considering tax allowances and exemptions. Provisions are recorded when it is estimated that a liability due to

disallowances or other matters is probable.

iii) Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax

liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary

differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any un used tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the

extent that it is probable that taxable profits against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.
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iv) The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer

probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised. Unrecognised

deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it is become probable that

future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the

tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates and

tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

v) Deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other

comprehensive income. As such, deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income.

vi) Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and the Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by same

governing taxation laws.

15.      Investments

Non Current investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of Non Current investments is made only if

such a decline is other than temporary.

16.      Impairment

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. For the

purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that

are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. If any

such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying

value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an

asset’s or cash generating unit’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash

flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also

done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior

accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased.

17.      Government Grants

i) Grants are accounted for where it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made.

ii) Grants relating to PPE in the nature of Project Capital Subsidy are credited to that particular PPE.

iii) Others are credited to Statement of Profit and Loss.

18.      Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

i) Provisions are made when (a) the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; (b) it is

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and (c) a reliable

estimate is made of the amount of the obligation.

ii) Contingent liabilities are not provided for but are disclosed by way of Notes on Accounts. Contingent liabilities is disclosed in 

case of a present obligation from past events (a) when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle 

the obligation; (b) when no reliable estimate is possible; (c) unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

iii) Contingent assets are not accounted but disclosed by way of Notes on Accounts where the inflow of economic benefits is 

probable.
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19.      Current and Non‐Current Classification

i) The Normal Operating Cycle for the Company has been assumed to be of twelve months for classification of its various assets

and liabilities into “Current” and “Non‐Current”.

ii) The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non‐current classification.

iii) An asset is current when it is (a) expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; (b)

held primarily for the purpose of trading; (c) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; (d) Cash

and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period. All other assets are classified as non‐current.

iv) An liability is current when (a) it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; (b) it is held primarily for the purpose of

trading; (c) it is due to be discharged within twelve months after the reporting period; (d) there is no unconditional right to

defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are classified as

non‐current.

20.      Segment Reporting

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision

maker (CODM). The CODM assesses the financial performance and position of the company, and makes strategic decisions. The

CODM consists of Managing Director & CEO and Chief Financial Officer.

The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products, with each

segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves 

different markets. The identified segments are Manufacturing and Sale of (a) Laminate and Allied products; and (b) Plywood

and Allied products.

The analysis of geographical segment is based on the geographical location of the customers. The geographical segments

considered for disclosure are (a) Sales within India include sales to customers located within India; (b) Sales outside India

include sales to customers located outside India.

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the cost incurred in that segment.

The Unallocated Segment includes general corporate income and expense items, which are not allocated to any business

segment.

21.      Related Party Transactions

i) A related party is a person or entity that is related to the reporting entity preparing its financial statement

a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to reporting entity if that person;

     a. has control or joint control of the reporting entity;

     b. has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

     c. is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity.

b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies;

a. the entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow

subsidiary is related to the others);
b. One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of

which the other entity is a member);
     c. Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

     d. One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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e. The entity is a post‐employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an entity

related to the reporting entity;
     f. The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

     g. A person identified in (a)

h. The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to the reporting

entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.

Has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of

the entity);

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related

party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

          Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence,

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Compensation includes all employee benefits i.e. all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided by the entity, or on

behalf of the entity, in exchange for services rendered to the entity. It also includes such consideration paid on behalf of a

parent of the entity in respect of the entity.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling

the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.

c) Disclosure of related party transactions as required by the IND AS is furnished in the Notes on the Standalone Financial

Statements.

22.      Earning Per Share

i) Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

ii) For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all

dilutive potential equity shares.

22.      Critical Accounting Judgments, Assumptions and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures,

and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are continuously

evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

i) Judgements

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements.

a) Determination of Functional Currency
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Currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (“the functional currency”) is Indian Rupee (Rs)

in which the Company primarily generates and expends cash. Accordingly, the Management has assessed its functional

currency to be Indian Rupee (Rs) i.e. Rs in Lakhs.

b) Evaluation of Indicators for Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of external factors (significant decline

asset’s value, significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment, market interest rates etc.) and

internal factors (obsolescence or physical damage of an asset, poor economic performance of the asset etc.) which could result

in significant change in recoverable amount of the Property, Plant and Equipment.

ii) Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the significant effect on recognition and measurement of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

a) Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment/Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets are depreciated/amortised over their estimated useful lives, after taking into

account estimated residual value. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Company’s historical experience with

similar assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes or commercial obsolescence. Management reviews

the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of

depreciation/amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The depreciation/amortisation for future periods is

revised, if there are significant changes from previous estimates and accordingly, the unamortised/depreciable amount is

charged over the remaining useful life of the assets.

b) Contingent Liabilities

In the normal course of business, Contingent Liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Group. Potential

liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallising or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent

liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the Notes but are not recognised. Potential liabilities that are remote are neither

recognised nor disclosed as contingent liability. The management decides whether the matters need to be classified as

'remote', 'possible' or 'probable' based on expert advice, past judgements, experiences etc.

c) Evaluation of Indicators for Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of external factors (significant decline

in asset’s value, economic or legal environment, market interest rates etc.) and internal factors (obsolescence or physical

damage of an asset, poor economic performance of the idle assets etc.) which could result in significant change in recoverable

amount of the Property, Plant and Equipment and such assessment is based on estimates, future plans as envisaged by the

Company.

d) Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognised in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds

resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition

and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be

subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of

changing facts and circumstances.

22.      Fair Value Measurement

114



i) The Company measures financial instruments such as investment in other equity at fair value at each balance sheet date.

ii) Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to

sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a

principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market

must be accessible by the Company.

iii) The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the

asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

iv) A fair value measurement of a non‐financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic

benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in

its highest and best use.

v) The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available

to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

vi) All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised with in the

fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that

are either observable or unobservable and consists of following three levels:

Level 1 – Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 – Inputs are other than quoted prices included with in level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities either

directly (pear prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived prices).

Level 3 – Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part

using a Valuation model based on assumption that are neither supported by prices from observable current market

transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

23.      Leases:

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains

a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control

the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the

Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the

Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right‐of‐use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease

liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short‐term

leases) and low value leases. For these short‐term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an

operating expense on a straight‐line basis over the term of the lease.

The right‐of‐use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any

lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives.

They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right‐of‐use assets are

depreciated from the commencement date on a straight‐line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the

underlying asset.
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The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted

using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country

of domicile of these leases. Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease

payments have been classified as financing cash flows. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there

is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a

change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the

underlying asset.

24.      Expenses for CSR

i) In case of CSR activities undertaken by the Company, if any expenditure of revenue nature is incurred or an irrevocable

contribution is made to any agency to be spent by the latter on any of the activities mentioned in Schedule VII to the

Companies Act, 2013, the same is charged as an expense to its Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii) In case, the expenditure incurred by the Company is of such a nature which gives rise to an asset, such an asset is recognised

where the Company retains the control of the asset and any future economic benefit accrues to it. A liability incurred by

entering in to a contractual obligation is recognised to the extent to which CSR activity is completed during the year.
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A Equity Share Capital: Amount in Lakhs

Note No
As at 

31‐Mar‐25

As at 

31‐Mar‐24

1,500                         1,500                           

‐                             ‐                               

1,500                         1,500                           

B Other Equity:

Securities 

premium reserves
Retained earnings

Balance as at 01‐Apr‐2023 1,269.07                3,611.26                          44.58                         4,924.91                      

Profit/(Loss) for the period ‐                           828.74                              ‐                             828.74                         

Reclassification of OCI into Retained earning ‐                           ‐                                    ‐                             ‐                               

Other comprehensive income for the year ‐                           ‐                                    (20.84)                        (20.84)                          

Total comprehensive income for the year ‐                           828.74                              (20.84)                        807.90                         

Adjustments towards PPE ‐                           ‐                             ‐                               

Balance as at 31‐Mar‐2024 1,269.07                4,440.00                          23.74                         5,732.81                      

Balance as at 01‐Apr‐2024 1,269.07                4,440.00                          23.74                         5,732.81                      

Profit/(Loss) for the period ‐                           353.70                              ‐                             353.70                         

Adjustments ‐                           ‐                                    ‐                             ‐                               

Other comprehensive income for the year ‐                           ‐                                    12.49                         12.49                           

Total comprehensive income for the year ‐                           353.70                              12.49                         366.19                         

Balance as at 31‐Mar‐2025 1,269.07                4,793.70                          36.23                         6,099.00                      

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date attached

For Piyush J Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. : 0121172W

Sd/‐ Sd/‐ Sd/‐

CA Nitin A. Agarwal Pravin N. Patel Suresh H. Patel

Partner Chairman Whole Time Director

M. No.: 143915 DIN ‐ 01840244 DIN ‐ 02223842

UDIN: 25143915BMIAIS3108

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 29.05.2025 Sd/‐ Sd/‐

Keya Patel Chintan K. Mehuriya

CFO Company Secretary

Balance at the end of the year

Shares issued during the year

Airo Lam Limited

Reserves & Surplus

Particulars

Other 

Comprehensive 

Income

Particulars

14

Total

 Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31‐Mar‐25

CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

Balance at the beginning of the year
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02  Property Plant & Equipment : As at 31‐Mar‐25

Amount in Lakhs

Right of Use 
(Other than 

Land) 

At Cost or deemed cost
As at April 01, 2023 744.46                  26.13                  113.27                 4,809.97                 106.44                 34.73                 69.61                32.37                   86.21                ‐                     6,023.19                 
Additions 21.88                     ‐                      ‐                        1,102.25                 9.30                      14.05                 0.59                  1.93                     ‐                    107.87              1,257.87                 
Disposals ‐                         ‐                      ‐                        ‐                          (5.22)                    ‐                     ‐                    ‐                       ‐                    ‐                     (5.22)                        

 As at 31‐Mar‐24 766.34                  26.13                  113.27                 5,912.22                 110.52                 48.78                 70.20                34.30                   86.21                107.87              7,275.84                 

As at April 01, 2024 766.34                  26.13                  113.27                 5,912.22                 110.52                 48.78                 70.20                34.30                   86.21                107.87              7,275.84                 
Additions 103.57                  ‐                      ‐                        1,603.70                 7.11                      8.19                   0.19                  0.73                     ‐                    43.94                1,767.44                 
Disposals ‐                         ‐                      ‐                        ‐                          ‐                        ‐                     ‐                    ‐                       ‐                    ‐                     ‐                           

 As at 31‐Mar‐25 869.91                  26.13                  113.27                 7,515.92                 117.63                 56.97                 70.39                35.04                   86.21                151.81              9,043.27                 

Accumlated Depreciation
As at April 01, 2023 261.24                  17.64                  76.06                   1,948.64                 50.86                   16.38                 39.88                26.89                   ‐                    ‐                     2,437.57                 
Additions 25.61                     0.35                    1.52                      296.31                    8.47                      4.55                   8.79                  3.04                     ‐                    37.06                385.70                     
Disposals ‐                         ‐                      ‐                        ‐                          (1.43)                    ‐                     ‐                    ‐                       ‐                    ‐                     (1.43)                        

 As at 31‐Mar‐24 286.85                  17.98                  77.58                   2,244.95                 57.89                   20.93                 48.67                29.93                   ‐                    37.06                2,821.84                 

As at April 01, 2024 286.85                  17.98                  77.58                   2,244.95                 57.89                   20.93                 48.67                29.93                   ‐                    37.06                2,821.84                 
Additions 26.64                     0.33                    1.46                      371.93                    8.83                      6.09                   2.38                  1.42                     ‐                    39.42                458.51                     
Disposals ‐                         ‐                      ‐                        ‐                          ‐                        ‐                     ‐                    ‐                       ‐                    ‐                     ‐                           

 As at 31‐Mar‐25 313.48                  18.31                  79.04                   2,616.89                 66.73                   27.02                 51.05                31.35                   ‐                    76.48                3,280.36                 

Carrying amount

 As at 31‐Mar‐24 479.49                 8.15                    35.69                   3,667.27                52.63                   27.85                 21.53               4.37                     86.21                70.81                4,453.99                 

 As at 31‐Mar‐25 556.43                 7.81                    34.22                   4,899.03                50.90                   29.95                 19.34               3.68                     86.21                75.33                5,762.92                 

Airo Lam Limited
CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

Factory          

Building 
Total

 Land      

Freehold 

Computers & 

Data Processing 

Unit 

 Motor    

Vehicle 

 Office 

Equipment 
Particulars

 Furniture & 

Fittings 
Plant & Machinery 

 Office       

Buildings 

 Labour 

Quarters 
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 03 Other intangible Assets As at 31‐Mar‐25

Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Trade Mark Software Total

At Cost or deemed cost

As at April 01, 2023 1.08                12.32                 13.40                

Additions ‐                  ‐                     ‐                    

Disposals ‐                  ‐                     ‐                    

As at March 31, 2024 1.08               12.32                 13.40                

As at April 01, 2024 1.08                12.32                 13.40                

Additions ‐                  ‐                     ‐                    

Disposals ‐                  ‐                     ‐                    

As at March 31, 2025 1.08               12.32                 13.40                

Accumlated Depreciation

As at April 01, 2023 0.58                12.32                 12.90                

Additions 0.05                ‐                     0.05                  

Disposals ‐                  ‐                     ‐                    

As at March 31, 2024 0.63                12.32                 12.95                

As at April 01, 2024 0.63                12.32                 12.95                

Additions 0.05                ‐                     0.05                  

Disposals ‐                  ‐                     ‐                    

As at March 31, 2025 0.67                12.32                 13.00                

Carrying amount

As at March 31, 2024 0.45               ‐                     0.45                  

As at March 31, 2025 0.40               ‐                     0.40                  

Airo Lam Limited

CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019
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04 Investments(Non‐Current):

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Investments in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

Shares of Listed Companies 48.63                                 34.13                                

Investments in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

Shares of Unlisted Companies 24.39                                 24.85                                

TOTAL ₹ : 73.02                                58.98                               

Investments in Equity Instruments

Sr. No. Quoted / Unquoted Classification   No. of Shares 

1 Quoted N.A.                       250,000.00 

2 Unquoted N.A.                            9,600.00 

3 Unquoted N.A.                            4,890.00 

05 Other Financial Assets(Non‐Current):

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Secured

Deposit Accounts (original maturity more than 12 months)                              111.36                                  85.07 

Unsecured : Considered good

Security Deposit 43.28                                 14.65                                

TOTAL ₹ : 154.64                              99.72                               

06 Inventories:

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Raw Material 1,913.96                           1,873.79                          

Work‐In‐Progress 325.38                              229.45                             

Stores and Spares 282.51                              216.50                             

Finished Goods 5,750.84                           5,126.42                          

TOTAL ₹ : 8,272.70                           7,446.16                          

07 Trade Receivables:

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Unsecured

Considered Good 6,077.61                           5,493.94                          

Considered doubtful ‐                                     ‐                                    

6,077.61                           5,493.94                          

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts ‐                                     ‐                                    

TOTAL ₹ : 6,077.61                           5,493.94                          

‐                                    

The Inventories is valued on the basis of Weighted Average Cost Method.

Particulars
 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

Investments in Other Companies

The company had valued the shares of associates at cost price under IND AS 28, without considering the temporary fluctuation.

The company had valued the shares of the other companies at fair value through OCI.

Security deposit includes Deposit with suppliers for power connections, Rented premises etc.

Particulars

Investments in associates

All trade receivables are considered good, unless otherwise provided.

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Airolam Asia Pacific Co., Ltd.

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 
Particulars

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

Latteys Industries Limited

 Airolam Holdings Co., Ltd

Particulars
 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

Airo Lam Limited

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Notes to Accounts

Name of the Company
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As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

Less than 6 

months

6 Months ‐ 1 

year

1‐2 Years 2‐3 Years More than 3 Years  Total 

4,583.35                  469.50                 157.77                    126.49                          740.49                              6,077.61                          

‐                            ‐                       ‐                           ‐                                     ‐                                    

‐                            ‐                       ‐                           ‐                                 ‐                                     ‐                                    

‐                            ‐                       ‐                           ‐                                 ‐                                     ‐                                    

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Less than 6 

months

6 Months ‐ 1 

year

1‐2 Years 2‐3 Years More than 3 Years  Total 

4,008.38                  220.41                 160.87                    310.93                          718.64                              5,419.23                          

‐                            ‐                       ‐                           ‐                                 ‐                                     ‐                                    

‐                            ‐                       ‐                           ‐                                 74.71                                 74.71                                

‐                            ‐                       ‐                           ‐                                 ‐                                     ‐                                    

08 Cash & cash equivalents:

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Cash On Hand 8.20                                   6.87                                  

Balance with Banks 18.24                                 25.37                                

TOTAL ₹ : 26.44                                32.24                               

09 Bank balance other than (08) above:

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Deposit Accounts (original maturity less than 12 months) 186.45                              145.12                             

TOTAL ₹ : 186.45                              145.12                             

10 Loans(Current):

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Unsecured: Considered Good  

Advance to Others 6.27                                   100.03                             

Advances given to Staff 20.77                                 16.28                                

Advances to Related Parties

Advance to Related Parties 238.08                              24.42                                

TOTAL ₹ : 265.12                              140.74                             

Particulars
 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

(iii) Disputed Trade

Receivables ‐

Considered Good

(iv) Disputed Trade

Receivables ‐ Which

have significant

increase in credit risk

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

(i) Undisputed Trade

Receivables ‐

Considered Good

(ii) Undisputed Trade

Receivables ‐ Which

have significant

increase in credit risk

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

(i) Undisputed Trade

Receivables ‐

Considered Good

(ii) Undisputed Trade

Receivables ‐ Which

have significant

increase in credit risk

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

(iii) Disputed Trade

Receivables ‐

Considered Good

(iv) Disputed Trade

Receivables ‐ Which

have significant

increase in credit risk

Advance to related parties includes advance given to foreign associated entity.

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Particulars

Particulars
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Amount 

Outstanding

% of Total Amount Outstanding  % of Total 

‐                           ‐                                 ‐                                     ‐                                    

‐                           ‐                                 ‐                                     ‐                                    

‐                           ‐                                 ‐                                     ‐                                    

‐                           ‐                                 ‐                                     ‐                                    

238                          100.00                          24.42                                 100.00                             

238                          100.00                          24.42                                 100.00                             

11        Other Financial Assets(Current):

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Insurance Claim Receivable 29.03                                 29.03                                

Interest Receivable 2.25                                   12.00                                

Security Deposits 0.03                                   30.29                                

Derivative Instruments‐Mark to Market valuation 1.78                                   0.06                                  

TOTAL ₹ : 33.09                                71.37                               

12        Other current Assets:

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Unsecured: Considered Good

Advances to Suppliers 123.62                              130.91                             

Advance to Creditors for expenses 163.00                              171.20                             

Advance to Creditor for Capital Goods 1.77                                   207.51                             

Balance With Government Authorities 650.28                              535.62                             

Export Incentive Receivable 29.68                                 8.13                                  

Prepaid Expenses 19.80                                 37.40                                

TOTAL ₹ : 988.15                              1,090.78                          

 

13        Current Tax Assets (net)

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Current tax assets (Net of Advance Tax,TDS/TCS Receivables) 50.87                                 ‐                                    

TOTAL ₹ : 50.87                                ‐                                    

14        Equity share capital:

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Authorized :

Equity shares 16,000,000 of Rs.10 Each 1,600.00                           1,600.00                          

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up :

Equity shares 15002000 of Rs.10 Each 1,500.20                           1,500.20                          

TOTAL ₹ : 1,500.20                           1,500.20                          

Associate Company

Loans and Advances to Related Parties

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

Type of Borrower

Particulars
 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

GST receivable is considered as per the books of accounts and any discripancies with government portal is ignored.

Promoters

Directors

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 
Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Current period Previous period

KMPs

Related Parties
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14.1     The Details of Shareholder holding more than 5% Shares

No. Of Shares % Held No. Of Shares % Held

Jasvantbhai Patel 8.83                        5.89% 8.83                                   5.89%

Mahendrabhai Nathabhai Patel 9.02                        6.01% 9.02                                   6.01%

Pravinkumar Amichandbhai Patel 9.87                        6.58% 9.87                                   6.58%

Pravinkumar Nathabhai Patel 12.42                      8.28% 12.31                                 8.20%

TOTAL ₹ : 40.14                      26.75% 40.03                                26.68%

14.2     The Reconciliation of No. of shares outstanding is set out below:

No. of Shares Amount In ₹ No. of Shares  Amount In ₹ 

150.02                    1,500.20                       150.02                              1,500.20                          

‐                           ‐                                 ‐                                     ‐                                    

150.02                    1,500.20                       150.02                              1,500.20                          

14.3     Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Shares

14.4     Shareholding of promoters

Sr.No. No Of Shares in Lakhs % of total shares
 % Change During 

The Year 

1 12.42                             8.28% 0.07%

2 9.87                               6.58% 0.00%

3 7.46                               4.97% 0.00%

4 5.38                               3.59% 0.00%

5 1.26                               0.84% 0.00%

Sr.No. No Of Shares % of total shares
 % Change During 

The Year 

1 12.31                             8.20% 0.52%

2 9.87                               6.58% 0.00%

3 7.46                               4.97% 0.00%

4 5.38                               3.59% 0.00%

5 1.26                               0.84% 0.00%

15        Other equity:

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Retained Earning

Opening Balance 4,440.00                           3,611.26                          

Add: Profit for the year 353.70                              828.74                             

Less: Adjustments ‐                                     ‐                                    

Closing Balance 4,793.70                           4,440.00                          

Other Comprehensive Income

Opening Balance 23.74                                 44.58                                

Add: Profit for the year 12.49                                 (20.84)                              

Less: Adjustments ‐                                     ‐                                    

Closing Balance 36.23                                23.74                               

Share Premium Account

Opening Balance 1,269.07                           1,269.07                          

Less: Bonus Issue during the year ‐                                     ‐                                    

Closing Balance 1,269.07                           1,269.07                          

TOTAL ₹ : 6,099.00                           5,732.81                          

 Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31‐Mar‐24

Promoter Name

Pravinbhai Nathabhai Patel

 Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31‐Mar‐25

Add: Shares issued as Bonus

Patel Pravinbhai Amichandbhai

Patel Prafulkumar Devachandbhai

Raval Mamta Daxesh

Patel Sureshbhai H.

Patel Sureshbhai H.

Particulars

As at 

31‐Mar‐25

As at 

31‐Mar‐24

Particulars

As at 

31‐Mar‐25
Name Of Shareholder

As at 

31‐Mar‐24

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year

Equity Shares at the end of the year

Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date less any transfers to general reserve, dividends, utilisations or

other distributions paid to shareholders.

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Equity shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. They are

eligible for dividend on the basis of their shareholding. In the case of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the

Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any, in proportion to their shareholding.

Promoter Name

Pravinbhai Nathabhai Patel

Patel Pravinbhai Amichandbhai

Patel Prafulkumar Devachandbhai

Raval Mamta Daxesh
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16        Borrowings(Non‐Current):

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Secured Borrowing:

Term Loan against Vehicle 10.49                                 21.95                                

Term Loan against PPEs 1,589.41                           1,092.92                          

Unsecured Borrowing:

Unsecured Loans from Directors  80.84                                 102.78                             

Unsecured Loans from relatives & shareholders  189.51                              178.29                             

TOTAL ₹ : 1,870.25                           1,395.93                          

Rate of Interest
 Monthly installments 

(in ₹) 
No. of Installments

EURIBOR + 400 BPS 0.2139194EURO 60.00                               

EURIBOR + 400 BPS 0.0660806EURO 60.00                               

Repo + 2.90% 15.50                                 36.00                                

Repo + 2.90% 4.55                                   66.00                                

Repo + 2.90% 7.77                                   36.00                                

Repo + 2.90% 19.84                                 75.00                                

8.75% 0.50                                   60.00                                

8.75% 0.18                                   60.00                                

7.65% 0.24                                   60.00                                

17        Lease Liability (Non‐Current)

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Liability for Right to Use 35.23                                 34.07                                

TOTAL ₹ : 35.23                                34.07                               

Secured by way of charge of Plant & Machineries, Book Debts, Stocks as primary security and 

certain industrial and residential plot as specified in the sanction letter as collateral security.

Immovable property , Plant and 

Machinery , Book Debts

Name of Lender

Axis Bank

Axis Bank

Axis Bank

Particulars

The company have outstanding Interest free long term loans from shareholders & relatives of the 

directors and/or promoters. The repayment terms have not been decided yet.

Securities Premium: The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium.

Other Comprehensive Income: The fair value change of the investmentsmeasured at fair value through other comprehensive income recognised through

Other Comprehensive Income. Upon derecognition the cumulative fair value changes on the said investments except equity investments are reclassified to

the Statement of Profit and Loss. Accumulated gain or loss on employee benefits also recognised through other comprehensive income.

Axis Bank

Motor Vehicle

Sub Note: The Company has utilized the borrowings from Banks for the purpose, for which it has been raised.

Axis Bank Immovable property , Plant and 

Machinery , Book Debts

HDFC Bank

The company have outstanding Interest free long term loans from directors. The repayment terms 

have not been decided yet.

Axis Bank Immovable property , Plant and 

Machinery , Book Debts

Sub Note: The company has also provided land and building situated at:

1. Survey No: 355, Dalpur, Nananpur Approach Road, Ta: Prantij,  Dist: Sabarkantha

2. Plot No. 301 & 302, Survey No. 518/P, GIDC Estate, Talod

3. Khata No. 341, Block No. 139 (Old Survey No. 356) Mouje‐Dalpur, Nanapur Approach Road, Taluka: Prantij, Dist: Sabarkantha

4. Pledge of 1500200 Shares of Airo Lam Limited held by Mr. Pravin N. Patel, Suresh H. Patel and Pravin A. Patel

as common collateral security for Working Capital finance & Term Loan finance.

Particulars

Immovable property , Plant and 

Machinery , Book Debts

Sub Note: The directors of the company and Mr. Pravin A. Patel (Promoter, subject to the limit of the shares offered by him) have also given their

personal guarantee for the loan.

Name of Security

Immovable property , Plant and 

Immovable property , Plant and 

Motor VehicleHDFC Bank

Secured by hypothecation of vehicles purchased in the name of company/ directors of the company. 

The loan is repayble within a period ranging from one to five years.

Axis Bank Motor Vehicle
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18        Other Financial Liabilities (Non‐Current)

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Unsecured: Considered Good

Security Deposit From Customer 171.85                              115.55                             

Interest Payable ‐                                     ‐                                    

TOTAL ₹ : 171.85                              115.55                             

19        Provisions(Non‐Current)

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Provision for Employee Benefits

Gratuity 146.59                              94.28                                

TOTAL ₹ : 146.59                              94.28                               

20        Deferred Tax Liabilities:

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Deferred Tax Assets

442.08                              378.43                             

(40.78)                               (28.61)                              

7.99                                   4.88                                  

TOTAL ₹ : 409.29                              354.70                             

21        Borrowings(Current):

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Secured : Loans Repayable on Demand

Secured Loan from Bank 6,345.08                           5,889.08                          

Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 601.28                              553.87                             

TOTAL ₹ : 6,946.37                           6,442.95                          

22        Trade Payables:

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Creditors for Goods

‐Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,878.76                           740.13                             

  (to the extent identified with the available information)

1,623.68                           1,734.27                          

TOTAL ₹ : 3,502.44                           2,474.39                          

DTL on Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis

DTL on Other assets

Particulars

Particulars

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

Particulars

Particulars

DTL on Difference between written down value of property, plant and equipment and capital work‐in‐

progress as per books of accounts and income tax

As the Company has not funded its liability, it has nothing to disclose regarding plan assets and its reconciliation.

‐Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises

Axis Bank Cash Credit / PCFC / PSCFC LC / SBLC outstanding Rs. 5043.45/‐as on March 31, 2025 and HSBC Bank Cash Credit / PCFC / PSCFC LC / SBLC

outstanding Rs. 1301.63/‐as on March 31, 2025 is secured against hypothecation of stock with netting off of sundry creditors and Book Debts i.e. entire

current assets (present and future) of the company including stock of raw material, stock in process, finished goods, consumables, receivables, stores,

spares, at the rate of 9.40% for Axis bank and MCLR/3M T‐bill rate for HSBC bank.

The company has also provided land and building situated at:

1. Survey No: 355, Dalpur, Nananpur Approach Road, Ta: Prantij,  Dist: Sabarkantha

2. Plot No. 301 & 302, Survey No. 518/P, GIDC Estate, Talod

3. Khata No. 341, Block No. 139 (Old Survey No. 356) Mouje‐Dalpur, Nanapur Approach Road, Taluka: Prantij, Dist: Sabarkantha

4. Pledge of 1500200 Shares of Airo Lam Limited held by Mr. Pravin N. Patel, Suresh H. Patel and Pravin A. Patel as common collateral security for

Working Capital finance & Term Loan finance.

The directors of the company and Mr. Pravin A. Patel (Promoter, subject to the limit of the shares offered by him) have also given their personal guarante

for the loan.

*Balances of Letter of Credit and SBLC for Buyer's Credit has been regrouped/reclassifed to Secured Loans Repayable on Demand.

Particulars
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As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

Less than 1 Year 1‐2 Years 2‐3 Years  More than 3 Years   Total 

1,878.76             ‐                                 ‐                                     1,878.76                          

1,595.09             22.10                      6.49                               ‐                                     1,623.68                          

‐                       ‐                           ‐                                 ‐                                     ‐                                    

‐                       ‐                           ‐                                 ‐                                     ‐                                    

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Less than 1 

Year 
 1‐2 Years   2‐3 Years   More than 3 Years   Total 

740.13                 ‐                           ‐                                 ‐                                     740.13                             

1,697.50             25.52                      10.90                             0.35                                   1,734.27                          

‐                       ‐                           ‐                                 ‐                                     ‐                                    

‐                       ‐                           ‐                                 ‐                                     ‐                                    

23        Lease Liability (Current)

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Liability for Right to Use 43.40                                 38.56                                

TOTAL ₹ : 43.40                                38.56                               

24        Other Financial Liabilities(Current):

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Other Payables

Sundry Creditors for Capital Goods 36.43                                 30.23                                

Sundry Creditors for Expenses*

‐Dues to micro and small enterprises 174.20                              154.27                             

 (to the extent identified with the available information)

 ‐Dues to other than micro and small enterprises 462.65                              364.19                             

TOTAL ₹ : 673.28                              548.69                             

25        Other Current Liabilities:

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Other Payables

Advance from Customers 36.66                                 32.40                                

Payable to Government 233.03                              138.07                             

TOTAL ₹ : 269.68                              170.47                             

26        Provisions(Current):

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Payable to Employees 74.30                                 19.37                                

Payable to Others ‐                                     ‐                                    

Provision for Expenses 149.52                              89.91                                

TOTAL ₹ : 223.82                              109.28                             

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars

Particulars

Sub Note: 1 Outstanding Balances of Trade Payables as on 31st March, 2025 are taken as certified by management. The same is subject to reconciliation

and confirmations.

Particulars

Sub Note: 2 Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006” is based on the

information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received from them

on requests made by the Company. There are no overdue principal amounts / interest payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the

Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for any earlier years and accordingly there is no interest

paid or outstanding interest in this regard in respect of payment made during the year or on balance brought forward from previous year.

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

(i) MSME

(ii) Others

(iii) Diputed dues‐MSME

(ii) Others

(iii) Diputed dues‐MSME

(iv) Diputed dues‐Others

Particulars

(i) MSME

(iv) Diputed dues‐Others

Particulars
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27        Current tax liabilities (net)

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Current tax liabilities (Net of Advance Tax,TDS/TCS Receivables) ‐                                     21.58                                

TOTAL ₹ : ‐                                     21.58                               

28        Revenue From Operations:

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

 Sale of Products 30,175.47                         23,031.74                        

Less:

Rate Differences on Sales 0.29                                   (2.21)                                 

GST on sales (1,306.26)                          (2,555.93)                         

28,869.50                         20,473.59                        

Other Operating Income

Export Incentive Received 22.07                                 24.94                                

Miscellaneous Income 48.83                                 20.03                                

TOTAL ₹ : 28,940.40                        20,518.57                       

29        Other Income:

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Interest Income 17.99                                 25.31                                

Interest on Rent Deposits 1.47                                   1.31                                  

Other Income 35.67                                 9.00                                  

Insurance Claim ‐                                     29.03                                

Gain on Foreign Exchange 194.17                              ‐                                    

Fair Valuation Gain ‐                                     80.45                                

TOTAL ₹ : 249.30                              145.10                             

30        Cost of Raw material consumed:

Inventory at the beginning Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Raw Material 1,873.79                           1,721.43                          

Add: Purchases

Raw Material 14,588.03                         14,026.13                        

Add: Direct Expenses

Raw Material 114.36                              100.50                             

Less: Inventory at the end

Raw Material 1,913.96                           1,873.79                          

TOTAL ₹ : 14,662.22                        13,974.28                       

31        Changes in Inventories:

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

At the end of the year:

Finished Goods 5,750.84                           5,126.42                          

Work‐In‐Progress 325.38                              229.45                             

Stores and Spares 282.51                              216.50                             

6,358.74                           5,572.37                          

At the beginning of the year:

Finished Goods 5,126.42                           4,041.00                          

Work‐In‐Progress 229.45                              317.57                             

Stores and Spares 216.50                              207.56                             

5,572.37                           4,566.13                          

TOTAL ₹ : (786.37)                             (1,006.24)                         

Particulars

 For the FY 2023‐24 

Particulars

Particulars  For the FY 2024‐25 

 For the FY 2024‐25   For the FY 2023‐24 

*In the F.Y. 2023‐24, Export related Incentives received/receivable is included in Sale of products. However, previous year figure has not been

regrouped/reclassified.

 For the FY 2023‐24 

 For the FY 2024‐25   For the FY 2023‐24 Particulars

Particulars  For the FY 2024‐25 
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32        Employee Benefit Expense:

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Bonus Expenses 17.08                                 15.65                                

Director's Remuneration 25.05                                 25.05                                

Gratuity Expense 43.75                                 28.19                                

Salary & Wages Expenses 1,273.07                           1,195.73                          

Staff Welfare Expenses 11.74                                 8.17                                  

TOTAL ₹ : 1,370.69                           1,272.79                          

33        Finance Cost:

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Bank Charges 138.45                              68.59                                

Interest to Bank on Short Term Borrowing 453.33                              320.73                             

Interest to Bank on Long Term Borrowing 102.10                              100.27                             

Interest on Car Loan 2.22                                   2.90                                  

Interest on Others ‐                                     1.01                                  

Interest on Lease Liability 15.77                                 8.43                                  

Interest on Unsecured Loan 11.02                                 20.32                                

TOTAL ₹ : 722.88                              522.26                             

34        Depreciation Expense

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Depreciation on Tangible Assets 419.09                              348.64                             

Depreciation on Right to use 39.42                                 37.06                                

Amortization on Intangible Assets 0.05                                   0.05                                  

TOTAL ₹ : 458.56                              385.75                             

 For the FY 2023‐24 Particulars  For the FY 2024‐25 

Particulars  For the FY 2024‐25   For the FY 2023‐24 

Sub Note: 1 Interest Expenses are net of interest capitalized in Property, Plant & Equipment.

 For the FY 2024‐25 Particulars  For the FY 2023‐24 
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35        Other Expenses:

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Establishment Expenses

Auditor's Remuneration                                   3.75                                     3.75 

Bad Debt 0.11                                   0.48                                  

Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 174.63                              156.01                             

Certification Charges 30.04                                 10.11                                

Discount / Complain Expenses 363.18                              173.75                             

Donation Expenses ‐                                     2.11                                  

(Gain)/Loss on Foreign Exchange ‐                                     5.94                                  

Export Related Expenses 515.98                              344.31                             

Indirect Duty Related Expenses 9.20                                   11.74                                

Insurance Expenses 23.01                                 71.18                                

Labour Expenses 669.48                              671.48                             

Legal & Professional Expenses  15.41                                 32.92                                

Membership Expenses 7.89                                   5.73                                  

Office Expenses 314.05                              231.00                             

Packing and Forwarding Expenses 194.88                              214.12                             

Printing & Stationery Expenses 6.94                                   4.97                                  

Penalty Expense ‐                                     1.85                                  

Rent Expenses 23.38                                 27.54                                

Repair & Maintenance Expenses 104.98                              100.40                             

Sundry Balances Written Off 0.02                                   0.67                                  

Travelling Expenses 63.37                                 77.92                                

Corporate social responsible activities 20.86                                 18.37                                

Transportation Related Expenses

Freight Expenses 723.12                              750.87                             

Container Expenses ‐                                     4.55                                  

Communication Expenses

Postage & Courier Expenses 10.67                                 10.29                                

Telephone Expenses 6.65                                   6.03                                  

Power & Fuel Expense

Power & Fuel Expenses 329.93                              245.50                             

Selling & Distribution Expenses

Advertisement & Sales Promotion Expenses 1,140.48                           1,127.74                          

TOTAL ₹ : 4,752.02                           4,311.35                          

36        Earning Per Share :

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Basic Earning Per Share 2.36                                   5.52                                  

Diluted Earning Per Share 2.36                                   5.52                                  

Nominal Value Per Share Rs. 10.00 Rs. 10.00

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Profit / (Loss)  after taxation 353.70                              828.74                             

353.70                              828.74                             

150.02                              150.02                             

‐                                     ‐                                    

150.02                              150.02                             

15,002,000.00                15,002,000.00               

Number of shares at the end of the year

 For the FY 2023‐24 

 For the FY 2024‐25 

Earning Per share is calculated by dividing the Profit/(Loss) attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of Equity Shares 

outstanding during the year. The numbers used in calculating basic and diluted earning per Equity Share as stated below

Number of shares at the beginning of the year

Particulars

Particulars

Number of shares allotted during the year (Previous Year shares allotted as Bonus Shares)

Particulars

 For the FY 2024‐25 

 For the FY 2023‐24 

 For the FY 2024‐25   For the FY 2023‐24 

Net Profit / (Loss) attributable to Equity 

Weighted Average Number of shares outstanding during the year
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37        Taxation

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

 Tax Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Current Tax Expense 102.14                              278.42                             

Income Tax Expense 102.14                              278.42                             

MAT Credit utilized/(Receivable) ‐                                     ‐                                    

Earlier Years Tax Expense (0.44)                                  44.57                                

Income Tax Expense including Earlier year tax 101.70                              322.98                             

Deferred Tax 52.57                                 51.76                                

Total Tax Expense in Statement of Profit and Loss 154.28                              374.74                             

 ReconciliaƟon of Tax Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Profit before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 507.98                              1,203.48                          

Re‐measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans in OCI 14.50                                 (28.87)                              

Changes in Profit before tax due to Ind AS Transition ‐                                     ‐                                    

Accounting Profit before Tax 522.48                              1,174.61                          

Applicable Income Tax rate 27.82% 27.82%

Computed Tax expense 145.35                              326.78                             

Additional deductions under Chapter VIA ‐                                     0.29                                  

Charity, Donation and CSR Expenses 5.85                                   5.11                                  

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (52.83)                               (48.89)                              

Others 5.79                                   (12.91)                              

MAT Credit utilized/(Receivable) ‐                                     ‐                                    

Earlier Years Tax Expense (0.44)                                  44.57                                

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Liability:

Temporary difference on account of:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 63.65                                 60.07                                

Other temporary differences (11.07)                               (8.30)                                 

Changes in Deferred Tax due to Ind AS Transition ‐                                     ‐                                    

Deferred tax in Statement of Profit and Loss 52.57                                51.76                               

 Temporary difference of liabiliƟes in other comprehensive income (2.01)                                  8.03                                  

Deferred tax in Total Comprehensive Income 50.56                                59.79                               

Income Tax charged to Statement of Profit and Loss (A)  154.28                              374.74                             

38        Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities:

A. Contingent Liabilities:

As at 

31‐Mar‐25

Amount in Lakhs

                              159.69 

B. Commitments:

At officer level the decision was not in favour of the company, therefore, the company has appealed in Commisioner of appeal. Therefore, the company

has recognised it as contingent liabilities.

It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above, pending resolution of the respective

proceedings as it is determinable only on receipt of judgments/decisions pending with various forums/ authorities.

Particulars

Particulars

 For the FY 2024‐25   For the FY 2023‐24 

Disputed Income Tax Demand under the Gujarat Value Added Tax Act

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as

contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially

adverse effect on its financial results.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for net of advances, Rs. NIL Lakhs (previous year Rs. NIL

Lakhs).
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39        Accounting Classifications and Fair values

As at 

31‐Mar‐25

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost:

Trade receivables                           6,077.61                             5,493.94 

Cash and cash equivalents                                26.44                                  32.24 

Bank balance other than above                              186.45                                145.12 

Loans(Current)                              265.12                                140.74 

Other Financial Assets (Current)                                31.31                                  71.37 

Other Financial Assets (Non Current)                              154.64                                  99.72 

Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss:

Derivative (Current)                                   1.78                                     0.06 

Financial assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income:

Investments                                48.63                                  34.13 

                          6,791.97                             6,017.31 

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost:

Borrowings (Current)                           6,946.37                             6,442.95 

Borrowings (Non Current)                           1,870.25                             1,395.93 

Lease Liability (Current)                                43.40                                  38.56 

Lease Liability (Non Current)                                35.23                                  34.07 

Trade payables                           3,502.44                             2,474.39 

Other financial liabilities (Current)                              673.28                                548.69 

Other financial liabilities (Non Current)                              171.85                                115.55 

                       13,242.82                          11,050.15 

40        Financial Risk Management

ii) Liquidity Risk

Total Financial Assets

Total Financial Liabilities

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction

between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidated sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Fair value of cash and short term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, working capital loans from

banks approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

Financial instruments other than above are carried at amortised cost except certain assets which are carried at fair value.

While ensuring liquidity is sufficient to meet Company's operational requirements, the Company's financial management committee also monitors and

manages key financial risks relating to the operations of the Company by analysing exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include

market risk (including currency risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

i) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk

comprises two types of risk: interest rate, currency risk and other price risk, such as commodity price risk and equity price risk. Financial instruments

affected by market risk include FVTPL investments, trade payables, trade receivables, etc.

Particulars

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents including bank deposits and availability of funding through an

adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet the obligations when due.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, liquidity

management also involves projecting cash flows considering level of liquid assets necessary to meet obligations by matching the maturity profiles of

financial assets & liabilities and monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios.

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non‐derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The

information included in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscountedcash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the

Company can be required to pay. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.
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Due in 1 Year Due after 1 Year Total 

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

 As at 31‐Mar‐25

Borrowings                       6,946.37                            1,870.25                             8,816.62 

Trade Payables                       3,502.44                                        ‐                               3,502.44 

Other Financial Liabilities                          716.68                               207.08                                923.76 

                   11,165.49                            2,077.33                          13,242.82 

 As at 31‐Mar‐24

Borrowings                       6,442.95                            1,395.93                             7,838.88 

Trade Payables                       1,734.27                                        ‐                               1,734.27 

Other Financial Liabilities                          587.25                               149.63                                736.88 

                      8,764.46                            1,545.56                          10,310.03 

Trade Receivables

Due in 1 Year 1 year ‐ 3 years More than 3 Years  Total 

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs  Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

 As at 31‐Mar‐25

1) Trade Receivables                6,077.61                                    ‐                                          ‐                               6,077.61 

2) Cash & Cash Equivalents                   212.89                                    ‐                                          ‐                                  212.89 

3) Loans                   265.12                                    ‐                                          ‐                                  265.12 

4) Other Financial Assets                      33.09                           154.64                                        ‐                                  187.74 

5) Investments                             ‐                                      ‐                                   73.02                                  73.02 

               6,588.71                           154.64                                 73.02                             6,816.37 

 As at 31‐Mar‐24

1) Trade Receivables                5,493.94                                    ‐                                          ‐                               5,493.94 

2) Cash & Cash Equivalents                   177.35                                    ‐                                          ‐                                  177.35 

3) Loans                   140.74                                    ‐                                          ‐                                  140.74 

4) Other Financial Assets                      71.37                             99.72                                        ‐                                  171.09 

5) Investments                             ‐                                      ‐                                   58.98                                  58.98 

               5,883.40                             99.72                                 58.98                             6,042.10 

As at 

31‐Mar‐25

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

Equity Share Capital                           1,500.20                             1,500.20 

Other Equity                           6,099.00                             5,732.81 

Total Equity                           7,599.20                             7,233.01 

Interest‐bearing loans and borrowings                           8,816.62                             7,838.88 

Less: Cash & Cash Equivalent                                26.44                                  32.24 

Less: Bank balances other than above                              186.45                                145.12 

Net Debt                           8,603.73                             7,661.53 

Gearing Ratio                                   1.13                                     1.06 

Disclosures

TOTAL ₹ :

Particulars

iii) Capital Management

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet items

that contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses

are recognized in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note provided hereunder :

Particulars

TOTAL ₹ :

TOTAL ₹ :

TOTAL ₹ :

Particulars

The Company has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer receivables at various levels within organisation to ensure proper attention and

focus for realisation.

The company's objective when managing capital is to:

‐ Safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that the Company is able to provide maximum return to stakeholders and benefits for other

stakeholders.

‐ Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The company's Board of director's reviews the capital structure on regular basis. As part of this review the board considers the cost of capital risk

associated with each class of capital requirements and maintenance of adequate liquidity.
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41        Disclosures Regarding Employee Benefits

As per Indian Accounting Standard 19 “Employee Benefits” the disclosures are given below:

Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution to defined contribution plan, recognised as expense for the year is as under:

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 Amount in Lakhs 

Employers contribution to provident fund 9.75                                  

9.75                                  

42        Corporate Social Responsibility Contribution

Sr. No. Amount in Lakhs

1 20.81                                

2 20.86                                

3 ‐                                    

4 ‐                                    

5 NA

6 NIL

7  Various activities 

including Rural 

Development, 

Eridication of Hunger, 

Education etc. 

Calculation of Corporate Social Responsibility amount:

Sr. No.
 Profit for CSR 

calculation 

 Amount in Lakhs 

1 1,203.48                          

2 977.24                             

3 2021‐22 940.17                             

3,120.90                          

1,040.30                          

20.81                               

Financial Year

Details of related party transactions (In relation to CSR)

TOTAL ₹ :

1) Defined Contribution Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund are considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions to

Employees Provident Fund Organisation established under The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1952 and Employees State

Insurance Act, 1948, respectively, are charged to the profit and loss account of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

2023‐24

Average profit of last three years

Particulars

Amount of expenditure incurred

2) Defined Benefit Plan : Retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity are considered as defined benefit obligation and are provided for on the basis of thir

party actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the date of the Balance Sheet.

Every Employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled to Gratuity on terms not less favorable than the provisions of The Payment of 

Gratuity Act, 1972

Reason for shortfall

Particulars

Minimum amount of CSR (2% of average profit of last three years)

Shortfall at the end of the year

2022‐23

Net profit as per section 198

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year

Nature of CSR activities:

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the

immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and

malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment sustainability, disaster relief, COVID‐19

relief and rural developmentprojects and other activities as mentioned in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. A CSR committee has been formed by

the Company as per the Act. The funds were primarily utilised throughout the year on these activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies

Act, 2013:

As the Company has not funded its liability, it has nothing to disclose regarding plan assets and its reconciliation.

Total of previous years shortfall

133



43        Payment to Auditor :‐  Amount in Lakhs 

As at 

31‐Mar‐25

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

Audit Fees for Statutory and Tax Audit                                   3.75                                     3.75 

The above mention amount is excluding GST.

44        Related Party Disclosures:

43.1 Related Parties & their Relationship

Sr. No. Relationship

(i) Promoter and Director

(ii) Director

(iii) Promoter and Director

(iv) Promoter

(v) Promoter

(vi) Mrs. Keyaben Patel KMP

(vii) Relative of Promoter

(viii) Relative of Director

(ix) Relative of Director

(x) Relative of Director

(xi) Relative of Director

(xii) Relative of Promoter

(xiii) KMP

(xiv) Subsidiary

(xv) Associate Concern

(xvi) Common Director

43.2 Transactions with Related Parties

 For the FY 2024‐25   For the FY 2023‐24 

                               11.40                                  10.80 

                                  8.40                                     7.20 

                               13.65                                  12.45 

                                  8.40                                     7.20 

Salary                                    6.76                                     6.76 

Salary                                    4.80                                     5.25 

                                  4.65                                     4.05 

                                  6.27                                     5.06 

Salary                                        ‐                                       1.10 

Salary                                    2.16                                         ‐   

Mr. Hardik P. Patel                                       ‐                                   (10.00)

Mr. Yash P. Patel                                   1.30                                   (0.10)

Loan Given                               236.65                                  24.42 

Sales                               193.29                                  86.75 

                                  1.07                                         ‐   

Airolam Holdings Co. Ltd.

Airolam Holdings Co. Ltd.

Particulars

Mr. Pravin N. Patel

Mr. Hardik P. Patel

Mr. Suresh H. Patel

Mr. Yash P. Patel

Mr. Mahendra N. Patel

Mrs. Keyaben Patel

Mrs. Hemlata S. Patel

Mrs. Manjulaben P. Patel

Airolam Asia Pacific Co. Ltd.

Airolam Asia Pacific Co. Ltd.

 Salary 

 Director Remuneration 

 Salary 

 Investment 

Mrs. Ruchi Shah

 Loan Taken/(Repaid) 

Mr. Chintankumar K. Mehuriya

 Loan Taken/(Repaid) 

Mr. Yash P. Patel

As per IND AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

i) List of Related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:

Mr. Karan Raval

Particulars

Nature of Transaction

Kedar Formaline LLP

Name of Related Parties

Mrs. Hemlata S. Patel

Mr. Praful Patel

Mr. Vasantbhai Raval

Airolam Asia Pacific Co. Ltd.

Mr. Hardik P. Patel

 Director Remuneration 

 Salary 

 Director Remuneration 

Mr. Suresh H. Patel

Mr. Pravin A. Patel

Mr. Chintankumar K. Mehuriya

Mr. Pravin N. Patel

Mrs. Manjulaben P. Patel

Mr. Mahendra N. Patel
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43.3 Related Party Balances

Relationship
As at 

31‐Mar‐25

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

‐Director Remuneration

Mr. Pravin N. Patel Promoter and 

Director

                                  0.95                                     0.95 

Mr. Hardik P. Patel Director                                   0.70                                     0.70 

Mr. Suresh H. Patel Promoter and 

Director

                                  1.14                                     1.14 

‐Salary

Mrs. Keyaben Patel KMP                                   0.40                                     0.40 

Mr. Yash P. Patel Relative of Director                                   0.70                                     0.70 

Mr. Mahendra N. Patel Relative of Director                                   0.56                                     0.56 

Mrs. Hemlata S. Patel Relative of Director                                   0.39                                     0.39 

Mr. Chintankumar K. Mehuriya KMP                                   0.18                                     0.18 

‐Loan Taken/(Repaid)

Mr. Pravin N. Patel Promoter and 

Director

                                      ‐                                    26.24 

Mr. Yash P. Patel Relative of Director                                   1.30                                     1.03 

Mr. Mahendra N. Patel Relative of Director                                   0.75                                     0.75 

Mr. Vasantbhai Raval Relative of Promoter                                20.36                                  26.65 

‐Sales

Airolam Asia Pacific Co. Ltd. Subsidiary                              193.29                                315.52 

‐Loan Given

Airolam Asia Pacific Co. Ltd. Subsidiary                              236.65                                  23.78 

‐Investment

Airolam Holdings Co. Ltd. Associate Concern                                   1.07                                     1.07 

46        Information Regarding Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises(MSME)

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

i)                           1,878.76                                740.13 

ii)                                       ‐                                           ‐   

                          1,878.76                                740.13 

iii)                                       ‐                                           ‐   

iv)                                       ‐                                           ‐   

v)                                       ‐                                           ‐   

vi)                                       ‐                                           ‐   

vii)                                       ‐                                           ‐   

viii)                                       ‐                                           ‐   

Based on the information /documents available with the Company, information as per the requirements of Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as under:

Name of Related Parties

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been 

paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Particulars

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of accounting year (including retention 

money against performance).

Interest due on above

Total of (i) & (ii)

Amount of interest paid by the Company to the suppliers in terms of section 16 of the Act.

Amount paid to the suppliers beyond due date during the year.

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in payments (which have been paid but 

beyond the due date during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Act.

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year.

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 

when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of 

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of this Act.
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47        Right to Use Assets/Lease Liability

a) Right To Use

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

                               70.81                                         ‐   

                               43.94                                107.87 

                                      ‐                                           ‐   

                               39.42                                  37.06 

                               75.33                                  70.81 

                               43.44                                  39.13 

                               78.63                                  72.63 

* RTU includes Building RTU.

b)

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

                               43.40                                  38.56 

                               35.23                                  34.07 

                                      ‐                                           ‐   

c)

d)

e)

f)

48       

49       

50       

51       

52       

53       

54       

55       

56       

The Company has created following Right of Use Assets as under as per Ind AS‐116 :

Addition during the year

Termination during the year

Opening Balance

Particulars

The Company has recognised Interest expenses of ₹15.79 Lakhs on Lease Liabilities during the year.

Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertain for office Building taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary course of business. 

The Company does not have any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as per the contract. 

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 9.40% has been applied to lease liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet at the date of initial 

application. 

Depreciation

Closing balances*

Cash Flow for leases

Lease Liabilities

Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabilities as required by Ind AS‐116 has been disclosed as follow:

Period

0‐1 year

1‐5 year

More than 5 years

Certain Balance of Debtors, Creditors, Loans & Advances for Capital expenditures are non‐ moving / sticky . However in view of the management, the

same is recoverable / payable. Hence no provision for the same is made in the books of accounts.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the current assets, loans and advances are approximately of the value stated, if realized in the ordinary course of

business and the provisions for depreciation and all known and ascertained liabilities are adequate and not in excess of the amounts reasonably necessary.

The balance confirmation from the suppliers, customers as well as to various loans or advances given have been called for, but the same are awaited till

the date of audit. Thus, the balances of receivables, trade payables as well as loans and advances have been taken as per the books of accounts submitted

by the company and are subject to confirmation from the respective parties.

Benami Transactions

There is no proceedings has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)

Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

Wilful Defaulter

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or other lender.

Transactions with Struck off Companies

As stated & Confirmed by the Board of Directors ,The Company has not under taken any transactions nor has outstanding balance with the Company

Struck Off either under section 248 of the Act or under Section 560 of Companies act 1956.

Satisfaction of Charge/Creation of Charge

There is no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Number of Layers of Subsidiary

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on

number of layers) Rules, 2017.

The figures for the previous period are re‐classified/ re‐arranged / re ‐grouped, wherever necessary so as to be in conformity with the figures of the 

current period's classification/disclosure. 
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57       

58       

59       

60       

61       

62       

63       

64       

65       

2024‐25   2023‐24 

                  1,199,882.00                        720,162.83 

                     689,965.81                        950,723.00 

                       98,686.82                                         ‐ 

Audit Trail

The company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the

same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.

Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements                                                                                                                                                                               

The Compnay has not applied for any Scheme of Arrangements under Section 230  to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Unhedged Foreign Currency

Particulars

Accounts Receivable

USD

USD

Accounts Payable

EURO

Crypto Currency

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

Loan or Investment to Ultimate Beneficiaries

As stated & Confirmed by the Board of Directors, The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),

including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate

Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

Loan or Investment from Ultimate Beneficiaries

As stated & Confirmed by the Board of Directors ,The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities

(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate

Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

Utilization of Term Loans

The Company has applied term loans for the purpose for which the same was obtained during the year.

Undisclosed Transactions

As stated & confirmed by the Board of Directors, The Company does not have any such transactionwhich is not recorded in the books of accounts that has

been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other

relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Working Capital

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits from a bank on the basis of security of the current assets. Quarterly returns or statements filed

by the Company with such bank are not in agreement with the books of accounts.
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66        Ratio Analysis

As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Change In % Reason

1.36                        1.47                               (7.26)                                  Not applicable

1.16                        1.08                               7.05                                   Not applicable

0.00                        0.00                               (36.69)                              

0.05                        0.11                               (59.38)                              

2.73                        2.99                               (8.71)                                  Not applicable

3.71                        3.94                               (5.87)                                  Not applicable

4.88                        5.89                               (17.15)                               Not applicable

5.05                        4.45                               13.67                                 Not applicable

1.65                        4.04                               (59.15)                              

0.09                        0.14                               (34.44)                              

2.76                        1.64                               68.41                                

Notes referred to herein above form an integral part of the Financial Statement

For Piyush J Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. : 0121172W

Sd/‐ Sd/‐ Sd/‐

CA Nitin A. Agarwal Pravin N. Patel Suresh H. Patel

Partner Chairman Whole Time Director

M. No.: 143915 DIN ‐ 01840244 DIN ‐ 02223842

UDIN: 25143915BMIAIS3108

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 29.05.2025 Sd/‐ Sd/‐

Keya Patel Chintan K. Mehuriya

CFO Company Secretary

Net profit has decreased

by 57.32%, whereas

turnover has increased

by 4.48%.

Net profit including

interest has declined by

27.30%, while capital

employed has increased

by 10.89%.

Return on investments

has increased by

68.41%, while the value

of investments has

remained unchanged.

k)Return on Investment Return on Investment

Total Investment

i)Net Profit Ratio Net Profit

Total Turnover

j)Return on Capital employed Net Profit

Capital Employed

g)Trade payable turnover ratio Total Turnover

Average Account Payable

h)Net Capital turnover ratio Total Turnover

Net Working Capital

e) Inventory turnover Ratio Total turnover

Average Inventories

f)Trade receivable turnover

ratio

Total Turnover

Average Account Receivable

c) Debt‐Service Coverage Ratio Earning available for debt service

Interest+Installment

d) Return on equity ratio Profit after tax

Networth

Earnings available for

debt service have

decreased by 34.56%,

while interest and

installment obligations

have increased by

15.33%.

Profit after tax has

declined by 57.32%,

while net worth has

increased by 5.06%.

Particulars Numerator/Denominator

a) Current Ratio Current Assets

Current liabilities

b) Debt ‐Equity Ratio Debt

Equity
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45    Segment Reporting

Information about Business Segments ‐ Primary (₹ in Lakhs)

FY 2024‐25 FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25 FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25 FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25 FY 2023‐24

REVENUE

External Sales 18,554.98          18,882.72          2,867.73            1,754.70            ‐                      ‐                      21,422.71          20,637.42         

Inter‐Segment Sales 7,002.38            5,909.49            716.14             205.13             ‐                    ‐                     ‐                     ‐                   

Value of Sales* 25,557.36          24,792.21          3,583.87          1,959.83          ‐                    ‐                     21,422.71          20,637.42       

Other Operating Income 250.17               145.10               3.23                  4.57                  ‐                    ‐                     253.40               149.67            

Revenue from Operations 25,807.54          24,937.31          3,587.09          1,964.40          ‐                    ‐                     21,676.11          20,787.09       

RESULT  

Segment Result 1,607.18            1,953.29            ‐456.29              ‐236.15              ‐                      ‐                      1,150.89            1,717.14           

Unallocated Corporate Expenses
‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      161.33               131.23               161.33               131.23              

Operating Profit 989.56               1,585.90           

Less : Interest Expense 571.06               439.87               13.37                  13.79                  ‐                      ‐                      584.43               453.67              

Add : Interest Income ‐                      ‐                     ‐                    ‐                    19.46                26.77                 19.46                  26.77               

Profit before Tax 424.59               1,159.01           

Exceptional Item

Current Year Tax including Earlier 

Year Tax
‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      101.70               322.98               101.70               322.98              

Deffered Tax ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      52.57                  51.76                  52.57                  51.76                 

MAT Credit utilized/(Receivable) ‐                      ‐                     ‐                    ‐                    ‐                    ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     

Profit after Tax 270.31               784.27              

Other Comprehensive Income ‐                      ‐                     ‐                    ‐                    12.49                ‐20.84               12.49                  ‐20.84             

Total Comprehensive Income for 

the year, net of Tax ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     
282.80               763.43              

OTHER INFORMATION

Segment Assets 21,378.50          16,784.30          269.00             2,393.32          ‐                    ‐                     21,647.50          19,177.62       

Segment Liabilities 3,852.23            1,973.45            1,105.17            1,833.38            ‐                      ‐                      4,957.40            3,806.83           

Loan Fund 8,535.04            7,602.44            414.77               236.44               ‐                      ‐                      8,949.81            7,838.88           

Deferred Tax Liabilites(Net) 409.29               299.87               ‐                      52.68                  ‐                      ‐                      409.29               352.55              

Shareholder's Funds 7,060.44            6,910.92            270.56             268.44             ‐                    ‐                     7,331.00            7,179.36         

Total Liabilities 21,647.50          19,177.62       

Non‐C*Total Value of Sales is after elimination of inter segment turnover of ₹ 8,542.06 Lakhs for the FY 2023‐24 (₹ 6,114.62 lakhs for FY 2022‐23).

Secondary Segment ‐ Geographical by location of Customers

(₹ in Lakhs)

Year Ended 

31.03.2025

Year Ended 

31.03.2024

Year Ended 

31.03.2025

Year Ended 

31.03.2024

Year Ended 

31.03.2025

Year Ended 

31.03.2024

12,442.36          12,003.80          21,378.50          16,784.30          1,759.11            1,242.25           

2,867.73            1,754.70            269.00               2,393.32            8.73                    15.62                 

6,112.62            5,440.85            ‐                      ‐                      ‐                      ‐                     

‐                    ‐                    ‐                    ‐                     ‐                     ‐                   

21,422.71        19,199.35        21,647.50        19,177.62        1,767.84            1,257.87         

NOTES:

a) Business Segments:

b) Segment Assets and Liablities:

c)  Segment Revenue and Expenses:

‐ Plywood & Allied Products: The Segment is engaged in the business of manufacturing of Decorative veneers, Engineered Wood Flooring, Engineered Door Sets &

Door Leaf and other allied products through its wholesale and retail network.

All Segment Assets and liabilities are directly attributable to the segment. Segment assets include all operating assets used by the segment and consist principally of

fixed assets, inventories, sundry debtors, advances and operating cash and bank balances. Segment assets and liabilities do not include share capital, reserves and

surplus, borrowings, proposed dividend and income tax (both current and deferred).

Within India

    ‐Plywood & Allied Products

    ‐Laminates & Allied Products

Segment revenue and expenses are directly attributable to the segment. It does not include dividend income, profit on sale of investments, interest income, interest

expense, other expenses which cannot be allocated on a reasonable basis and provision for income tax (both current and deferred).

Segment information has been prepared in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company. As

part of Secondary reporting, revenues are attributed to geographical areas based on the location of the customers. The following table present the revenue, profit,

assets and liabilities information relating to the business / geographical segment for the Year ended 31 March, 2023

Reportable Segment Laminates & Allied Products Plywood & Allied Products Unallocated Total

Revenue
Carrying Amount of Segment 

Assets

Additions to Property, Plant & 

Equipment
Reportable Segment

     A description of the types of products and services provided by each reportable segment is as follows:

    ‐Plywood & Allied Products

    ‐Laminates & Allied Products

Outside India

‐ Laminate & Allied Products: The Segment is engaged in the business of manufacture of Laminates, compact laminates and other allied products through its

wholesale and retail network.
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
To, 
The Members of Airo Lam Limited 
Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Airo 
Lam Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its 
subsidiaries collectively referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of 
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated 
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 
on that date and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including a 
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Financial Statements”). 

statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter 
referred to as “the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of 
the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended, (hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Company as 
at March 31, 2025, of the consolidated profit and total comprehensive income, 
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended 
on that date. 

Basis of Our Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance 
with the Standards on Auditing (hereinafter referred to as “SAs”) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(hereinafter referred to as “ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of 
the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current 
year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide separate opinion on these matters. 

We have not determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters 
to be communicated in our report. 

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report 
Thereon 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the 
other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to 
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements, or our 
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in 
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 
position, consolidated financial performance, consolidated total comprehensive 
income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group 
in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under 
section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
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responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error which 
have been used for the purpose of the preparation of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of 
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting of the Group. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated 
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
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opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial 
information of the entities within the Group to express an opinion on the 
Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such 
entity included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the 
independent auditors. For the other entity included in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditor, such other 
auditor remains responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the audit carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit 
opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
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circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matter 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to 
preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been 
kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

d) We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of one 
subsidiary, whose financial statements/financial information reflect total assets 
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 269.00 lakhs as at 31 March 2025 
and total revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. (83.85) lakhs , as 
considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated 
financial statements also include the Group’s share of net profit (and other 
comprehensive income) of Rs. (0.69) Lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2025, 
in respect of one associate, whose financial statements/financial information 
have not been audited by us. These financial statements/ financial 
information have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been 
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 
included in respect of these subsidiary and associate, and our report in terms 
of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the 
aforesaid subsidiary and associate is based solely on the reports of the other 
auditors. 

e) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with 
the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of 
Holding Company as on March 31, 2025 taken on board by the Board of 
Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of 
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its subsidiaries incorporated in India, none of directors of the Group’s 
companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference 
to Consolidated Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure – A”. Our report expresses 
an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of 
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Group. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us the remuneration paid by the Holding Company to 
its directors during the year is in accordance with the section 197 read with 
Schedule V of the Act. 

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us: 
 

i. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its 
Consolidated Financial Statement. Refer Note 38 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 
 

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 
 

iii. During the year, there were no amounts which are required to be transferred, 
to the Investor’s Education and Protection Fund by the Group. 
 

iv. i) The Management of the Holding Company have represented to us that, to 
the best of their knowledge and belief and based on consideration of reports 
of other auditors on separate financial statements of subsidiaries incorporated 
in India, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries to or in any other person or entity, including 
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (“Ultimate 
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Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

ii) The Management of the Holding Company have represented to us that, to 
the best of their knowledge and belief and based on consideration of reports 
of other auditors on separate financial statements of subsidiaries incorporated 
in India, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) 
have been received by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries from any 
person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding 
Company and its subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
 
iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable 
and appropriate in the circumstances performed by us and those performed 
by other auditors of the subsidiaries which are incorporated in India, whose 
financial statements are audited under the Act, nothing has come to our 
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain 
any material misstatement. 
 

v. The company or its holding company has not declared and paid any 
dividend during the year. 
 

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks and that 
performed by the respective auditors of the subsidiaries which are 
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have 
been audited under the Act, the Holding Company and subsidiaries 
have used an accounting software for maintaining its books of 
account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility 
and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our 
audit, we and respective auditors of the above referred subsidiaries did 
not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered 
with. The audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the 
statutory requirements for record retention. 

 
2. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the 

Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) issued by the 
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the 
Auditor’s report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and 
based on the CARO report issued by other auditor of subsidiaries included in the 
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Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company, to which reporting under 
CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks 
in this CARO report. 

 
For Piyush J. Shah & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 121172W   
 
 
Sd/- 
CA Nitin A. Agarwal 
Partner 
M. No: 143915 
UDIN: 25143915BMIAIR5415  
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 29th May, 2025 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report on the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of Airo Lam Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements’ section of our report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Act. 

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Holding Company as of for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the 
internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements of 
Airo Lam Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries which are companies 
incorporated in India, as of that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which 
are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company’s internal 
financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by 
the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements included obtaining an 
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understanding of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial 
Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial 
controls system with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 

A company’s internal financial control with reference to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
Company’s internal financial control with reference to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; 
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the Holding Company has, in all material respects, an adequate 
internal financial controls system with reference to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
ICAI. 

 

For Piyush J. Shah & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 121172W   
 
Sd/- 
CA Nitin A. Agarwal 
Partner 
M. No: 143915 
UDIN: 25143915BMIAIR5415  
Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 29th May, 2025 
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 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

31‐Mar‐25 31‐Mar‐24

I. ASSETS
1 Non‐current assets
(a)  Property, plant & Equipment 02 5,765.98                         4,460.25                              

(b)  Capital work in progress ‐                                   ‐                                       

(c) Investment properties ‐                                   ‐                                       

(d) Goodwill ‐                                   ‐                                       

(e) Other intangible assets 03 0.40                                 0.45                                     

(f) Intangible assets under development ‐                                   ‐                                       

(g) Biological assets other than bearer plants ‐                                   ‐                                       

(h) Financial assets

(i) Investments 04 48.63                               34.13                                   

(ii) Trade receivables ‐                                   ‐                                       

(iii) Loans ‐                                   ‐                                       

(iv) Others 157.68                             102.47                                 

(i)  Deferred tax assets (net) ‐                                   ‐                                       

(j) Other Non‐current assets ‐                                   ‐                                       

5,972.69                         4,597.30                              

2 Current assets
(a)  Inventories 06 8,494.02                         7,582.46                              

(b)  Financial assets

(i) Investments ‐                                   ‐                                       

(ii) Trade receivables 07 5,839.01                         5,505.74                              

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 08 31.75                               32.86                                   

(iv) Bank balance other than (iii) above 09 186.45                             145.12                                 

(v) Loans 10 28.47                               140.74                                 

(vi) Others 11 33.09                               71.37                                   

(c)  Other current assets 12 1,011.13                         1,102.05                              

(d)  Current tax Assets (net) 13 50.87                               ‐                                       

15,674.81                       14,580.33                           

21,647.50                       19,177.62                           

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity

(a)  Equity share capital 14 1,500.20                         1,500.20                              

(b)  Other equity 15 5,830.80                         5,546.67                              

7,331.00                         7,046.87                              

Particulars

Airo Lam Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2025

Note 

Total Assets

CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019
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 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

31‐Mar‐25 31‐Mar‐24

Particulars

Airo Lam Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2025

Note 

CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

2 Non‐Controlling Interest (90.44)                             (59.83)                                  

3 Liabilities

Non‐current liabilities

(a)  Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 16 2,003.44                         1,426.93                              

(ii) Trade payables ‐                                   ‐                                       

(iii) Lease Liability 17 35.23                               34.07                                   

(iv) Other financial liabilities 18 171.85                             115.55                                 

(b) Provisions 19 146.59                             94.28                                   

(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 20 409.29                             354.70                                 

(d) Other Non‐Current Liabilities ‐                                   ‐                                       

2,766.40                         2,025.54                              

3 Current liabilities

(a)  Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 21 6,946.37                         6,442.95                              

(ii) Trade payables 22

1,878.76                         740.13                                 

1,577.65                         2,074.47                              

(iii) Lease Liability 23 43.40                               38.56                                   

(iv) Other financial liabilities 24 673.28                             548.69                                 

(b) Other current liabilities 25 269.68                             171.16                                 

(c) Provisions 26 251.41                             127.51                                 

(d) Current tax liabilities (net) 27 ‐                                   21.58                                   

11,640.54                       10,165.05                           

21,647.50                       19,177.62                           

Summary of material accounting policies 01 to 61

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date.

For Piyush J Shah & Co.

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. : 0121172W

Sd/‐ Sd/‐ Sd/‐

CA Nitin A. Agarwal Pravin N. Patel Suresh H. Patel

Partner Chairman Whole Time Director

M. No.: 143915 DIN ‐ 01840244 DIN ‐ 02223842

UDIN: 25143915BMIAIR5415

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 29.05.2025 Sd/‐ Sd/‐

Keya Patel Chintan K. Mehuriya

CFO Company Secretary

Total Laibilities

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

ii. total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

and small enterprises

i. total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
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 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

2024‐25 2023‐24

I. Revenue from operations 28 21,422.71                     20,637.42                    

II. Other Income 29 253.40                           145.25                          

III. Total Revenue (I + II) 21,676.11                     20,782.67                    

IV. Expenses:

Cost of raw material consumed 30 14,610.12                     14,036.37                    

Changes in Inventories of finished goods & Raw Material 31 (786.37)                         (1,006.24)                     

Employee benefits expenses 32 1,421.90                       1,313.29                      

Finance costs 33 723.16                           522.33                          

Depreciation and amortization expense 34 462.16                           388.24                          

Other expenses 35 4,820.55                       4,369.66                      

Total expenses (IV) 21,251.52                     19,623.65                    

V. Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (III‐IV) 424.59                           1,159.02                      

VI. Exceptional items  ‐                                 ‐                                

VII. Profit/(Loss) before tax (V ‐ VI) 424.59                           1,159.02                      

VIII. Tax expenses

(1) Current tax 102.14                           278.42                          

(2) Deferred tax 52.57                             51.76                            

(3) Short / (Excess) Provision (0.44)                              44.57                            

(4) MAT Credit utilized/(Receivable) ‐                                 ‐                                

IX. Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing operations (VII‐ VIII) 270.32                           784.27                          

X. Profit/(Loss) for the period from discontinued operations

XI. Tax expenses of discontinued operations

XII. Profit/(Loss) after tax for the period from discontinued operations (X‐XI) ‐                                 ‐                                

XIII. 270.32                           784.27                          

XIV. Other comprehensive income

A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 14.50                             (28.87)                           

    (ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (2.01)                              8.03                              

B) (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

    (ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

XV. 282.81                           763.43                          

Airo Lam Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March,2025

Note 

Total Comprehensive income for the period (XIII+XIV) (Comprising Profit/ (Loss) and 

Other comprehensive income for the period)

CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

Particulars

Profit/(Loss) for the period 
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 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

2024‐25 2023‐24

Airo Lam Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March,2025

Note 

CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

Particulars

XII Earnings per equity share (for continuing operations): 36

(1) Basic 1.80                               5.23                              

(2) Diluted 1.80                               5.23                              

XII Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operations):

(1) Basic ‐                                 ‐                                

(2) Diluted ‐                                 ‐                                

XII Earnings per equity share (for discontinued & continuing operations):

(1) Basic 1.80                               5.23                              

(2) Diluted 1.80                               5.23                              

Summary of material accounting policies 01 to 61

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date.

For Piyush J Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. : 0121172W

Sd/‐ Sd/‐ Sd/‐

CA Nitin A. Agarwal Pravin N. Patel Suresh H. Patel

Partner Chairman Whole Time Director

M. No.: 143915 DIN ‐ 01840244 DIN ‐ 02223842

UDIN: 25143915BMIAIR5415

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 29.05.2025 Sd/‐ Sd/‐

Keya Patel Chintan K. Mehuriya

CFO Company Secretary
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Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

2024‐25 2023‐24

Cash flow from operating activities:

Net profit before tax as per statement of profit and loss                           424.59                             1,159.02 

Adjusted for:

Depreciation & amortization                           462.16                                388.24 

Interest & finance costs                           723.16                                522.33 

Other Adjustments in Reserves                            (29.29)                             (177.72)

Operating cash flow before working capital changes                         1,580.61                             1,891.87 

Adjusted for:

(Increase)/ decrease in Inventory                          (911.56)                          (1,294.89)

(Increase)/ decrease in Trade Receivables                          (333.27)                             (575.37)

(Increase)/ decrease in Other Current Financial Assets                              38.28                                (60.64)

Increase/ (decrease) in Other Current Assets                              90.91                              (406.13)

Increase/ (decrease) in Other Non‐Current Financial Liability                              56.30                                  21.17 

Increase/ (decrease) in long term provisions                              52.31                                  23.06 

Increase/ (decrease) in Trade Payables                           641.80                                527.74 

Increase/ (decrease) in Other Current Financial Liability                           124.59                                140.81 

Increase/ (decrease) in Other Current Liability                              98.53                                   (2.61)

Increase/ (decrease) in Short term provisions                           123.90                                  36.34 

Increase/ (decrease) in Current Tax Assets(Net)                            (50.87)                                        ‐ 

Increase/ (decrease) in Current Tax Liabilities(Net)                              26.28                                (57.54)

Cash generated from / (used in) operations                        1,537.80                                243.80 

Income taxes paid                           (149.56)                             (299.57)

Net cash generated from/ (used in) operating activities         [A]                         1,388.24                                (55.76)

Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchase of fixed assets                      (1,767.84)                         (1,266.62)

Sale of fixed assets                                     ‐                                      3.79 

Increase/ decrease in short term loans and advances                           112.27                                (13.91)

Increase/ decrease in long term loans and advances                                     ‐                                          ‐   

Increase/ decrease in other Bank balance                            (41.34)                            (145.12)

Purchase/Sale of investments                                      ‐                                          ‐   

Increase/decrease in other security deposits                             (55.21)                               154.82 

Net cash flow from/(used) in investing activities                     [B]                       (1,752.12)                          (1,267.04)

Cash flow from financing activities:

Proceeds from long term borrowing (net)                           576.51                                 41.83 

Proceeds from short term borrowing (net)                           503.42                            1,507.68 

Interest & finance costs                          (723.16)                            (522.33)

Lease Liabilities                                 6.00                                  72.63 

Net cash flow from/(used in) financing activities                     [C]                            362.78                             1,099.81 

Airo Lam Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended 31st March,2025

CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

Particulars
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Airo Lam Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended 31st March,2025

CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

Net increase/(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents  [A+B+C]                              (1.11)                            (222.99)

Cash & cash equivalents as at beginning of the year                               32.86                                255.85 

Cash & cash equivalents as at end of the year [Refer Note‐08]                               31.75                                  32.86 

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

2024‐25 2023‐24

Cash and Cash equivalent comprises of:

Cash on hand 8.20                              6.87                                  

Bank Balances:

In current account 23.55                              25.99                               

Cash & cash equivalents as at end of the year 31.75                              32.86                               

Summary of material accounting policies 01 to 61

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date.

Notes:

2. Figures in bracket indicates cash outflow.

3. Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged whereever necessary.

For Piyush J Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. : 0121172W

Sd/‐ Sd/‐ Sd/‐

CA Nitin A. Agarwal Pravin N. Patel Suresh H. Patel

Partner Chairman Whole Time Director

M. No.: 143915 DIN ‐ 01840244 DIN ‐ 02223842

UDIN: 25143915BMIAIR5415

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 29.05.2025 Sd/‐ Sd/‐

Keya Patel Chintan K. Mehuriya

CFO Company Secretary

1. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS‐7)

Statement of Cashflows.

Particulars
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Airo Lam Limited
CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

Accounting Policies

Note: 1

Note: A Corporate Information:

Airo Lam Limited (CIN L20211GJ2007PLC052019) is incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956 with its registered office at

Survey No: 355, Nananpur Road, N.H. No: 8, Village‐Dalpur, Ta‐Prantij, Gujarat‐383120.

The Company is engaged in the business of production, processing and marketing of decorative laminate and plywood. The

manufacturing plant is situated at Himmatnagar, Gujarat. The company has very wide network for sales through an extensive

network of 15 branches and numerous distributorsships & dealers. It has one overseas subsidiary and one associate company

i.e. Airolam Asia Pacific Co. Limited and Airolam Holdings Co. Limited.

The standalone financial statements for the period ended on 31st March, 2025 are approved by the Board of Directors and

authorised for issue on 27th May, 2024.

Note: B Material Accounting Policies:

1.      Basis of Preparation and Presentation:

i) The financial statements are prepared on historical cost basis in accordance with applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind

AS) and on accounting principles of going concern except investments which are measured at fair values. These financial

statements have been prepared to comply with all material aspects with the Indian accounting standards notified under

section 133 of the Act, (the "Act") read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and the other relevant provisions

of the Act.

ii) Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued IND AS is initially adopted or a revision to an 

existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policies hitherto in use.

iii) As the quarter and year figures are taken from the source and rounded to the nearest digits, the figures already reported for 

all the quarters during the year might not always add up to the year figures reported in this statement.

iv) All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non‐current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and

other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act. Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of

assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12

months for the purpose of current classification of assets and liabilities.

2.      Accounting estimates and Assumptions:

i) The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates, judgments

and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and

reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Management believes that estimates used in the preparation

of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate

changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates.

Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their

effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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3.      Property, Plant and Equipment

i) Freehold Land is carried at cost and all other Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at cost less accumulated

depreciation. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Property, plant and equipment acquired after the transition date are stated at cost net of tax/duty credit availed, less

accumulated depreciation, if any. Cost includes purchase price, including import duties and non‐refundable taxes, after

deducting trade discounts, rebates, borrowing costs any other expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the

location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and costs of

dismantling removing the item and restoring the site on which it was located under an obligation.

Assets which are not ready for their intended use on reporting date are carried as Capital work‐in‐progress at cost , comprising

direct cost and related incidental expenses. Capital work‐in‐progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under

installation / under development as at the balance sheet date attributable to bringing the item to working conditions for its

intended use and estimated costs of dismantling the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Advances paid towards

the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under

other non‐current assets.

ii) Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable that future

economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the costs to the item can be measured reliably. Repairs

and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related

accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or retirement/disposal of the asset and the

resultant gain or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

iii) Depreciation commences when assets are available for there intended use. Property, Plant and Equipment are depreciated

and/or amortised on the basis of their useful lives as notified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in case of assets

costing less than Rs. 5000/‐ which are depreciated over their useful life as assessed by the management. Assets are

depreciated on Straight Line basis over there useful Life from the date they are available for use, except for few assets, which

are depreciated on Written Down Value Method. The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Depreciation in respect of additions to assets has been charged on pro rata basis with reference to the period when the assets

are ready for use. The provision for depreciation for multiple shifts has been made in respect of eligible assets on the basis of

operation of respective units. Where the historical cost of a depreciable asset undergoes a change due to increase or decrease

in long term liability on account of exchange fluctuations, if any, the depreciation on the revised unamortised depreciable

amount is provided prospectively over the residual useful life of the asset.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately on discontinuation to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing

proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in Profit/Loss on Sale and Discard of Property, Plant & Equipment.

Useful lives of the Property, Plant and Equipment as notified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 are as follows :

Buildings ‐ 3 to 60 years

Plant and Equipment ‐ 15 to 25 years

Furniture and Fixtures ‐ 10 years

Vehicles ‐ 8 to 10 years

Office Equipment ‐ 5 to 10 years

Right‐of‐use assets are depreciated on a straight‐line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of

the underlying assets. Buildings constructed on Right‐of‐use assets are depreciated based on the useful life prescribed in the

Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted as appropriate.
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4.      Intangible Assets

i) Intangible assets acquired by payment e.g. Computer Software is disclosed at cost less amortisation on a straight‐line basis

over its estimated useful life.
ii) Intangible assets are carried at cost, net of accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any.

iii) Intangible assets are amortised on straight‐line method, if any.

iv) At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of intangible assets to determine whether there is

any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to

determine the extent of impairment loss. The recoverable amount is higher of the net selling price and the value in use,

determined by discounting the estimated future cash flows expected from the continuing use of the asset to their present

value.

5.      Revenue Recognition

i) Revenue comprises of all economic benefits that arise in the ordinary course of activities of the Company which result in

increase in Equity, other than increases relating to contributions from equity participants. Revenue is recognized to the extent

that it is reliable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is

measured at the transaction price of the consideration received or receivable.

Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers" provides a control‐based revenue recognition model and provides a five

step application approach to be followed for revenue recognition.

• Identify the contract(s) with a customer;

• Identify the performance obligations;

• Determine the transaction price;

• Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;

• Recognise revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligation.

ii) Sale of Goods: Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of control of products to the customers. Revenue does

not include GST, inter‐transfers, returns, trade discounts, cash discounts, other benefits passed to customers in kind.

The timing of transfers of controls varies depending on the individual terms of sale. Arrangements with customers for selling of

goods are all fixed price contracts.

iii) Services: Revenue from Services are recognised as and when the services are rendered.

iv) Export incentives under various schemes are accounted in the year of export, if any.

v) Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the interest rate

applicable.

6.      Other Income

Interest: Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the amortised cost and at the effective interest rate

applicable.
Dividends: Dividend from investment is recognized when the Company in which they are held declares the dividend and when

the right to receive the same is established.
Insurance Claims: Insurance Claims are accounted for on acceptance and when there is a reasonable certainty of receiving the

same, on grounds of prudence.
Export Incentives: Benefit on account of entitlement to import goods free of duty under the Advance Authorisation Scheme,

Duty Free Import Authorisation (DFIA), are accounted for on accrual basis at estimated realisable value, as and when exports

are made i.e., in the year of export. Profit or loss arising on utilisation of the same and/or sale thereof are accounted for in the

year in which either the imports are made against the said Advance License, DFIA and/or the same are sold. Incentives on

exports are recognised in books after due consideration of certainty of utilization/receipt of such incentives.
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7.      Employee Benefits

i) Short‐term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss

of the year in which the related service is rendered.

ii) Post Employment and Retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity are considered as defined benefit obligations and is

provided for on the basis of third party actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the date of the

Balance Sheet. Every Employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled to Gratuity on terms not less

favourable than the provisions of The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

iii) The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by

reference to market yields at the end of reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of

the related obligation.

iv) Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund is considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions to

Employees’ Provident Fund Organization established under The Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act

1952 is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. The

Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company

has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

8.      Valuation of Inventories

i) The cost of inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion and other related costs

incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The costs of Raw Materials, Stores and spare parts

etc., consumed consist of purchase price including duties and taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the

enterprise from the taxing authorities), freight inwards and other expenditure directly attributable to the procurement.

ii) Stock of Raw Materials are valued at cost and of those in transit and at port related to these items are valued at cost to date.

Goods and materials in transit are valued at actual cost incurred up to the date of balance sheet. Material and supplies held for

use in the production of inventories are not written down if the finished products in which they will be used are expected to be

sold at or above cost.

iii) Stock of Stores and spare parts, and Power & Fuels are valued at cost; and of those in transit and at port related to these

items are valued at cost.

iv) Goods‐in‐process is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

v) Stock‐in‐trade is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

vi) Stock of Finished goods is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

9.      Cash Flow Statement

i) Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non‐

cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flow from regular revenue

generating, financing and investing activities of the Company is segregated.

ii) Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank, cash/cheques in hand and short term investments

with an original maturity of three months or less.
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10.     Financial Assets

i) The Company classifies its financial assets as those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other

comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and those to be measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate

method.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its

business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

(a) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; 

and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company measures all equity instruments in subsidiaries at cost initially and also on subsequent recognition.

ii) Trade receivables represent receivables for goods sold by the Company upto the end of the financial year. The amounts are

generally unsecured and are usually received as per the terms of payment agreed with the customers. The amounts are

presented as current assets where receivable is due within 12 months from the reporting date.

iii) Trade receivables are impaired using the lifetime expected credit loss model under simplified approach. The Company uses

a matrix to determine the impairment loss allowance based on its historically observed default rates over expected life of trade

receivables and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the impairment loss allowance, if any, is

determined and updated and the same is deducted from Trade Receivables with corresponding charge/credit to the

standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

iv) A financial asset is derecognized only when the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial

asset, or when it has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or when it has transferred the control of

the asset.

11.     Financial Liabilities

i) Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL.

ii) Borrowings are initially recognised and subsequently measured at amortised cost, net of transaction costs incurred. The

transaction costs is amortised over the period of borrowings using the effective interest method in Capital Work in Progress up

to the commencement of related Plant, Property and Equipment and subsequently under finance costs in the standalone

Statement of profit and loss.

iii) Borrowings are removed from balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or

expired.

iv) Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the

liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

v) Trade Payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company up to the end of the financial year. The

amounts are unsecured and are usually paid as per the terms of payment agreed with the vendors. The amounts are presented

as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.

v) Financial assets and Financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently

enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets

and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

vi) Derivative financial instruments are in the nature of Forward contracts. Forward contracts are executed to hedge the

foreign exchange rate with respect to liabilities for goods and services in foreign currencies. Interest rate swaps are executed

to hedge the interest rate with respect to borrowings in foreign currencies.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially and subsequently at fair value through mark to market valuation

obtained from banking partners. Gain or loss arising from the changes in fair value of derivatives are debited to the foreign

exchange fluctuations in the statement of profit and loss.
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12.     Borrowing Costs

i) Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the

extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Ancillary

costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings are amortised over the period of borrowings.

ii) General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are

capitalised as part of the cost of such assets during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its

intended use. A qualifying asset is one that takes necessarily substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.

iii) All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

13.     Foreign Currency Transactions

i) The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘`’), which is also the Company's functional currency.

ii) Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency, using the exchange rate at the

date of the transaction. At each balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing exchange

rate. Exchange differences that arise on settlement of monetary items or on reporting at each balance sheet date of the

Company's monetary items at the closing rate are recognised as income or expenses in the period in which they arise.

iii) Non‐monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange

rate at the date of the transaction.

14.      Accounting for Taxes on Income

i) Tax expenses comprise of current tax and deferred tax including applicable surcharge and cess.

ii) Current Income tax is computed using the tax effect accounting method, where taxes are accrued in the same period in

which the related revenue and expenses arise. A provision is made for income tax annually, based on the tax liability

computed, after considering tax allowances and exemptions. Provisions are recorded when it is estimated that a liability due to

disallowances or other matters is probable.

iii) Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax

bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax

liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary

differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any un used tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the

extent that it is probable that taxable profits against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

iv) The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer

probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it is become

probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on

the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

v) Deferred tax is recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in

other comprehensive income. As such, deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income.

vi) Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and the Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities relate to taxes on income levied by same

governing taxation laws.
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15.      Investments

Non Current investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of Non Current investments is made only if

such a decline is other than temporary.

16.      Impairment

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. For the

purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that

are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. If any

such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying

value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an

asset’s or cash generating unit’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash

flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also

done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior

accounting periods may no longer exist or may have decreased.

17.      Government Grants

i) Grants are accounted for where it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made.

ii) Grants relating to PPE in the nature of Project Capital Subsidy are credited to that particular PPE.

iii) Others are credited to Statement of Profit and Loss.

18.      Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

i) Provisions are made when (a) the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; (b) it is

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and (c) a reliable

estimate is made of the amount of the obligation.

ii) Contingent liabilities are not provided for but are disclosed by way of Notes on Accounts. Contingent liabilities is disclosed in 

case of a present obligation from past events (a) when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle 

the obligation; (b) when no reliable estimate is possible; (c) unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

iii) Contingent assets are not accounted but disclosed by way of Notes on Accounts where the inflow of economic benefits is 

probable.

19.      Current and Non‐Current Classification

i) The Normal Operating Cycle for the Company has been assumed to be of twelve months for classification of its various assets

and liabilities into “Current” and “Non‐Current”.

ii) The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non‐current classification.

iii) An asset is current when it is (a) expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; (b)

held primarily for the purpose of trading; (c) expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; (d) Cash

and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the

reporting period. All other assets are classified as non‐current.

iv) An liability is current when (a) it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; (b) it is held primarily for the purpose of

trading; (c) it is due to be discharged within twelve months after the reporting period; (d) there is no unconditional right to

defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are classified as

non‐current.
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20.      Segment Reporting

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision

maker (CODM). The CODM assesses the financial performance and position of the company, and makes strategic decisions.

The CODM consists of Managing Director & CEO and Chief Financial Officer.

The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of products, with each

segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves 

different markets. The identified segments are Manufacturing and Sale of (a) Laminate and Allied products; and (b) Plywood

and Allied products.

The analysis of geographical segment is based on the geographical location of the customers. The geographical segments

considered for disclosure are (a) Sales within India include sales to customers located within India; (b) Sales outside India

include sales to customers located outside India.

Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the cost incurred in that segment.

The Unallocated Segment includes general corporate income and expense items, which are not allocated to any business

segment.

21.      Related Party Transactions

i) A related party is a person or entity that is related to the reporting entity preparing its financial statement

a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to reporting entity if that person;

     a. has control or joint control of the reporting entity;

     b. has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

     c. is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the reporting entity.

b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies;

a. the entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow

subsidiary is related to the others);
b. One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of

which the other entity is a member);
     c. Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

     d. One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

e. The entity is a post‐employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an entity

related to the reporting entity;
     f. The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

     g. A person identified in (a)

h. The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management personnel services to the reporting

entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.

Has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of

the entity);

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related

party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

          Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence,

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Compensation includes all employee benefits i.e. all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided by the entity, or on

behalf of the entity, in exchange for services rendered to the entity. It also includes such consideration paid on behalf of a

parent of the entity in respect of the entity.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling

the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.

c) Disclosure of related party transactions as required by the IND AS is furnished in the Notes on the Standalone Financial

Statements.
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22.      Earning Per Share

i) Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by

the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

ii) For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity

shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all

dilutive potential equity shares.

22.      Critical Accounting Judgments, Assumptions and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Standalone Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures,

and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are continuously

evaluated and are based on management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

i) Judgements

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements.

a) Determination of Functional Currency

Currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (“the functional currency”) is Indian Rupee

(Rs) in which the Company primarily generates and expends cash. Accordingly, the Management has assessed its functional

currency to be Indian Rupee (Rs) i.e. Rs in Lakhs.

b) Evaluation of Indicators for Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of external factors (significant decline

asset’s value, significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment, market interest rates etc.) and

internal factors (obsolescence or physical damage of an asset, poor economic performance of the asset etc.) which could result

in significant change in recoverable amount of the Property, Plant and Equipment.

ii) Assumptions and Estimation Uncertainties

Information about estimates and assumptions that have the significant effect on recognition and measurement of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses is provided below. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

a) Useful lives of Property, Plant and Equipment/Intangible Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible Assets are depreciated/amortised over their estimated useful lives, after taking into

account estimated residual value. The useful lives and residual values are based on the Company’s historical experience with

similar assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes or commercial obsolescence. Management reviews

the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of

depreciation/amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The depreciation/amortisation for future periods is

revised, if there are significant changes from previous estimates and accordingly, the unamortised/depreciable amount is

charged over the remaining useful life of the assets.

b) Contingent Liabilities

In the normal course of business, Contingent Liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Group. Potential

liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallising or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent

liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the Notes but are not recognised. Potential liabilities that are remote are neither

recognised nor disclosed as contingent liability. The management decides whether the matters need to be classified as

'remote', 'possible' or 'probable' based on expert advice, past judgements, experiences etc.
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c) Evaluation of Indicators for Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of external factors (significant decline

in asset’s value, economic or legal environment, market interest rates etc.) and internal factors (obsolescence or physical

damage of an asset, poor economic performance of the idle assets etc.) which could result in significant change in recoverable

amount of the Property, Plant and Equipment and such assessment is based on estimates, future plans as envisaged by the

Company.

d) Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognised in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds

resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition

and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be

subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of

changing facts and circumstances.

22.      Fair Value Measurement

i) The Company measures financial instruments such as investment in other equity at fair value at each balance sheet date.

ii) Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to

sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a

principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market

must be accessible by the Company.

iii) The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the

asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

iv) A fair value measurement of a non‐financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic

benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in

its highest and best use.

v) The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available

to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

vi) All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised with in the

fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that

are either observable or unobservable and consists of following three levels:

Level 1 – Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 – Inputs are other than quoted prices included with in level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities either

directly (pear prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived prices).

Level 3 – Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part

using a Valuation model based on assumption that are neither supported by prices from observable current market

transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

23.      Leases:

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company assesses whether a contract contains

a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an

identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control

the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the

Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the

Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.
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At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right‐of‐use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease

liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short‐term

leases) and low value leases. For these short‐term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an

operating expense on a straight‐line basis over the term of the lease.

The right‐of‐use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any

lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives.

They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right‐of‐use assets are

depreciated from the commencement date on a straight‐line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the

underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted

using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country

of domicile of these leases. Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease

payments have been classified as financing cash flows. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if

there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting

from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to

purchase the underlying asset.

24.      Expenses for CSR

i) In case of CSR activities undertaken by the Company, if any expenditure of revenue nature is incurred or an irrevocable

contribution is made to any agency to be spent by the latter on any of the activities mentioned in Schedule VII to the

Companies Act, 2013, the same is charged as an expense to its Statement of Profit and Loss.

ii) In case, the expenditure incurred by the Company is of such a nature which gives rise to an asset, such an asset is recognised

where the Company retains the control of the asset and any future economic benefit accrues to it. A liability incurred by

entering in to a contractual obligation is recognised to the extent to which CSR activity is completed during the year.
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A Equity Share Capital: Amount in Lakhs

Note No
As at 

31‐Mar‐25

As at 

31‐Mar‐24

1,500                                     1,500                                     

‐                                         ‐                                         

1,500                                     1,500                                     

B Other Equity:

Securities premium 

reserves
Retained earnings

Balance as at 01‐Apr‐2023 1,269.07                                3,587.47                           44.58                                     4,901.13                                

Profit/(Loss) for the period ‐                                         784.27                               ‐                                         784.27                                   

Adjustments ‐                                         ‐                                     ‐                                         ‐                                         

Share in Reserves of Subsidiary Company (12,962,777.25)               

NCI's portion in current year profit (1,173,731.26)                  

Other comprehensive income for the year ‐                                         ‐                                     (20.84)                                   (20.84)                                    

Total comprehensive income for the year ‐                                         (11,788,261.72)                (20.84)                                   (11,788,282.56)                     

Adjustments towards PPE ‐                                         ‐                                         ‐                                         

Balance as at 31‐Mar‐2024 1,269.07                                (11,784,674.24)                23.74                                    (11,783,381.43)                     

Balance as at 01‐Apr‐2024 1,269.07                                (11,784,674.24)                23.74                                     (11,783,381.43)                     

Profit/(Loss) for the period ‐                                         270.32                               ‐                                         270.32                                   

Adjustments ‐                                         (29.29)                                ‐                                         (29.29)                                    

Share in Reserves of Subsidiary Company ‐                                         ‐                                     ‐                                         ‐                                         

NCI's portion in current year profit ‐                                         (30.62)                                ‐                                         (30.62)                                    

Other comprehensive income for the year ‐                                         ‐                                     12.49                                     12.49                                     

Total comprehensive income for the year ‐                                         271.64                               12.49                                     284.13                                   

Balance as at 31‐Mar‐2025 1,269.07                                (11,784,402.61)                36.23                                    (11,783,097.31)                     

Summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

In terms of our report of even date.

For Piyush J Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. : 0121172W

Sd/‐ Sd/‐ Sd/‐

CA Nitin A. Agarwal Pravin N. Patel Suresh H. Patel

Partner Chairman Whole Time Director

M. No.: 143915 DIN ‐ 01840244 DIN ‐ 02223842

UDIN: 25143915BMIAIR5415

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 29.05.2025 Sd/ Sd/‐

Keya Patel Chintan K. Mehuriya

CFO Company Secretary

Balance at the end of the year

Shares issued during the year

Airo Lam Limited

Reserves & Surplus

Particulars
Other Comprehensive 

Income

Particulars

14

Total

 Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31‐Mar‐25

CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

Balance at the beginning of the year
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02  Property Plant & Equipment : As at 31‐Mar‐25

Amount in Lakhs

Right of Use 
(Other than 

Land) 

At Cost or deemed cost
As at April 01, 2023 744.46                   26.13                  113.27                 4,809.97                 106.44                 34.73                69.61                 32.37                   86.21                ‐                        6,023.19               
Additions 21.88                      ‐                      ‐                        1,111.00                 9.30                      14.05                0.59                   1.93                     ‐                    107.87                 1,266.62               
Disposals ‐                          ‐                      ‐                        ‐                          (5.22)                    ‐                    ‐                     ‐                       ‐                    ‐                        (5.22)                      

 As at 31‐Mar‐24 766                         26                       113                       5,921                      111                       49                      70                      34                        86                     108                       7,285                     

As at April 01, 2024 766.34                   26.13                  113.27                 5,920.97                 110.52                 48.78                70.20                 34.30                   86.21                107.87                 7,284.58               
Additions 103.57                   ‐                      ‐                        1,603.70                 7.11                      8.60                  0.19                   0.73                     ‐                    43.94                   1,767.84               
Disposals ‐                          ‐                      ‐                        ‐                          ‐                        ‐                    ‐                     ‐                       ‐                    ‐                        ‐                         

 As at 31‐Mar‐25 869.91                   26.13                  113.27                 7,524.67                 117.63                 57.38                70.39                 35.04                   86.21                151.81                 9,052.43               

Accumlated Depreciation
As at April 01, 2023 261.24                   17.64                  76.06                   1,948.64                 50.86                   16.38                39.88                 26.89                   ‐                    2,437.57               
Additions 25.61                      0.35                    1.52                      298.80                    8.47                      4.55                  8.79                   3.04                     ‐                    37.06                   388.19                   
Disposals ‐                          ‐                      ‐                        ‐                          (1.43)                    ‐                    ‐                     ‐                       ‐                    ‐                        (1.43)                      

 As at 31‐Mar‐24 286.85                   17.98                  77.58                   2,247.44                 57.89                   20.93                48.67                 29.93                   ‐                    37.06                   2,824.33               

As at April 01, 2024 286.85                   17.98                  77.58                   2,247.44                 57.89                   20.93                48.67                 29.93                   ‐                    37.06                   2,824.33               
Additions 26.64                      0.33                    1.46                      371.93                    8.83                      9.69                  2.38                   1.42                     ‐                    39.42                   462.11                   
Disposals ‐                          ‐                      ‐                        ‐                          ‐                        ‐                    ‐                     ‐                       ‐                    ‐                        ‐                         

 As at 31‐Mar‐25 313.48                   18.31                  79.04                   2,619.38                 66.73                   30.62                51.05                 31.35                   ‐                    76.48                   3,286.44               

Carrying amount

 As at 31‐Mar‐24 479.49                   8.15                    35.69                   3,673.52                52.63                   27.85               21.53                4.37                     86.21                70.81                   4,460.25               

 As at 31‐Mar‐25 556.43                   7.81                    34.22                   4,905.29                50.90                   26.76               19.34                3.68                     86.21                75.33                   5,765.98               

Airo Lam Limited

CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

 Factory          

Building 
Total

 Land      

Freehold 

Computers & 

Data Processing 

Unit 

 Motor    

Vehicle 

 Office 

Equipment 
Particulars

 Furniture & 

Fittings 
Plant & Machinery 

 Office       

Buildings 

 Labour 

Quarters 
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 03 Other intangible Assets As at 31‐Mar‐25
Amount in Lakhs

Particulars Trade Mark Software Total

At Cost or deemed cost
As at April 01, 2023 1.08                   12.32                    13.40                     
Additions ‐                     ‐                        ‐                         
Disposals ‐                     ‐                        ‐                         

As at March 31, 2024 1.08                   12.32                    13.40                     

As at April 01, 2024 1.08                   12.32                    13.40                     
Additions ‐                     ‐                        ‐                         
Disposals ‐                     ‐                        ‐                         

As at March 31, 2025 1.08                   12.32                    13.40                     

Accumlated Depreciation
As at April 01, 2023 0.58                   12.32                    12.90                     
Additions 0.05                   ‐                        0.05                       
Disposals ‐                     ‐                        ‐                         

As at March 31, 2024 0.63                   12.32                    12.95                     

As at April 01, 2024 0.63                   12.32                    12.95                     
Additions 0.05                   ‐                        0.05                       
Disposals ‐                     ‐                        ‐                         

As at March 31, 2025 0.67                   12.32                    13.00                     

Carrying amount

As at March 31, 2024 0.45                   ‐                        0.45                       

As at March 31, 2025 0.40                   ‐                        0.40                       

Airo Lam Limited
CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019
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04 Investments(Non‐Current):

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Investments in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

Shares of Listed Companies 48.63                                 34.13                                         

Investments in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

Shares of Unlisted Companies ‐                                      ‐                                             

TOTAL ₹ : 48.63                                 34.13                                        

Investments in Equity Instruments

Sr. No. Quoted / Unquoted Classification   No. of Shares 

1 Quoted N.A.                                250,000.00 

05 Other Financial Assets(Non‐Current):

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Secured

Deposit Accounts (original maturity more than 12 months)                               111.36                                           85.07 

Unsecured : Considered good

Security Deposit 46.32                                 17.40                                         

TOTAL ₹ : 157.68                               102.47                                      

06 Inventories:

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Raw Material 2,135.28                            2,010.09                                   

Work‐In‐Progress 325.38                               229.45                                      

Stores and Spares 282.51                               216.50                                      

Finished Goods 5,750.84                            5,126.42                                   

TOTAL ₹ : 8,494.02                           7,582.46                                   

‐                                             

07 Trade Receivables:

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Unsecured

Considered Good 5,839.01                            5,505.74                                   

Considered doubtful ‐                                      ‐                                             

5,839.01                            5,505.74                                   

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts ‐                                      ‐                                             

TOTAL ₹ : 5,839.01                           5,505.74                                   

‐                                             

Airo Lam Limited

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Notes to Accounts

Name of the Company

Particulars
 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

CIN : L20211GJ2007PLC052019

Latteys Industries Limited

Particulars
 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

Particulars
 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

Investments in Other Companies

The company had valued the shares of associates at cost price under IND AS 28, without considering the temporary fluctuation.

The company had valued the shares of the other companies at fair value through OCI.

Security deposit includes Deposit with suppliers for power connections, Rented premises etc.

Particulars

Investments in associates

All trade receivables are considered good, unless otherwise provided.

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 
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 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

Less than 6 

months

6 Months ‐ 1 

year

1‐2 Years 2‐3 Years  More than 3 Years   Total 

4,344.76                  469.50                 157.77                    126.49                           740.49                               5,839.01                                   

‐                            ‐                        ‐                           ‐                                      ‐                                             

‐                            ‐                        ‐                           ‐                                  ‐                                      ‐                                             

‐                            ‐                        ‐                           ‐                                  ‐                                      ‐                                             

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Less than 6 

months

6 Months ‐ 1 

year

1‐2 Years 2‐3 Years  More than 3 Years   Total 

4,020                        220                       161                          311                                 718.64                               5,431.03                                   

‐                            ‐                        ‐                           ‐                                  ‐                                      ‐                                             

‐                            ‐                        ‐                           ‐                                  74.71                                 74.71                                         

‐                            ‐                        ‐                           ‐                                  ‐                                      ‐                                             

08 Cash & cash equivalents:

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Cash On Hand 8.20                                    6.87                                           

Balance with Banks 23.55                                 25.99                                         

TOTAL ₹ : 31.75                                 32.86                                        

09 Bank balance other than (08) above:

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Deposit Accounts (original maturity less than 12 months) 186.45                               145.12                                      

TOTAL ₹ : 186.45                               145.12                                      

10 Loans(Current):

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Unsecured: Considered Good  

Advance to Others 6.27                                    100.03                                      

Advances given to Staff 20.77                                 16.28                                         

Advances to Related Parties

Advance to Related Parties 1.43                                    24.42                                         

TOTAL ₹ : 28.47                                 140.74                                      

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 
Particulars

Advance to related parties includes advance given to foreign associated entity.

Particulars

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

(i) Undisputed Trade

Receivables ‐

Considered Good

(ii) Undisputed Trade

Receivables ‐ Which

have significant

increase in credit risk

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

(iii) Disputed Trade

Receivables ‐

Considered Good

(iv) Disputed Trade

Receivables ‐ Which

have significant

increase in credit risk

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

(iii) Disputed Trade

Receivables ‐

Considered Good

(iv) Disputed Trade

Receivables ‐ Which

have significant

increase in credit risk

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

(i) Undisputed Trade

Receivables ‐

Considered Good

(ii) Undisputed Trade

Receivables ‐ Which

have significant

increase in credit risk

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Particulars
 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 
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Amount 

Outstanding

% of Total Amount Outstanding  % of Total 

‐                           ‐                                  ‐                                      ‐                                             

‐                           ‐                                  ‐                                      ‐                                             

‐                           ‐                                  ‐                                      ‐                                             

‐                           ‐                                  ‐                                      ‐                                             

‐                           ‐                                  ‐                                      ‐                                             

‐                           ‐                                  ‐                                      ‐                                             

11   Other Financial Assets(Current):

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Insurance Claim Receivable 29.03                                 29.03                                         

Interest Receivable 2.25                                    12.00                                         

Security Deposits 0.03                                    30.29                                         

Derivative Instruments‐Mark to Market valuation 1.78                                    0.06                                           

TOTAL ₹ : 33.09                                 71.37                                        

12   Other current Assets:

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Unsecured: Considered Good

Advances to Suppliers 123.62                               130.91                                      

Advance to Creditors for expenses 163.00                               171.20                                      

Advance to Creditor for Capital Goods 1.77                                    207.51                                      

Balance With Government Authorities 662.54                               545.30                                      

Export Incentive Receivable 29.68                                 8.13                                           

Prepaid Expenses 30.52                                 38.99                                         

TOTAL ₹ : 1,011.13                           1,102.05                                   

 

13   Current Tax Assets (net)

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in ₹   Amount in ₹ 

Current tax liabilities (Net of Advance Tax,TDS/TCS Receivables) 50.87                                 ‐                                             

TOTAL ₹ : 50.87                                 ‐                                             

14   Equity share capital:

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Authorized :

Equity shares 16,000,000 of Rs.10 Each 1,600.00                            1,600.00                                   

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up :

Equity shares 15002000 of Rs.10 Each 1,500.20                            1,500.20                                   

TOTAL ₹ : 1,500.20                           1,500.20                                   

Particulars

Previous period

KMPs

Related Parties

Particulars

Current period

Particulars

Particulars
 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

GST receivable is considered as per books of accounts and any discripancies with government portal is ignored.

Promoters

Directors

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Associate Company

Loans and Advances to Related Parties

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

Type of Borrower
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14.1 The Details of Shareholder holding more than 5% Shares

No. Of Shares % Held No. Of Shares % Held

Jasvantbhai Patel 8.83                         0.00% 8.83                                    0.00%

Mahendrabhai Nathabhai Patel 9.02                         0.00% 9.02                                    0.00%

Pravinkumar Amichandbhai Patel 9.87                         0.00% 9.87                                    0.00%

Pravinkumar Nathabhai Patel 12.42                       0.00% 11.53                                 0.00%

TOTAL ₹ : 40.14                      0.00% 39.25                                 0.00%

14.2 The Reconciliation of No. of shares outstanding is set out below:

No. of Shares Amount In ₹ No. of Shares  Amount In ₹ 

15,002,000.00       1,500.20                        15,002,000.00                 1,500.20                                   

‐                           ‐                                  ‐                                      ‐                                             

15,002,000.00      1,500.20                       15,002,000.00                 1,500.20                                   

14.3 Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Shares

14.4 Shareholding of promoters

Sr.No. No Of Shares % of total shares
 % Change During 

The Year 

1 12.42                             8.2762% 0.07%

2 9.87                                6.5763% 0.00%

3 7.46                                4.9727% 0.00%

4 5.38                                3.5862% 0.00%

5 1.26                                0.8380% 0.00%

Sr.No. No Of Shares % of total shares
 % Change During 

The Year 

1 12.31                             8.2029% 0.52%

2 9.87                                6.5763% 0.00%

3 7.46                                4.9727% 0.00%

4 5.38                                3.5862% 0.00%

5 1.26                                0.01                                    0.00%

15   Other equity:

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Retained Earning

Opening Balance 4,253.86                            3,587.47                                   

Add: Profit for the year 270.32                               784.27                                      

Less: Adjustments (29.29)                                ‐                                             

Add: Share in Reserves of Subsidiary Company ‐                                      (129.63)                                     

Less: NCI's portion in current year profit (30.62)                                (11.74)                                       

Closing Balance 4,525.50                           4,253.86                                   

Other Comprehensive Income

Opening Balance 23.74                                 44.58                                         

Add: Profit for the year 12.49                                 (20.84)                                       

Less: Adjustments ‐                                      ‐                                             

Closing Balance 36.23                                 23.74                                        

Share Premium Account

Opening Balance 1,269.07                            1,269.07                                   

Less: Bonus Issue during the year ‐                                      ‐                                             

Closing Balance 1,269.07                           1,269.07                                   

TOTAL ₹ : 5,830.80                           5,546.67                                   

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Equity shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. They are eligible for 

Promoter Name

Pravinbhai Nathabhai Patel

Patel Pravinbhai Amichandbhai

Patel Prafulkumar Devachandbhai

Raval Daxesh Vasant

Particulars

As at 

31‐Mar‐25

As at 

31‐Mar‐24

Particulars

As at 

31‐Mar‐25
Name Of Shareholder

As at 

31‐Mar‐24

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year

Equity Shares at the end of the year

Add: Shares issued as Bonus

Patel Pravinbhai Amichandbhai

Patel Prafulkumar Devachandbhai

Raval Daxesh Vasant

Patel Sureshbhai H.

Patel Sureshbhai H.

 Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31‐Mar‐24

Promoter Name

Pravinbhai Nathabhai Patel

 Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31‐Mar‐25
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16   Borrowings(Non‐Current):

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Secured Borrowing:

Term Loan against Vehicle 10.49                                 21.95                                         

Term Loan against PPEs 1,589.41                            1,092.92                                   

Unsecured Borrowing:

Unsecured Loans from Directors  80.84                                 102.78                                      

Unsecured Loans from relatives & shareholders  322.70                               209.29                                      

TOTAL ₹ : 2,003.44                           1,426.93                                   

Rate of Interest
 Monthly installments 

(in ₹) 
No. of Installments

EURIBOR + 400 BPS 0.2139194EURO 60.00                                        

EURIBOR + 400 BPS 0.0660806EURO 60.00                                        

Repo + 2.90% 15.50                                 36.00                                         

Repo + 2.90% 4.55                                    66.00                                         

Repo + 2.90% 7.77                                    36.00                                         

Repo + 2.90% 19.84                                 75.00                                         

8.75% 0.50                                    60.00                                         

8.75% 0.18                                    60.00                                         

7.65% 0.24                                    60.00                                         

17   Lease Liability (Non‐Current)

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Liability for Right to Use 35.23                                 34.07                                         

TOTAL ₹ : 35.23                                 34.07                                        

Axis Bank Motor Vehicle

Sub Note: The company has also provided land and building situated at:

1. Survey No: 355, Dalpur, Nananpur Approach Road, Ta: Prantij,  Dist: Sabarkantha

2. Plot No. 301 & 302, Survey No. 518/P, GIDC Estate, Talod

3. Khata No. 341, Block No. 139 (Old Survey No. 356) Mouje‐Dalpur, Nanapur Approach Road, Taluka: Prantij, Dist: Sabarkantha

4. Pledge of 1500200 Shares of Airo Lam Limited held by Mr. Pravin N. Patel, Suresh H. Patel and Pravin A. Patel

as common collateral security for Working Capital finance & Term Loan finance.

Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date less any transfers to general reserve, dividends, utilisations or other

distributions paid to shareholders.

Sub Note: The directors of the company and Mr. Pravin A. Patel (Promoter, subject to the limit of the shares offered by him) have also given their personal

guarantee for the loan.

Name of Security

Immovable property , Plant and 

Immovable property , Plant and 

Motor VehicleHDFC Bank

Secured by hypothecation of vehicles purchased in the name of company/ directors of the company. 

The loan is repayble within a period ranging from one to five years.

Particulars

Immovable property , Plant and 

Machinery , Book Debts

The company have outstanding Interest free long term loans from shareholders & relatives of the 

directors and/or promoters. The repayment terms have not been decided yet.

Axis Bank

Motor Vehicle

Sub Note: The Company has utilized the borrowings from Banks for the purpose, for which it has been raised.

Securities Premium: The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium.

Other Comprehensive Income: The fair value change of the investmentsmeasured at fair value through other comprehensive income recognised through Other

Comprehensive Income. Upon derecognition the cumulative fair value changes on the said investments except equity investments are reclassified to the

Statement of Profit and Loss. Accumulated gain or loss on employee benefits also recognised through other comprehensive income.

Axis Bank Immovable property , Plant and 

Machinery , Book Debts

HDFC Bank

The company have outstanding Interest free long term loans from directors. The repayment terms 

have not been decided yet.

Axis Bank Immovable property , Plant and 

Machinery , Book Debts

Secured by way of charge of Plant & Machineries, Book Debts, Stocks as primary security and certain 

industrial and residential plot as specified in the sanction letter as collateral security.

Immovable property , Plant and 

Machinery , Book Debts

Name of Lender

Axis Bank

Axis Bank

Axis Bank

Particulars
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18    Other Financial Liabilities (Non‐Current)

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Unsecured: Considered Good

Security Deposit From Customer 171.85                                115.55                                        

Interest Payable ‐                                       ‐                                               

TOTAL ₹ : 171.85                                115.55                                        

19    Provisions(Non‐Current)

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Provision for Employee Benefits

Gratuity 146.59                                94.28                                          

TOTAL ₹ : 146.59                                94.28                                          

20    Deferred Tax Liabilities:

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Deferred Tax Assets

442.08                                378.43                                        

(40.78)                                 (28.61)                                         

7.99                                     4.88                                            

TOTAL ₹ : 409.29                                354.70                                        

21    Borrowings(Current):

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Secured : Loans Repayable on Demand

Secured Loan from Bank 6,345.08                             5,889.08                                    

Current Maturities of Long Term Debts 601.28                                553.87                                        

TOTAL ₹ : 6,946.37                             6,442.95                                    

22    Trade Payables:

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Creditors for Goods

‐Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,878.76                             740.13                                        

  (to the extent identified with the available information)

1,577.65                             2,074.47                                    

TOTAL ₹ : 3,456.40                             2,814.60                                    

‐Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises

Axis Bank Cash Credit / PCFC / PSCFC LC / SBLC outstanding Rs. 5043.45/‐ lakhs as on March 31, 2025 and HSBC Bank Cash Credit / PCFC / PSCFC LC / SBLC 

outstanding Rs. 1301.63/‐ lakhs‐as on March 31, 2025 is secured against hypothecation of stock with netting off of sundry creditors and Book Debts i.e. entire 

current assets (present and future) of the company including stock of raw material, stock in process, finished goods, consumables, receivables, stores, spares, at the 

rate of 9.40% for Axis bank and MCLR/3M T‐bill rate for HSBC bank.

The company has also provided land and building situated at:

1. Survey No: 355, Dalpur, Nananpur Approach Road, Ta: Prantij,  Dist: Sabarkantha

2. Plot No. 301 & 302, Survey No. 518/P, GIDC Estate, Talod

3. Khata No. 341, Block No. 139 (Old Survey No. 356) Mouje‐Dalpur, Nanapur Approach Road, Taluka: Prantij, Dist: Sabarkantha

4. Pledge of 1500200 Shares of Airo Lam Limited held by Mr. Pravin N. Patel, Suresh H. Patel and Pravin A. Patel

as common collateral security for Working Capital finance & Term Loan finance.

The directors of the company and Mr. Pravin A. Patel (Promoter, subject to the limit of the shares offered by him) have also given their personal guarantee for the 

loan.

*Balances of Letter of Credit and SBLC for Buyer's Credit has been regrouped/reclassifed to Secured Loans Repayable on Demand.

Particulars

DTL on Difference between written down value of property, plant and equipment and capital work‐in‐

progress as per books of accounts and income tax

As the Company has not funded its liability, it has nothing to disclose regarding plan assets and its reconciliation.

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

DTL on Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis

DTL on Other assets
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 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

Less than 1 Year 1‐2 Years 2‐3 Years  More than 3 Years   Total 

1,878.76              ‐                                  ‐                                      1,878.76                                   

1,549.05              22.10                       6.49                                ‐                                      1,577.65                                   

‐                        ‐                           ‐                                  ‐                                      ‐                                             

‐                        ‐                           ‐                                  ‐                                      ‐                                             

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Less than 1 Year   1‐2 Years   2‐3 Years   More than 3 Years   Total 

740.13                 ‐                           ‐                                  ‐                                      740.13                                      

2,037.70              25.52                       10.90                             0.35                                    2,074.47                                   

‐                        ‐                           ‐                                  ‐                                      ‐                                             

‐                        ‐                           ‐                                  ‐                                      ‐                                             

23   Lease Liability (Current)

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Liability for Right to Use 43.40                                 38.56                                         

TOTAL ₹ : 43.40                                 38.56                                        

24   Other Financial Liabilities(Current):

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Other Payables

Sundry Creditors for Capital Goods 36.43                                 30.23                                         

Sundry Creditors for Expenses*

‐Dues to micro and small enterprises 174.20                               154.27                                      

 (to the extent identified with the available information)

 ‐Dues to other than micro and small enterprises 462.65                               364.19                                      

TOTAL ₹ : 673.28                               548.69                                      

25   Other Current Liabilities:

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Other Payables

Advance from Customers 36.66                                 32.40                                         

Payable to Government 233.03                               138.76                                      

TOTAL ₹ : 269.68                               171.16                                      

26   Provisions(Current):

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Payable to Employees 76.25                                 24.49                                         

Payable to Others 0.64                                    8.92                                           

Provision for Expenses 174.52                               94.11                                         

TOTAL ₹ : 251.41                               127.51                                      

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Sub Note: 1 Outstanding Balances of Trade Payables as on 31st March, 2025 are taken as certified by management. The same is subject to reconciliation and

confirmations.

Particulars

Sub Note: 2 Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006” is based on the information

available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received from them on requests made

by the Company. There are no overdue principal amounts / interest payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date. There are

no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for any earlier years and accordingly there is no interest paid or outstanding interest in this

regard in respect of payment made during the year or on balance brought forward from previous year.

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

(i) MSME

(ii) Others

(iii) Diputed dues‐MSME

(ii) Others

(iii) Diputed dues‐MSME

(iv) Diputed dues‐Others

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

(i) MSME

(iv) Diputed dues‐Others
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27   Current tax liabilities (net)

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Current tax liabilities (Net of Advance Tax,TDS/TCS Receivables) ‐                                      21.58                                         

TOTAL ₹ : ‐                                      21.58                                        

28   Revenue From Operations:

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

 Sale of Products 22,657.78                         23,150.59                                 

Less:

Rate Differences on Sales 0.29                                    (2.21)                                          

GST on sales (1,306.26)                          (2,555.93)                                  

21,351.81                         20,592.45                                 

Other Operating Income

Export Incentive Received 22.07                                 24.94                                         

Miscellaneous Income 48.83                                 20.03                                         

TOTAL ₹ : 21,422.71                         20,637.42                                

29   Other Income:

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Interest Income 17.99                                 25.47                                         

Interest on Rent Deposits 1.47                                    1.31                                           

Other Income 39.31                                 9.00                                           

Insurance Claim ‐                                      29.03                                         

Gain on Sale of Investment 0.46                                   

Gain on Foreign Exchange 194.17                               ‐                                             

Fair Valuation Gain ‐                                      80.45                                         

TOTAL ₹ : 253.40                               145.25                                      

30   Cost of Raw material consumed:

Inventory at the beginning  Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Raw Material 2,010.09                            1,868.43                                   

Add: Purchases

Raw Material 14,620.95                         14,077.53                                 

Add: Direct Expenses

Raw Material 114.36                               100.50                                      

Less: Inventory at the end

Raw Material 2,135.28                            2,010.09                                   

TOTAL ₹ : 14,610.12                         14,036.37                                

Particulars

 For the FY 2023‐24 

Particulars

Particulars  For the FY 2024‐25 

 For the FY 2024‐25   For the FY 2023‐24 

*In the F.Y. 2023‐24, Export related Incentives received/receivable is included in Sale of products. However, previous year figure has not been

regrouped/reclassified.

 For the FY 2024‐25   For the FY 2023‐24 Particulars
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31   Changes in Inventories:

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

At the end of the year:

Finished Goods 5,750.84                            5,126.42                                   

Work‐In‐Progress 325.38                               229.45                                      

Stores and Spares 282.51                               216.50                                      

6,358.74                           5,572.37                                   

At the beginning of the year:

Finished Goods 5,126.42                            4,041.00                                   

Work‐In‐Progress 229.45                               317.57                                      

Stores and Spares 216.50                               207.56                                      

5,572.37                           4,566.13                                   

TOTAL ₹ : (786.37)                              (1,006.24)                                  

32   Employee Benefit Expense:

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Bonus Expenses 17.08                                 15.65                                         

Director's Remuneration 25.05                                 25.05                                         

Gratuity Expense 43.75                                 28.19                                         

Salary & Wages Expenses 1,324.29                            1,236.23                                   

Staff Welfare Expenses 11.74                                 8.17                                           

TOTAL ₹ : 1,421.90                           1,313.29                                   

33   Finance Cost:

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Bank Charges 138.72                               68.67                                         

Interest to Bank on Short Term Borrowing 453.33                               320.73                                      

Interest to Bank on Long Term Borrowing 102.10                               100.27                                      

Interest on Car Loan 2.22                                    2.90                                           

Interest on Others ‐                                      1.01                                           

Interest on Lease Liability 15.77                                 8.43                                           

Interest on Unsecured Loan 11.02                                 20.32                                         

TOTAL ₹ : 723.16                               522.33                                      

34   Depreciation Expense

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Depreciation on Tangible Assets 422.69                               351.13                                      

Depreciation on Right to use 39.42                                 37.06                                         

Amortization on Intangible Assets 0.05                                    0.05                                           

TOTAL ₹ : 462.16                               388.24                                      

 For the FY 2024‐25 

 For the FY 2023‐24 

Particulars

Particulars  For the FY 2024‐25 

 For the FY 2023‐24 Particulars  For the FY 2024‐25 

Particulars  For the FY 2024‐25   For the FY 2023‐24 

Sub Note: 1 Interest Expenses are net of interest capitalized in Property, Plant & Equipment.

 For the FY 2023‐24 
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35   Other Expenses:

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Establishment Expenses

Auditor's Remuneration                                   3.75                                              3.75 

Bad Debt 0.11                                    0.48                                           

Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 174.63                               156.01                                      

Certification Charges 30.04                                 10.11                                         

Discount / Complain Expenses 363.18                               173.75                                      

Donation Expenses 0.10                                    2.11                                           

(Gain)/Loss on Foreign Exchange 5.86                                    5.94                                           

Export Related Expenses 515.98                               344.31                                      

Indirect Duty Related Expenses 9.20                                    11.74                                         

Insurance Expenses 24.24                                 72.17                                         

Labour Expenses 671.84                               673.40                                      

Legal & Professional Expenses  21.35                                 39.27                                         

Loss from Investment in Subsidiary ‐                                      1.07                                           

Membership Expenses 7.89                                    5.73                                           

Office Expenses 324.59                               241.67                                      

Packing and Forwarding Expenses 194.88                               214.12                                      

Printing & Stationery Expenses 8.45                                    6.54                                           

Penalty Expense ` ‐                                      1.85                                           

Rent Expenses 40.74                                 44.54                                         

Repair & Maintenance Expenses 104.98                               100.40                                      

Sundry Balances Written Off 0.02                                    0.67                                           

Travelling Expenses 86.42                                 95.99                                         

Corporate social responsible activities 20.76                                 18.37                                         

Transportation Related Expenses

Freight Expenses 723.12                               750.87                                      

Container Expenses ‐                                      4.55                                           

Communication Expenses

Postage & Courier Expenses 10.67                                 10.29                                         

Telephone Expenses 6.82                                    6.19                                           

Power & Fuel Expense

Power & Fuel Expenses 330.43                               246.00                                      

Selling & Distribution Expenses

Advertisement & Sales Promotion Expenses 1,140.48                            1,127.76                                   

TOTAL ₹ : 4,820.55                           4,369.66                                   

36   Earning Per Share :

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Basic Earning Per Share 1.80                                    5.23                                           

Diluted Earning Per Share 1.80                                    5.23                                           

Nominal Value Per Share Rs. 10.00 Rs. 10.00

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

Profit / (Loss)  after taxation 270.32                               784.27                                      

270.32                               784.27                                      

15,002,000.00                 15,002,000.00                         

‐                                      ‐                                             

15,002,000.00                 15,002,000.00                         

15,002,000.00                 15,002,000.00                        

 For the FY 2023‐24 

 For the FY 2024‐25 

Earning Per share is calculated by dividing the Profit/(Loss) attributable to the Equity Shareholders by the weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding 

during the year. The numbers used in calculating basic and diluted earning per Equity Share as stated below

Number of shares at the beginning of the year

Particulars

Particulars

Number of shares allotted during the year (Previous Year shares allotted as Bonus Shares)

Particulars

 For the FY 2024‐25 

 For the FY 2023‐24 

 For the FY 2024‐25   For the FY 2023‐24 

Net Profit / (Loss) attributable to Equity 

Weighted Average Number of shares outstanding during the year

Number of shares at the end of the year
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37   Taxation

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

 Tax Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Current Tax Expense 102.14                               278.42                                      

Income Tax Expense 102.14                               278.42                                      

MAT Credit utilized/(Receivable) ‐                                      ‐                                             

Earlier Years Tax Expense (0.44)                                  44.57                                         

Income Tax Expense including Earlier year tax 101.70                               322.98                                      

Deferred Tax 52.57                                 51.76                                         

Total Tax Expense in Statement of Profit and Loss 154.28                               374.74                                      

 ReconciliaƟon of Tax Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Profit before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 424.59                               1,159.02                                   

Re‐measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans in OCI 14.50                                 (28.87)                                       

Changes in Profit before tax due to Ind AS Transition ‐                                      ‐                                             

Accounting Profit before Tax 439.09                               1,130.15                                   

Applicable Income Tax rate 27.82% 27.82%

Computed Tax expense 122.16                               314.41                                      

Additional deductions under Chapter VIA ‐                                      0.29                                           

Charity, Donation and CSR Expenses 5.83                                    5.11                                           

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (52.82)                                (48.89)                                       

Others 28.98                                 (53,703.44)                               

MAT Credit utilized/(Receivable) ‐                                      ‐                                             

Earlier Years Tax Expense (0.44)                                  44.57                                         

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Liability:

Temporary difference on account of:

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 63.65                                 60.07                                         

Other temporary differences (11.07)                                (8.30)                                          

Changes in Deferred Tax due to Ind AS Transition ‐                                      ‐                                             

Deferred tax in Statement of Profit and Loss 52.57                                 51.76                                        

 Temporary difference of liabiliƟes in other comprehensive income (2.01)                                  8.03                                           

Deferred tax in Total Comprehensive Income 50.56                                 59.79                                        

Income Tax charged to Statement of Profit and Loss (A)  154.28                               (53,328.16)                               

38   Capital Commitments and Contingent Liabilities:

A. Contingent Liabilities:

As at 

31‐Mar‐25

Amount in Lakhs

                                       159.69 

B. Commitments:

Disputed Income Tax Demand under the Gujarat Value Added Tax Act

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent

liabilities where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on its

financial results.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for net of advances, Rs. NIL Lakhs (previous year Rs. NIL Lakhs).

Particulars

Particulars

 For the FY 2024‐25   For the FY 2023‐24 

It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above, pending resolution of the respective proceedings as

it is determinable only on receipt of judgments/decisions pending with various forums/ authorities.

At officer level the decision was not in favour of the company, therefore, the company has appealed in Commisioner of appeal. Therefore, the company has

recognised it as contingent liabilities.
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39   Accounting Classifications and Fair values

As at 

31‐Mar‐25

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost:

Trade receivables                           5,839.01                                      5,505.74 

Cash and cash equivalents                                 31.75                                           32.86 

Bank balance other than above                               186.45                                         145.12 

Loans(Current)                                 28.47                                         140.74 

Other Financial Assets (Current)                                 31.31                                           71.37 

Other Financial Assets (Non Current)                               157.68                                         102.47 

Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss:

Derivative (Current)                                   1.78                                              0.06 

Financial assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income:

Investments                                 48.63                                           34.13 

                           6,325.09                                      6,032.47 

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost:

Borrowings (Current)                           6,946.37                                      6,442.95 

Borrowings (Non Current)                           2,003.44                                      1,426.93 

Lease Liability (Current)                                 43.40                                           38.56 

Lease Liability (Non Current)                                 35.23                                           34.07 

Trade payables                           3,456.40                                      2,814.60 

Other financial liabilities (Current)                               673.28                                         548.69 

Other financial liabilities (Non Current)                               171.85                                         115.55 

                         13,329.97                                   11,421.35 

40   Financial Risk Management

ii) Liquidity Risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents including bank deposits and availability of funding through an adequate

amount of committed credit facilities to meet the obligations when due.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, liquiditymanagement

also involves projecting cash flows considering level of liquid assets necessary to meet obligations by matching thematurity profiles of financial assets & liabilities

and monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios.

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non‐derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The

information included in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the

Company can be required to pay. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Particulars

Total Financial Assets

Total Financial Liabilities

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between 

willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidated sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

Fair value of cash and short term deposits, trade and other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, working capital loans from banks 

approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

Financial instruments other than above are carried at amortised cost except certain assets which are carried at fair value.

While ensuring liquidity is sufficient to meet Company's operational requirements, the Company's financial management committee also monitors and manages

key financial risks relating to the operations of the Company by analysing exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including

currency risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

i) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises

two types of risk: interest rate, currency risk and other price risk, such as commodity price risk and equity price risk. Financial instruments affectedby market risk

include FVTPL investments, trade payables, trade receivables, etc.
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Due in 1 Year Due after 1 Year  Total 

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

 As at 31‐Mar‐25

Borrowings                             6,946                                  2,003                                      8,949.81 

Trade Payables                             3,456                                         ‐                                       3,456.40 

Other Financial Liabilities                                717                                     207                                         923.76 

                           11,119                                   2,211                                   13,329.97 

 As at 31‐Mar‐24

Borrowings                             6,443                                  1,427                                      7,869.88 

Trade Payables                             2,074                                         ‐                                       2,074.47 

Other Financial Liabilities                                 587                                      150                                         736.88 

                             9,105                                   1,577                                   10,681.23 

Trade Receivables

Due in 1 Year 1 year ‐ 3 years  More than 3 Years   Total 

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs  Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

 As at 31‐Mar‐25

1) Trade Receivables                       5,839                                     ‐                                           ‐                                        5,839.01 

2) Cash & Cash Equivalents                           218                                     ‐                                           ‐                                           218.21 

3) Loans                             28                                     ‐                                           ‐                                             28.47 

4) Other Financial Assets                             33                                 158                                         ‐                                           190.77 

5) Investments                              ‐                                       ‐                                    48.63                                           48.63 

                      6,119                                  158                                   48.63                                      6,325.09 

 As at 31‐Mar‐24

1) Trade Receivables                       5,506                                     ‐                                           ‐                                        5,505.74 

2) Cash & Cash Equivalents                           178                                     ‐                                           ‐                                           177.97 

3) Loans                           141                                     ‐                                           ‐                                           140.74 

4) Other Financial Assets                             71                                 102                                         ‐                                           173.84 

5) Investments                              ‐                                       ‐                                    34.13                                           34.13 

                      5,896                                  102                                   34.13                                      6,032.41 

As at 

31‐Mar‐25

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

Equity Share Capital                           1,500.20                                      1,500.20 

Other Equity                           5,830.80                                      5,546.67 

Total Equity                           7,331.00                                      7,046.87 

Interest‐bearing loans and borrowings                           8,949.81                                      7,869.88 

Less: Cash & Cash Equivalent                                 31.75                                           32.86 

Less: Bank balances other than above                               186.45                                         145.12 

Net Debt                           8,731.61                                      7,691.91 

Gearing Ratio                                    1.19                                              1.09 

Disclosures

Particulars

The Company has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer receivables at various levels within organisation to ensure proper attention and focus for

realisation.

The company's objective when managing capital is to:

‐ Safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that the Company is able to provide maximum return to stakeholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

‐ Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The company's Board of director's reviews the capital structure on regular basis. As part of this review the board considers the cost of capital risk associated with 

each class of capital requirements and maintenance of adequate liquidity.

Particulars

TOTAL ₹ :

TOTAL ₹ :

TOTAL ₹ :

TOTAL ₹ :

Particulars

iii) Capital Management

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on balance sheet items that

contain financial instruments.

The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are

recognized in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note provided hereunder :
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41   Disclosures Regarding Employee Benefits

As per Indian Accounting Standard 19 “Employee Benefits” the disclosures are given below:

Defined Contribution Plan

Contribution to defined contribution plan, recognised as expense for the year is as under

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 Amount in Lakhs 

Employers contribution to provident fund 9.75                                           

9.75                                           

42   Corporate Social Responsibility Contribution

Sr. No. Amount in Lakhs

1 20.80                                         

2 20.86                                         

3 ‐                                             

4 ‐                                             

5 NA

6 NIL

7

Calculation of Corporate Social Responsibility amount:

Sr. No.  Profit for CSR calculation 

 Amount in Lakhs 

1 1,203.48                                   

2 977.24                                      

3 2021‐22 940.17                                      

3,120.90                                   

1,040.00                                   

20.80                                        

43   Payment to Auditor :‐  Amount in Lakhs 

As at 

31‐Mar‐25

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Amount in Lakhs Amount in Lakhs

Audit Fees for Statutory and Tax Audit                                    3.75                                              3.75 

The above mention amount is excluding GST.

Shortfall at the end of the year

2022‐23

Net profit as per section 198

Amount required to be spent by the company during the year

Nature of CSR activities:

Various activities including Rural Development, Eridication of Hunger, Education etc.

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the

immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and

malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment sustainability, disaster relief, COVID‐19 relief and

rural development projects and other activities as mentioned in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. A CSR committee has been formed by the Company as

per the Act. The funds were primarily utilised throughout the year on these activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013:

As the Company has not funded its liability, it has nothing to disclose regarding plan assets and its reconciliation.

Total of previous years shortfall

Particulars

Minimum amount of CSR (2% of average profit of last three years)

Particulars

Financial Year

Details of related party transactions (In relation to CSR)

TOTAL ₹ :

1) Defined Contribution Plan: Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund are considered as defined contribution plan and the contributions to Employees

Provident Fund Organisation established under The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1952 and Employees State Insurance Act, 1948,

respectively, are charged to the profit and loss account of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

2023‐24

Average profit of last three years

Particulars

Amount of expenditure incurred

2) Defined Benefit Plan : Retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity are considered as defined benefit obligation and are provided for on the basis of third party 

actuarial valuation, using the projected unit credit method, as at the date of the Balance Sheet.

Every Employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled to Gratuity on terms not less favorable than the provisions of The Payment of 

Gratuity Act, 1972

Reason for shortfall
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44   Related Party Disclosures:

43.1 Related Parties & their Relationship

Sr. No. Relationship

(i) Promoter and Director

(ii) Director

(iii) Promoter and Director

(iv) Promoter

(v) Promoter

(vi) Mrs. Keyaben Patel KMP

(vii) Relative of Promoter

(viii) Relative of Director

(ix) Relative of Director

(x) Relative of Director

(xi) Relative of Director

(xii) Relative of Promoter

(xiii) KMP

(xiv) Subsidiary

(xv) Associate Concern

(xvi) Common Director

43.2 Transactions with Related Parties

 For the FY 2024‐25   For the FY 2023‐24 

                                11.40                                           10.80 

                                  8.40                                              7.20 

                                13.65                                           12.45 

                                  8.40                                              7.20 

 Salary                                    6.76                                              6.76 

 Salary                                    4.80                                              5.25 

                                  4.65                                              4.05 

                                  6.27                                              5.06 

 Salary                                         ‐                                                1.10 

 Salary                                    2.16                                                  ‐   

Mr. Pravin N. Patel                                        ‐                                                    ‐   

Mr. Hardik P. Patel                                        ‐                                            (10.00)

Mr. Suresh H. Patel                                        ‐                                                    ‐   

Mr. Yash P. Patel                                   1.30                                            (0.10)

 Loan Given                                236.65                                           24.42 

 Sales                                193.29                                           86.75 

                                   1.07                                                  ‐   

 Director Remuneration 

 Salary 

 Director Remuneration 

Mr. Suresh H. Patel

Mr. Pravin A. Patel

Mr. Chintankumar K. Mehuriya

Mr. Pravin N. Patel

Mrs. Manjulaben P. Patel

Mr. Mahendra N. Patel

Nature of Transaction

Kedar Formaline LLP

Name of Related Parties

Mrs. Hemlata S. Patel

Mr. Praful Patel

Mr. Vasantbhai Raval

Airolam Asia Pacific Co. Ltd.

Mr. Hardik P. Patel

Mr. Yash P. Patel

As per IND AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:

i) List of Related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:

Mr. Karan Raval

Airolam Asia Pacific Co. Ltd.

Airolam Asia Pacific Co. Ltd.

 Salary 

 Director Remuneration 

 Salary 

 Investment 

Mrs. Ruchi Shah

 Loan Taken/(Repaid) 

Mr. Chintankumar K. Mehuriya

 Loan Taken/(Repaid) 

 Loan Taken/(Repaid) 

 Loan Taken/(Repaid) 

Particulars

Mr. Pravin N. Patel

Mr. Hardik P. Patel

Mr. Suresh H. Patel

Mr. Yash P. Patel

Mr. Mahendra N. Patel

Mrs. Keyaben Patel

Mrs. Hemlata S. Patel

Mrs. Manjulaben P. Patel

Airolam Holdings Co. Ltd.

Airolam Holdings Co. Ltd.

186



43.3 Related Party Balances

Relationship
As at 

31‐Mar‐25

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

‐Director Remuneration

Mr. Pravin N. Patel Promoter and Director                                   0.95                                              0.95 

Mr. Hardik P. Patel Director                                   0.70                                              0.70 

Mr. Suresh H. Patel Promoter and Director                                   1.14                                              1.14 

‐Salary

Mrs. Keyaben Patel KMP                                   0.40                                              0.40 

Mr. Yash P. Patel Relative of Director                                   0.70                                              0.70 

Mr. Mahendra N. Patel Relative of Director                                   0.56                                              0.56 

Mrs. Hemlata S. Patel Relative of Director                                   0.39                                              0.39 

Mr. Chintankumar K. Mehuriya KMP                                   0.18                                              0.18 

‐Loan Taken/(Repaid)

Mr. Pravin N. Patel Promoter and Director                                        ‐                                             26.24 

Mr. Hardik P. Patel Director                                        ‐                                                    ‐   

Mr. Suresh H. Patel Promoter and Director                                        ‐                                                    ‐   

Mr. Yash P. Patel Relative of Director                                   1.30                                              1.03 

Mr. Mahendra N. Patel Relative of Director                                   0.75                                              0.75 

Mr. Vasantbhai Raval Relative of Promoter                                 20.36                                           26.65 

‐Sales

Airolam Asia Pacific Co. Ltd. Subsidiary                               193.29                                         315.52 

‐Loan Given

Airolam Asia Pacific Co. Ltd. Subsidiary                               236.65                                           23.78 

‐Investment

Airolam Holdings Co. Ltd. Associate Concern                                    1.07                                              1.07 

46   Information Regarding Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises(MSME)

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

i)                            1,878.76                                         740.13 

ii)                                         ‐                                                    ‐   

                           1,878.76                                         740.13 

iii)                                        ‐                                                    ‐   

iv)                                        ‐                                                    ‐   

v)                                         ‐                                                    ‐   

vi)                                        ‐                                                    ‐   

vii)                                         ‐                                                    ‐   

viii)                                         ‐                                                    ‐   

47   Right to Use Assets/Lease Liability

a) Right To Use

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

                                70.81                                                  ‐   

                                43.94                                         107.87 

                                       ‐                                                    ‐   

                                39.42                                           37.06 

                                75.33                                           70.81 

                                43.44                                           39.13 

                                 78.63                                           72.63 

* RTU includes Building RTU.

Depreciation

Closing balances*

Cash Flow for leases

Lease Liabilities

Based on the information /documents available with the Company, information as per the requirements of Section 22 of The Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as under:

The Company has created following Right of Use Assets as under as per Ind AS‐116 :

Name of Related Parties

Addition during the year

Termination during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid 

but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Particulars

Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of accounting year (including retention 

money against performance).

Interest due on above

Total of (i) & (ii)

Amount of interest paid by the Company to the suppliers in terms of section 16 of the Act.

Amount paid to the suppliers beyond due date during the year.

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in payments (which have been paid but 

beyond the due date during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Act.

Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year.

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 

when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of 

disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of this Act.

Opening Balance

Particulars
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b)

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

 Amount in Lakhs   Amount in Lakhs 

                                43.40                                           38.56 

                                35.23                                           34.07 

                                        ‐                                                    ‐   

c)

d)

e)

f)

48  

49  

50  

51  

52  

53  

54  

55  

56  

57  

58  

59  

Certain Balance of Debtors, Creditors, Loans & Advances for Capital expenditures are non‐ moving / sticky . However in view of the management, the same is

recoverable / payable. Hence no provision for the same is made in the books of accounts.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the current assets, loans and advances are approximately of the value stated, if realized in the ordinary course of

business and the provisions for depreciation and all known and ascertained liabilities are adequate and not in excess of the amounts reasonably necessary.

The balance confirmation from the suppliers, customers as well as to various loans or advances given have been called for, but the same are awaited till the date

of audit. Thus, the balances of receivables, trade payables as well as loans and advances have been taken as per the books of accounts submitted by the company

and are subject to confirmation from the respective parties.

Benami Transactions

There is no proceedings has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,

1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

Wilful Defaulter

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or other lender.

Transactions with Struck off Companies

As stated & Confirmed by the Board of Directors ,The Company has not under taken any transactions nor has outstanding balance with the Company Struck Off

either under section 248 of the Act or under Section 560 of Companies act 1956.

Satisfaction of Charge/Creation of Charge

There is no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

Number of Layers of Subsidiary

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of

layers) Rules, 2017.

Loan or Investment to Ultimate Beneficiaries

As stated & Confirmed by the Board of Directors, The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including

foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

Undisclosed Transactions

As stated & confirmed by the Board of Directors, The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant

provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The figures for the previous period are re‐classified/ re‐arranged / re ‐grouped, wherever necessary so as to be in conformity with the figures of the current 

period's classification/disclosure. 

Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements                                                                                                                                                                                           

The Compnay has not applied for any Scheme of Arrangements under Section 230  to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has recognised Interest expenses of ₹15.79 Lakhs on Lease Liabilities during the year.

Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertain for office Building taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary course of business. 

The Company does not have any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as per the contract. 

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate of 9.40% has been applied to lease liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet at the date of initial application. 

Maturity Analysis of Lease Liabilities as required by Ind AS‐116 has been disclosed as follow:

Period

0‐1 year

1‐5 year

More than 5 years
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60  

61  

62  

63  

64  

65  

 2024‐25   2023‐24 

1,199,882                                      720,163 

689,966                                      950,723 

98,687                                                 ‐ 

66 Ratio Analysis

 As at 

31‐Mar‐25 

 As at 

31‐Mar‐24 

Change In % Reason

1.35                        1.43                              (6.12)                                 Not applicable

1.22                        1.12                              9.31                                   Not applicable

0.00                         0.00                                (40.01)                               

0.04                        0.11                              (66.87)                              

2.67                        2.98                              (10.44)                               Not applicable

3.78                        3.96                              (4.51)                                 Not applicable

4.66                        5.52                              (15.51)                              

5.31                        4.67                              13.61                                Not applicable

1.26                         3.80                                (66.80)                               

0.08                        0.13                              (38.33)                               Net profit including interest 

has declined by 31.53%, 

Earnings available for debt 

service have decreased by 

37.99%, while interest and 

installment obligations have 

increased by 15.33%.

Profit after tax has declined 

by 65.53%, while net worth 

has increased by 4.03%.

Unhedged Foreign Currency

Particulars

Accounts Receivable

USD(Equivalent INR)

Accounts Payable

USD(Equivalent INR)

EURO(Equivalent INR)

Particulars Numerator/Denominator

a) Current Ratio Current Assets

Current liabilities

b) Debt ‐Equity Ratio Debt

Equity

c) Debt‐Service Coverage

Ratio

Earning available for debt service

Interest+Installment

Not applicable

Net profit has decreased by 

65.53%, whereas turnover 

has increased by 3.81%.

Crypto Currency

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

Loan or Investment from Ultimate Beneficiaries

As stated & Confirmed by the Board of Directors ,The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding

Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate

Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

Utilization of Term Loans

The Company has applied term loans for the purpose for which the same was obtained during the year.

Working Capital

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits from a bank on the basis of security of the current assets. Quarterly returns or statements filed by the

Company with such bank are not in agreement with the books of accounts.

Audit Trail

The company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has

operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.

e) Inventory turnover Ratio Total turnover

Average Inventories

f)Trade receivable turnover

ratio

Total Turnover

Average Account Receivable

i)Net Profit Ratio Net Profit

Total Turnover

j)Return on Capital

employed

Net Profit

Capital Employed

g)Trade payable turnover

ratio

Total Turnover

Average Account Payable

h)Net Capital turnover ratio Total Turnover

d) Return on equity ratio Profit after tax

Networth

Net Working Capital
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2.76                         1.64                                68.41                                

Notes referred to herein above form an integral part of the Financial Statements

For Piyush J Shah & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

F.R.No. : 0121172W

Sd/ Sd/‐ Sd/‐

CA Nitin A. Agarwal Pravin N. Patel Suresh H. Patel

Partner Chairman Whole Time Director

M. No.: 143915 DIN ‐ 01840244 DIN ‐ 02223842

UDIN: 25143915BMIAIR5415

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 29.05.2025 Sd/‐ Sd/‐

Keya Patel Chintan K. Mehuriya

CFO Company Secretary

while capital employed has 

increased by 11.03%

Return on investments has 

increased by 68.41%, while 

the value of investments has 

remained unchanged.

k)Return on Investment Return on Investment

Total Investment
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45    Segment Reporting

Information about Business Segments ‐ Primary (₹ in Lakhs)

FY 2024‐25 FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25 FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25 FY 2023‐24 FY 2024‐25 FY 2023‐24

REVENUE

External Sales 18,554.98          18,882.72          2,867.73           1,754.70           ‐                     ‐                     21,422.71         20,637.42         

Inter‐Segment Sales 7,002.38             5,909.49             716.14              205.13              ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     

Value of Sales* 25,557.36          24,792.21          3,583.87          1,959.83          ‐                     ‐                     21,422.71         20,637.42         

Other Operating Income 250.17               145.10                3.23                   4.57                   ‐                     ‐                     253.40               149.67               

Revenue from Operations 25,807.54          24,937.31          3,587.09          1,964.40          ‐                     ‐                     21,676.11         20,787.09         

RESULT  

Segment Result 1,607.18             1,953.29             ‐456.29             ‐236.15             ‐                     ‐                     1,150.89            1,717.14            

Unallocated Corporate Expenses
‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       161.33                131.23                161.33                131.23               

Operating Profit 989.56               1,585.90           

Less : Interest Expense 571.06               439.87                13.37                13.79                ‐                     ‐                     584.43               453.67               

Add : Interest Income ‐                       ‐                       ‐                     ‐                     19.46                26.77                19.46                 26.77                

Profit before Tax 424.59               1,159.01           

Exceptional Item

Current Year Tax including Earlier 

Year Tax
‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       101.70                322.98                101.70                322.98               

Deffered Tax ‐                       ‐                       ‐                     ‐                     52.57                51.76                52.57                  51.76                 

MAT Credit utilized/(Receivable) ‐                       ‐                       ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                       ‐                      

Profit after Tax 270.31               784.27               

Other Comprehensive Income ‐                       ‐                       ‐                     ‐                     12.49                ‐20.84               12.49                 ‐20.84               

Total Comprehensive Income for 

the year, net of Tax ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                      
282.80                763.43               

OTHER INFORMATION

Segment Assets 21,378.50          16,784.30          269.00              2,393.32           ‐                     ‐                     21,647.50         19,177.62         

Segment Liabilities 3,852.23             1,973.45             1,105.17           1,833.38           ‐                     ‐                     4,957.40            3,806.83            

Loan Fund 8,535.04             7,602.44             414.77              236.44              ‐                     ‐                     8,949.81            7,838.88            

Deferred Tax Liabilites(Net) 409.29               299.87                ‐                     52.68                ‐                     ‐                     409.29               352.55               

Shareholder's Funds 7,060.44             6,910.92             270.56              268.44              ‐                     ‐                     7,331.00            7,179.36            

Total Liabilities 21,647.50         19,177.62         

Non‐C*Total Value of Sales is after elimination of inter segment turnover of ₹ 8,542.06 Lakhs for the FY 2023‐24 (₹ 6,114.62 lakhs for FY 2022‐23).

Secondary Segment ‐ Geographical by location of Customers

(₹ in Lakhs)

Year Ended 

31.03.2025

Year Ended 

31.03.2024

Year Ended 

31.03.2025

Year Ended 

31.03.2024

Year Ended 

31.03.2025

Year Ended 

31.03.2024

12,442.36        12,003.80        21,378.50        16,784.30        1,759.11            1,242.25            

2,867.73           1,754.70           269.00              2,393.32           8.73                    15.62                

6,112.62           5,440.85           ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     

‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                     ‐                      ‐                     

21,422.71        19,199.35        21,647.50        19,177.62        1,767.84           1,257.87           

NOTES:

a) Business Segments:

b) Segment Assets and Liablities:

c)  Segment Revenue and Expenses:

‐ Plywood & Allied Products: The Segment is engaged in the business of manufacturing of Decorative veneers, Engineered Wood Flooring, Engineered Door Sets &

Door Leaf and other allied products through its wholesale and retail network.

All Segment Assets and liabilities are directly attributable to the segment. Segment assets include all operating assets used by the segment and consist principally of

fixed assets, inventories, sundry debtors, advances and operating cash and bank balances. Segment assets and liabilities do not include share capital, reserves and

surplus, borrowings, proposed dividend and income tax (both current and deferred).

Within India

    ‐Plywood & Allied Products

    ‐Laminates & Allied Products

Segment revenue and expenses are directly attributable to the segment. It does not include dividend income, profit on sale of investments, interest income, interest

expense, other expenses which cannot be allocated on a reasonable basis and provision for income tax (both current and deferred).

Segment information has been prepared in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company. As

part of Secondary reporting, revenues are attributed to geographical areas based on the location of the customers. The following table present the revenue, profit,

assets and liabilities information relating to the business / geographical segment for the Year ended 31 March, 2023

Reportable Segment Laminates & Allied Products Plywood & Allied Products Unallocated Total

Revenue
Carrying Amount of Segment 

Assets

Additions to Property, Plant & 

Equipment
Reportable Segment

     A description of the types of products and services provided by each reportable segment is as follows:

    ‐Plywood & Allied Products

    ‐Laminates & Allied Products

Outside India

‐ Laminate & Allied Products: The Segment is engaged in the business of manufacture of Laminates, compact laminates and other allied products through its

wholesale and retail network.
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           Form MGT-11 
 

Proxy form 
 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 
AIRO LAM LIMITED 
CIN: L20211GJ2007PLC052019 
Regd. Office: Survey No. 355, Nananpur Road, N.H. No. 8,  
Village- Dalpur, Ta. Prantij, Gujarat 383120, India. 
Ph: +91-2770-240572 
Email:- cs1@airolam.com 
Fax: +91-2770 240574  
Website: www.airolam.com 
 
 
Name of the Member(s): 
Registered address: 
E-mail ID: 
 
 
 
 
I/We being the Member(s), holding ____________________ shares of the above 
named company, hereby appoint: 
 
1 Name  

Address  
Email id  

Signature  
 

2 Name  
Address  
Email id  

Signature  
 

3 Name  
Address  
Email id  

Signature  
 

 
 
as my / our Proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on 
my/our behalf at the  18th  Annual General Meeting to be held on 
Thursday, 25th September, 2025, at 03.00 P.M. at Survey No. 355, 
Nananpur Road, N.H. No. 8, Village- Dalpur, Ta. Prantij, Gujarat 383120, 
and adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated 
below: 
 
 
 
 

Name of the Member(s):  
Registered address:  
 
E-mail ID:  
Folio No/DP ID-Client ID:  
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Ordinary Business: 
 

1. Adoption of audited Standalone & Consolidated Financial 
Statements for the year ended 31.03.2025. 

2. Appointment of Mr. Hardikkumar Prafulbhai Patel (DIN: 08282838) 
who is liable to retires by rotation. 

3. Appointment of Secretarial Auditor of the Company 
 
In this ______day of ____________, 2025.                               
 
Signature of shareholder: ____________________ 
 
Signature of Proxy holder(s): _______________ 
 
 
Note: This form in order to be effective should be duly completed and 
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours 
before the commencement of the Meeting. 
 

ROUTE MAP OF AGM VENUE 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Affix	
Revenue		
Stamp	of		
Rs.1 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 
 
 

PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE 
MEETING HALL 

 
(Joint shareholders may obtain additional Slip at the venue of the meeting) 

 
DP ID  Name & Address of The 

Registered 
Shareholder /Proxy in full 

Regd. 
Folio 
No. 

  

No. of 
Shares 

 

 
I certify that I am a registered Shareholder/proxy for the registered Shareholder of 
the Company. 
 
I hereby record my/our presence at the 18th Annual General Meeting to be held 
on Thursday, 25th September, 2025, at 03.00 P.M. at Survey No. 355, Nananpur 
Road, N.H. No. 8, Village- Dalpur, Ta. Prantij, Gujarat 383120 at 03.00 PM. 
 
Name of Shareholder/Proxy:……………………………………. 
 
Signature of Shareholder/Proxy: ……………………………….. 
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CORPORATE OFFICE

+91 2770 240572, 240573

info@airolam.com,
admin@airolam.com,
cs1@airolam.com

www.Airolam.com

Survey No. 355, Dalpur Village, Nananpur Approach Road, Ta. :
Prantij, Dist.: Sabarkantha, Gujarat - 383120, India.

+91 2770 240574

195


		2025-09-01T18:22:34+0530
	CHINTANKUMAR KAMLESHBHAI MEHURIYA




